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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 07 DECEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good morn ing  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson th is  week the  

commiss ion  f rom the  Eskom work  s t ream wi l l  be  lead ing  

ev idence on wha t  we have re fer red  to  as  the  t ransect ions 10 

and i t  i s  ma in ly  the  Tegeta  issues  emanat ing  f rom some o f  

the  ev idence tha t  was led  in  phase 1  in  regard  to  the  pre-

payments  dec i s ions made by  the  board .  

 Jus t  by  way o f  in t roduct ion  in  regard  to  tha t  

Cha i rperson back in  2015 and 2016 Eskom d id  some 

dec is ions –  took  some dec is ions  in  regard  to  a  company 

ca l led  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.    

 Th is  m ine Cha i rperson was a t  tha t  t ime in  some 

cha l leng ing  pos i t ion  in  regard  to  m in ing  and the  p rov i s ion  

o f  coa l  to  Transnet  –  to  Eskom I  beg your  pardon and i t  20 

was seek ing  to  negot ia te  be t te r  dea ls  w i th  Eskom.  

 There  was some coopera t ion  ag reement  conc luded 

in  2014 wh ich  was to  se rve  be fore  the  board .  That  

coopera t ion  agreement  w i th  an  addendum to  the  coa l  

agreement  tha t  ex is ted  a t  the  t ime in  o rde r  to  amend the  
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te rms o f  the  agreement  in  regard  to  p r ic ing  served before  

the  BTC in  Apr i l .  

 The BTC d id  no t  make a  dec i s ion  Cha i rperson i t  

re fe r red  the  mat te r  to  the  board .   The t im ing  is  impor tan t  

because th is  mat te r  was re fer red  to  the  board  on  the  23 

Apr i l  2015.  

 The board  d id  no t  make a  dec is ion  on  the  issue  

ra the r  i t  dec ided to  re fer  i t  to  the  newly  seconded Mr  Br ian  

Mole fe  the  announcement  o f  whom was made on  the  17  

Apr i l  2015 by  Min is te r  Lynne Brown to  second h im.  10 

 The ga ins  tha t  had been made in  the  negot ia t ion  

process w i th  Opt imum saw the  beg inn ing  o f  the  end  o f  tha t  

p rocess Cha i rpe rson as  Mr  Mole fe  then te rm inated the  

coopera t ion  agreement ,  te rm inated nego t ia t ions  

agreements ,  ins is ted  on  Opt imum cont inu ing  to  p rov ide  

coa l  to  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  as  I  reca l l  one or  o the r  p rev ious  

w i tness who tes t i f ied  on  the  mat te r  –  on  the  t ransact ion  I  

th ink  may –  i t  may have been I  th ink  probab ly  i t  was Mr  –  

Is  i t  Ephron f rom… 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ephron.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ephron.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes tha t  they had –  they had reached an  

unders tand ing  w i th  var ious o f f i c i a ls  o r  s t ruc tu res  w i th in  
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Eskom who suppor ted  the  p roposa l  they had made fo r  an  

ad jus tment  I  th ink  on  the  p r ice  o f  coa l .   And there  was a  

memorandum tha t  was p laced before  the  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  had the  suppor t  o f  management .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  when tha t  mat te r  came before  the  

board  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  had jo ined Eskom about  th ree  days 10 

before  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And h is  a r r i va l  saw a  comple te  change o f  

a t t i tude on the  par t  o f  Eskom towards the  dea l  tha t  had  

been proposed and been suppor ted  by  var ious leve l s  o f  

management .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And he adopted qu i te  a  hard  l ine  towards 

them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Towards Opt imum.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Maybe i t  was jus t i f ied  to  do  so  

maybe i t  was not  bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  par t  o f  the  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  there  seemed to  have been – he  

seems to  have taken a  ve ry  hard  l ine .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Towards them.   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.   Yes indeed Cha i rpe rson.   

So there  the  board  on  the  23  Apr i l  2015 does not  dec ide  

the  mat te r.   I t  re fe rs  to  Mr  Mole fe  who had jus t  a r r i ved and 

in  fac t  in  the  same meet ing  you see the  board  mak ing  i t s  

f i rs t  dec i s ion  in  regard  to  the  secondment  o f  Mr  Mole fe .  

 The approved the  secondment  wh ich  was e f fec t i ve  

to  s ta r t  e f fec t i ve l y  on  the  20  Apr i l  2015.   And the  hand l ing  

o f  the  mat te r  then leads to  the  te rm inat ion ,  the  10 

enforcement  o f  the  10 .1  b i l l i on  pena l t ies  wh ich  I  m ight  add  

wh i le  re fe r r i ng  to  them Cha i r  once Tegeta  ob ta ined  

Opt imum – acqu i red  Opt imum the  –  the  pena l t ies  o f  2 .1  

b i l l i on  they ge t  se t t led  w i th  Tegeta  a t  R599 mi l l ion  bu t  

there  a re  s t i l l  deduct ions to  be  made to  tha t  amount .   

 The payab le  amount  u l t imate ly  i s  on ly  R255 mi l l ion  

to  be  pa id  over  20  months  Tegeta  s t i l l  de fau l ts  on  tha t  

amount .   I t  pays hard ly  ha l f  o f  tha t  and immedia te ly  

thereaf te r  i t  goes  in to  bus iness rescue.  

 So Eskom a l though i t  used the  –  a  huge amount  20 

aga ins t  Opt imum i t  reduced i t  s ign i f i can t ly  when  Tegeta  

was the  owner  o f  the  m ine.  

 And then by  the  dec i s ions regard ing  pre-payments  

wh ich  are  made in  favour  o f  Tegeta  and the  nar ra t i ve  i s  

tha t  there  are  pre -payments  made on an urgent  bas i s .  
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 The f i rs t  one by  Round Rob in ,  the  o the r  one by  

te lephone confe rence were  made on an urgent  bas is  fo r  a  

d i f fe ren t  pu rpose –  an  u l te r io r  mot ive .  That  mot ive  be ing  to  

ass is t  Tegeta  in  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  Opt imum.  

 There  w i l l  be  two submiss ions in  respect  o f  bo th  

dec is ions made  and we w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  mot iva t ion  

conta ined in  those submiss ions and the  w i tnesses  w i l l  be  

asked quest ions  re la t i ve  to  the  va l id i t y  o r  o the rw ise  o f  

those mot iva t ions  Cha i rpe rson.  

 We have tha t  –  tha t  i s  the  ev idence and the  10 

e lements  o f  i t  w i l l  un fo ld  Cha i rperson dur ing  the  ev idence  

o f  the  var ious w i tnesses th is  week.   I  th ink  tha t  sums up  

what  we have to  do  th is  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You may w ish  as  you p roceed w i th  the 

ev idence o f  var ious w i tnesses you may w ish  to  t ry  and 

ident i f y  a reas tha t  a re  rea l l y  no t  in  d ispute  tha t  have been  

tes t i f ied  to  by  o ther  peop le  and focus on  those where  they 

are  –  the re  may be d isputes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  poss ib le .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yes I  am –  ja  –  w i th  tha t  in  m ind  

Cha i r  the  persons tha t  w i l l  be  ca l led  main ly  today are  

those tha t  –  I  mean th is  week are  those tha t  fo r  lack  o f  a  
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be t te r  word  imp l ica ted  in  the  mastermind ing  o f  these 

t ransact ions.   Thank you Cha i r.  

 So the  f i rs t  w i tness th is  week Cha i rperson is  Ms 

Suzanne Dan ie ls .   She was the  Company Secre tary  in  20  – 

f rom October  2015 a t  Eskom and she is  ready to  take  the  

oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do remember  to  ra ise  your  vo ice  you  

have a  so f t  vo ice .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  do remember  to  ra ise  your  vo ice .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  the  f i rs t  w i tness is  Ms Suzanne  

Dan ie ls  who was the  Company Secre tary  f rom October  

2015 a t  Eskom and she is  ready to  take  the  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay p lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Suzanne Margare t  Dan ie ls .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  20 

prescr ibed oath?  

MS DANIELS:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  
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REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  

say,  so  he lp  me God.  

MS DANIELS:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Welcome back Ms Dan ie l s .   Thank you 

fo r  coming back.   A l r igh t .   You may  proceed Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank –  thank you Cha i r.   Thank you 

Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rpe rson we us ing  Eskom Bund le  18  10 

–  18  Exh ib i t  U34.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Dan ie l s  a f f idav i t  i s  found on page  

236.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Dan ie ls  looks l i ke  she wants  to  

say someth ing .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes p lease Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:   May I  p lease make  a  few remarks  i t  w i l l  no t  

take  long before  we s tar t?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay f i ve  m inutes ,  ten  m inutes?  

MS DANIELS:   I t  shou ld  no t  be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   A few min  –  okay a l r igh t .  

MS DANIELS:   I t  shou ld  no t  be  tha t  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay go ahead.  
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MS DANIELS:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  Thank you  fo r  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  make a  few remarks  be fo re  I  dea l  w i th  the  

quest ions.  

 I  apprec ia ted  r igh t  f rom the  s ta r t  tha t  go ing  pub l i c  

w i th  my d isc losu res  on  s ta te  captu re  a t  Eskom wou ld  br ing  

bo th  pos i t i ve  and negat ive  feedback.   S ince mak ing  my 

d isc losures  I  have been mal igned and a t tacked as  a  

d isg runt led  oppor tun is t  seek ing  some fo rm o f  redempt ion .  

 What  i s  par t i cu la r ly  ga l l ing  i s  tha t  the  par t ies  who  

have se t  ou t  to  c ruc i f y  me and pa in t  me as  the  v i l l a in  a re 10 

par t  o f  the  crew who in  fac t  a re  benef ic ia r ies  o f  the  

proceeds o f  s ta te  captu re .  

 What  I  d id  no t  rea l i se  i s  how c lose be ing  a  wh is t le  

b lower  i s  to  be ing  a  scapegoat .   I t  wou ld  appear  f rom my 

t rea tment  tha t  un less  you are  a  wh is t le  b lower  who has  

made exact ly  zero  m is takes you are  l i ke ly  to  become an  

ob jec t  o f  scorn .  

 Very  few wh is t le  b lowers  are  pr i s t ine .   Very  few o f  

us  car ry  a  ha lo  and ye t  we t ry  to  do  the  r igh t  th ing  and 

expose wrongdo ings even when some o f  the  exposure  may  20 

have a f fec t  our  own reputa t ions.  

 When I  made my d isc losures  I  admi t ted  to  the  

er rors  I  have made  and exp la ined the i r  contents .   My  

admiss ions are  a  mark  aga ins t  my name tha t  has  served 

those w i th  fa r  g rea te r  cu lpab i l i t y  in  the  wrongdo ing  a t  
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Eskom very  we l l .  

 There  a re  peop le  w i th  g reater  power  than me.   

Peop le  who un l i ke  me benef i t ted  f rom the i r  ac t ions.   These 

are  peop le  who now use Suzanne Dan ie ls  as  a  scapegoat  

fo r  the i r  wrongdo ing .  

 I  have noth ing .   I  have los t  eve ry th ing .   I  may not  

be  ab le  to  work  in  my pro fess ion  aga in .   F inanc ia l  and 

pro fess iona l  ru in  i s  o f ten  the  lo t  o f  wh is t le  b lowers .   Not  to  

speak o f  death  th rea ts  and constant  fear.   My daughter  i s  

now abroad because o f  the  th rea ts  we rece ived.  10 

 When the  d r ivers  tes t i f ied  here  be fore  the  

commiss ion  Mr  Cha i rperson my b lood ran  co ld  when they 

repeated the  messages they rece ived.  

 I  rece ived those same messages verbat im on ly  

d i f fe rence was m ine was anonymous.   The o ther  th rea ts  I  

ment ioned the  las t  t ime I  tes t i f ied .   I  watched Mr  Koko ’s 

tes t imony he re  be fore  the  commiss ion  las t  week and I  was 

s tunned a t  how mat te rs  un fo lded.   He made a  number  o f  

spur ious a l legat ions tha t  went  uncha l lenged as  they d id  no t  

make the i r  way in to  h is  a f f idav i t .  20 

 Cha i rperson Mr  Koko has sought  in  th is  commiss ion  

to  ins inuate  and i t  was I  ra ther  than h im who was the  l ink  

be tween Mr  Essa ’s  des igns and var ious ne fa r ious dec is ions 

a t  Eskom.  

 However  smooth l y  he  ta lked anyone who knows or  
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has  dea l t  w i th  Mr  Koko knows th is  to  be  un t rue .   L is ten ing  

to  h im seek ing  to  advance h is  vers ion  w i th  se lec t i ve  

anecdotes  and unre la ted  events  I  cou ld  on l y  th ink  o f  the 

remark  o f  a  p rominent  fo rmer  inves t iga t ive  jou rna l i s t .   I  w i l l  

pu t  h is  remark  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  de l i ca te ly.   

 He sa id  Mr  Koko was Mr  Essa ’s  indentured se rvant .   

Or  maybe pet  comes c lose r  to  the  or ig ina l  remark  because 

they communica ted  a l l  the  t ime l ike  a  boss m icromanag ing  

an under l ing .  

 And those o f  us  lower  down the  cha in  o f  command 10 

were  a l l  p reva i led  upon o r  man ipu la ted  or  m is led  in  var ious 

ways to  ensure  tha t  Mr  Koko ’s  t rue  pr inc ip les  were  

sa t is f ied .  

 I  have a le r ted  the  commiss ion  and o ther  ins t i tu t ions  

to  the  ex ten t  o f  Mr  Koko and Mr  Essa ’s  communica t ions 

wh ich  proves the  depth  o f  the i r  re la t ionsh ip .   I  do  no t  have 

th is  p roo f  myse l f  in  the  fo rm o f  ca l l  logs  o r  memory  caches 

or  da ta  usage.   I  do  no t  have the  power  to  ob ta in  those  

k inds o f  reco rds .  

 But  the  commiss ion  presumably  has the  power  to  20 

ob ta in  these reco rds  and thus to  read i l y  cor robora te  what  I  

say  about  Mr  Koko be ing  the  t rue  condu i t  fo r  Mr  Essa and  

Gupta  ins t ruc t ions in to  Eskom.  

 In  add i t ion  ev idence o f  emai ls ,  overseas t r ips  and  

meet ings a t  the  Saxonwold  compound have emerged 
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th rough var ious sources and I  w ish  to  make par t i cu la r  

re fe rence to  Mr  Koko ’s  tes t imony  before  the  Par l i amentary  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

 In  tha t  tes t imony Mr  Koko conf i rmed  

1 .  That  he  knew Mr  Essa.  

2 .  That  he  had v is i ted  Mr  Essa a t  h is  o f f i ces a t  Me l rose  

Arch .  

3 .  That  he  had ac tua l l y  had a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa to 

d iscuss the  Tr i l l i an  payments .  

So o the r  Eskom ro l le rs  have –  sor ry  –  o ther  Eskom ro le  10 

p layers  have tes t i f ied  here  l i ke  Dr  Ngubane and Ms K le in  

and I  am sure  more  w i l l  appear  in  the  coming days a l l  were  

in  the  pos i t ions  o f  power  fa r  g rea ter  than to  tha t  wh ich  I  

ever  he ld .  

 The a l l  had fa r  more  to  ga in  than me whethe r  

f inanc ia l l y  o r  by  way o f  power  f rom the  bad dec is ions made 

a t  Eskom.   By v i r tue  o f  my ro le  these dec is ions  f lowed 

th rough –  f lowed  past  o r  th rough me and fo r  th is  reason I  

am a  handy scapegoat  fo r  some o f  them.  

 What  a lso  un i tes  these peop le  i s  the  t rea tment  a t  20 

th is  commiss ion .   Whi le  the i r  tes t imony w i th  a l l  due  respect  

Cha i rperson a t t rac ted  main l y  gen ia l i t y  and chuck les  and  

quest ions tha t  p rov ided a  p la t fo rm fo r  the i r  vers ion  to  

c red ib l y  emerge my own p r io r  exper ience here  is  d i f fe ren t .  

 My tes t imony p la in ly  p rovoked incredu l i t y  in  you 
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very  po in ted  cross -examinat ion  and even s ta tements  tha t  

ind ica ted  f ree  judgments .   These are  obv ious ly  my 

sub jec t i ve  v iews Cha i rperson and I  do  no t  want  to  p lay  the  

v ic t im.  

 I  we lcome the  in te r rogat ion  and I  accept  tha t  you 

may descend in to  the  arena however  when my accusers  or  

h igher  soc ia l  and  po l i t i ca l  rank than me do not  a l so  ge t  the  

same hard  ba l l  quest ions th is  leaves a  b i t te r  tas te  in  my 

mouth .  

 The i r  s to r ies  p la in ly  p rov ided the  same open ings fo r  10 

in te r rogat ion  and  an impeachment  and ye t  none who faced 

ins is ten t  requests  tha t  they concede tha t  the i r  vers ions 

conf l i c ted  w i th  the i r  du t ies  o r  common sense.   You have an 

ex t remely  d i f f i cu l t  job  Cha i rperson  and I  ascr ibe  no  i l l - ten t  

o r  pe rsona l  b iased to  you a t  a l l  bu t  we cannot  have a  

s i tua t ion  where  w i tnesses on d i f fe ren t  sca les  o f  the  same 

d ispute  o f  fac ts  rece ives such a  d ispara te  t rea tment  f rom 

the  bench wh ich  i s  my impress ion  o f  my s i tua t ion .   

 To  conc lude my own ev idence about  Mr  Koko ’s  ro le  

and the  suspected ro le  o f  o ther  peop le  in  fac i l i ta t ing  Mr  20 

Essa and the  Gupta  in te res t s  o f  Eskom here  a t  Eskom can 

be cor robora ted  by  me.  

 But  I  hope tha t  jus t  as  much as  the  commiss ion  has 

qu i te  in te r -ha rsh l y  in te r rogated my  vers ion  o f  events  i t  w i l l  

a lso  energet ica l l y  use  i t s  powers  to  cor robora te  my vers ion  
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a lso .  

 Thank you fo r  l i s ten ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms Dan ie l s  we both  the  ev idence 

leaders  and myse l f  want  to  be  fa i r  to  everybody  but  we  

accept  tha t  peop le  w i l l  have the i r  v iews about  whether  we  

are  fa i r  o r  we are  no t  fa i r  and as  fo r  me wh i le  I  care  tha t  

peop le  see tha t  we are  fa i r  I  am not  go ing  to  t ry  and make 

sure  tha t  i t  i s  the i r  k ind  o f  fa i rness tha t  I  use .   I t  i s  

fa i rness as  I  unders tand i t  tha t  I  w i l l  use  –  tha t  I  have 

a lways unders tood tha t  I  w i l l  use .  10 

 You and o ther  peop le  m ight  th ink  d i f fe ren t ly  bo th  in  

regard  to  the  ev idence leaders  and in  regard  to  me  but  we 

w i l l  a lways –  I  cer ta in ly  w i l l  a lways fo l low fa i rness as  I  

unders tand i t  wh ich  m ight  d i f fe r  f rom your  fa i rness  as  you 

expect  i t  –  to  unders tand i t  and  somebody e l se  tha t  w i l l  

s t i ck  to  the  fa i rness as  we unders tand i t .  

 When i t  comes to  the  quest ion ing  o f  w i tnesses the re  

are  var ious fac to rs  tha t  –  tha t  count .   Today you might  be  

quest ioned in  a  cer ta in  than wh ich  is  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  way  

you might  be  quest ioned th ree  months  la te r.   When  cer ta in  20 

invest iga t ions have been comple ted  tha t  were  no t  

comple ted  when you appeared fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime there  are  

var ious fac to rs  tha t  –  tha t  come in .     

 So  –  bu t  as  I  say  the  pub l i c  and ind iv idua ls  who are  

imp l ica ted  or  no t  imp l ica ted  are  f ree  to  have the i r  own 
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unders tand ing  o f  whether  we are  be ing  fa i r  to  w i tnesses 

and to  imp l ica ted  persons.   But  as  I  say  I  am not  go ing  to  

change anyth ing  jus t  because somebody might  th ink  th is  i s  

fa i r  o r  no t  fa i r.   I  have a  cer ta in  unders tand ing  o f  fa i rness 

tha t  I  am fo l low ing and tha t  i s  the  fa i rness tha t  I  am go ing  

to  use.  

 As  I  say  i f  you  appear  today you might  be  

quest ioned in  a  cer ta in  way  because o f  cer ta in  

c i rcumstances.   Maybe the  invest iga t ion  i n to  cer ta in  

mat te rs  i n  wh ich  you are  a l leged  to  have been invo lved  10 

have not  –  has no t  been comple ted .    

 When you appear  la te r  on  and tha t  invest iga t ion  has  

been comple ted  you might  be  ques t ioned in  a  d i f fe ren t  way.   

Or  cer ta in  i n fo rmat ion  m ight  no t  have been conf i rmed a t  a  

cer ta in  t ime and a t  a  cer ta in  t ime i t  i s  conf i rmed then you  

are  conf ron ted w i th  i t .   

 Bu t  we –  we a re  no t  go ing  to  t ry  and fo l low  

anybody ’s  p rogram.   We wi l l  fo l low on ly  the  commiss ion ’s  

p rogram o f  how we do th ings.  

 But  th roughout  we remain  commi t ted  to  do  the  best  20 

we can to  be  fa i r  to  eve rybody as  we unders tand fa i rness.   

Okay.   A l r igh t .  

MS DANIELS:   Thank you Mr  Cha i rman as  I  sa id  thank you 

fo r  a l low ing me to  speak.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Mr  Se leka I  do  no t  know i f  you want  
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to  say  anyth ing  a r is ing  ou t  o f  Ms Dan ie l s ’ remarks?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  Cha i r  I  m igh t  add tha t  to  –  what  the 

Cha i rperson is  say ing  Ms Suzanne  Dan ie l s  –  Ms Dan ie ls  i t  

a lso  depends on  the  leve l  o f  a  person ’s  invo lvement  in  

what  we f ind  in  the  invest iga t ion .   As  the  Cha i rperson says 

the  manner  o f  pursu ing  quest ions aga ins t  an  ind iv idua l  

w i tness tends on what  the  ev idence is  and what  i t  po in ts  in  

regard  to  the  ind iv idua l  w i tness.  

 So I  concur  w i th  the  Cha i rpe rson on tha t  po in t .  

MS DANIELS:   I t  i s  no t  in tended to  be  a  debate  Mr 10 

Cha i rman I  –  sor ry  I  –  i t  was not  in tended to  be  a  debate  o r  

anyth ing  I  was jus t  exp ress ing  my sub jec t i ve  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  some reason  I  s t rugg le  to  hear  you;  I  

do  no t  know why in  te rms o f  what  you are  say ing .   Jus t  t ry  

aga in .  

MS DANIELS:   Okay.   I  was not  in tend ing  i t  to  be  a  debate  

Mr  Cha i rperson i t  was jus t  my sub jec t i ve  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no ,  no ,  nobody wants… 

MS DANIELS:   I  do  no t  concede… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Nobody wants  i t  to  be  a  debate .  20 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  someth ing  and I  sa id  someth ing  

so  tha t  you know what  my pos i t ion  is  and the  ev idence 

leader  sa id  what  he  had to  say and we move on.  

MS DANIELS:   Okay thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.   Ms Dan ie ls  the  

bund le  in  f ron t  o f  you conta ins  an  a f f idav i t  on  page 236 – 

now you fo l low the  page number ing  on  the  top  le f t  hand 

corne r  –  page 236.   Between t raml ines is  a f f idav i t  on  

t ransact ions.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  am there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see tha t .   Th is  a f f idav i t  runs up  to  

page 267.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  am there .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   There  is  a  s ignature  the re  by  the  

deponent  do  you conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  conf i rm tha t  is  my s ignature .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On 30 November  2020.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes tha t  i s  the  cor rec t  da te .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you conf i rm the  a f f idav i t  to  be  your  

a f f idav i t  then?  

MS DANIELS:   Yes tha t  i s  my a f f i dav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i rpe rson i t  i s  par t  

o f  the  Reference Bund le .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You –  you re fer  to  a  Reference Bund le  

bu t  the  bund le  I  have w i th  me is  Eskom Bund le  18 .   I  do  

no t  know what  Re ference Bund le  i s  supposed to  mean.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes Eskom Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Reference Bund le  i s  no rmal l y  used fo r  
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documents  o the r  than a f f idav i t s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   As  we l l  as  leg i s la t ion  and th ings l i ke  tha t .   

So I  am not  sure .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sor ry  Cha i r.   Le t  us  go  w i th  Eskom 

Bund le  18 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  Exh ib i t  U34 and we cou ld  mark  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Suzanne Margare t  Dan ie l s  as  Exh ib i t  34 .1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   34  w i thout  the  U or  U34.1?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   U34.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Suzanne 

Margare t  Dan ie l s  s ta r t ing  a t  page 236 is  admi t ted  as  

Exh ib i t  U34.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You never the less  m ight  w ish  to  cons ide r  

whethe r  tha t  wr i t ing  there  tha t  says Refe rence Bund le  i s  

cor rec t  o r  whethe r  i t  w i l l  j us t  cause  confus ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because a  Reference Bund le  w i l l  20 

normal ly  no t  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  no t  inc lude a f f idav i t s  and so  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Dan ie l s  a  g reat  dea l  o f  the  ev idence  

on the  Tegeta  mat te r  was led  in  phase 1  o f  the  commiss ion  

and I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  te l l  the  Cha i rperson and as  we go  

a long we w i l l  ind ica te  what  has come befo re  th is  

commiss ion  so  tha t  i t  does not  have to  be  t raversed.  

 But  we wou ld  l i ke  you to  ind i ca te  to  the  Cha i rperson  

in  regard  to  the  Tegeta  mat te r  in  2015 when do you f i rs t  

become invo lved or  faced w i th  th is  mat te r?  10 

MS DANIELS:   Mr  Cha i rman I  f i rs t  become invo lved  in  the 

deve lopments  tha t  wou ld  cu lm ina te  in  the  dec i s ion  by  the  

board  say a t  the  1 .68  mi l l ion  to  Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MS DANIELS:   And tha t  was in  and around November  

2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink  I  cannot  hear  you a lso .  

MS DANIELS:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You need to  ad jus t  your  m icrophone.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   There  is  a  p rob lem.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  ho t  – can  we swi tch  o f f  the  a i r  

cond i t ioner?   Wi l l  i t  be  ho t  fo r  peop le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  the… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Or  sha l l  we swi tch  i t  o f f  fo r  the  –  fo r  a  

cer ta in  t ime and i f  there  are  compla in ts  then we can  swi tch  

i t  on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  do  no t  see the  Reverend here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  somebody w i l l  –  o r  pu t  i t  down a  

b i t  no t  –  because  i t  a lso  makes some no ise .   Okay a l r igh t .    

MS DANIELS :    Mr Chairman, I  became involved in the 

developments that  we had that  culminated in a decision by 

the board to prepay R 1.68 bi l l ion to Tegeta in and around 

November 2015.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What was your posi t ion in the 

company at  the t ime?  Where you company secretary? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  Mr Chai rman.  At  the t ime, I  held the 

posi t ion of  Company Secretary to which I  had been 

appointed on the 1s t  of  October 2015.    

CHAIRPERSON :    In November 2015? 

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In November 2015? 

MS DANIELS :    October 2015.   I  had to . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You became Company Secretary in  20 

October? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  your involvement in the matter was in  

November.   Is that  r ight? 

MS DANIELS :    That  is correct .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    So what . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe Mr Seleka because we have 

got  to also assist  the publ ic to fo l low what is happening.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  might  be necessary to just  through 

Ms Daniels  inform the publ ic what th is whole t ransact ion was 

about.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  before we proceed.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Yes,  Ms Daniels f rom the evidence 

that  was led.   The Commission understand that  the Eskom 

Board were – was consider ing the – i t  took part  in discussion 

that  had to do wi th the acquisi t ion by Tegeta or Oakbay of  

Opt imum.   

 Opt imum was,  at  the t ime,  providing coal  to Eskom in 

terms of  a Coal  Supply Agreement that  dated back to 1983.  

The mine had exchange hands over  t ime and at  th is t ime and 

point ,  the mine was owned by Glencore.  

 Glencore owned Opt imum Holdings.   Opt imum Coal 20 

Holdings which was a holding company of  Opt imum Coal  

Mine.   

 Now during th is  t ime, these d iscussions between 

Opt imum and Eskom to renegot iate the agreement,  as I  d id 

in my opening address,  did say.    
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 Oakbay and Tegeta at  some point ,  tendered to buy 

Opt imum.  They tendered to purchase Opt imum for the pr ice 

of  R 2.1 bi l l ion.   I t  would appear f rom the evidence that  

Opt imum – or rather,  Tegeta and Oakbay did not  have the 

funds to procure their  posi t ion.  

 As a resul t  of  which,  we see steps taken within Eskom.  

They seem to be independent of  what is happening in  regard 

to th is t ransact ion.   There are urgent  steps taken in 

December 2015 to approve a prepayment of  R 1.68 bi l l ion for  

Tegeta.   And the reasons are given to be an emergency 10 

supply of  coal .    

 That  prepayment  is agreed to by the board but  the very 

next  day,  i t  was changed into a guarantee.   But  the decision 

for a guarantee,  does not  go back to the board.   I t  is done by 

the CFO, on the face of  i t ,  in the terms of  th is evidence.  

 And i t  would appear that  the guarantee of  that  

R 1.68 bi l l ion issued by Eskom in favour of  Tegeta was a tool  

used by Tegeta to show the business rescue pract i t ioner of  

OCM Opt imum Coal Mine that  i t  has the necessary funding to  

pay for the purchase of  the mine.  20 

 That  is the one t ransact ion.   Some four months later,  we 

are now in 2016,  Apri l  2016 . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you are going to ask her to conf i rm, you 

might  need to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    To ask. . .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    To ask her because by the t ime you are 

f in ished,  she may have forgot ten.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   You might  get  her  to  conf i rm how 

much of  what  you have said is  in  accordance with her 

understanding.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Oh, Chai r  now I  get  – I  get  the 

Chairperson’s idea.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you,  Ms Daniels,  recal l  those facts.  10 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  Mr Chairperson that  is in  accordance 

with how I  understood happenings to have unfo lded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Now could you tel l  the Chairperson 

then what role did you play in the bui ld-up to the decision 

made by the board on the 9t h  of  December 2015 regarding 

the prepayment of  R 1.68 bi l l ion? 

MS DANIELS :    Mr Chai rperson,  I  th ink the f i rst  point  of  

entry for me was a meet ing of  the 24t h of  November 2015.  

Mr Koko asked me to at tend a meet ing.   I t  was between the 

Opt imum – he said i t  was between Eskom and the Opt imum 20 

Business Rescue Pract i t ioners and his speci f ic request  was 

to ask me to take minutes because i t  was going to be a 

part icular ly important  meet ing.   Can you hear me? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    [No audible reply]   

MS DANIELS :    Okay.   So this meet ing took place on about. . .   
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In fact ,  i t  takes p lace on the 24t h of  November.   The record 

shows, 24 November 2015.  At  th is meet ing,  I  p layed no role.    

 There were – I ,  other than to take minutes,  and I  

compared my notes wi th Ms Nteta,  who was the Coal  Supply 

Manager.   She was also present .    

 For me, at  th is meet ing,  i t  was my f i rst  encounter wi th 

the Oakbay representat ives,  Mr Nazeem Howa and 

Ms Ronica Ragavan were present  together wi th Mr Twala.   

They represented Oakbay.    

 Mr Marsden was there f rom the Opt imum Business 10 

Rescue Pract i t ioners and there was also a representat ive 

f rom Glencore but  I  could not  recal l  h is name but  i t  is in the 

minutes that  he was there,  and Mr Shaun Blankf ie ld.    

 For me the meet ing was signi f icant  in  – i t  was at  th is  

meet ing that  Mr Koko raised expectat ion on the part  of  

Eskom that  for the sa le of  Opt imum Mine as a – that  the sale 

of  Opt imum as a single ent i ty would not  be acceptable to 

Eskom.  

 In the structure that  Mr Seleka explained,  there was a 

holding company and Opt imum Mine was actual ly run as a 20 

subsidiary of  Opt imum Coal Holdings.    

 So there were other resources in  the Opt imum stable 

and Mr Koko ment ioned these.   He emphasised that ,  you 

know, that  i t  would be more acceptable to Eskom that  

Opt imum Coal Holdings become the object  of  the sale.  
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 Amongst  them, was Koornfontein Mine which was also 

another source of  supply to  Eskom.  They produced high-

qual i ty coal  at  th is stage.    

 At  the point  of  th is meet ing Mr Chairman, to the best  of  

my knowledge, you know, the matter had not  actual ly  served 

before the board in the manner brought here wi th the 

acquisi t ion of  Opt imum Coal Holdings.   

 So this was a new event .   In fact ,  i t  was also new to the 

Oakbay representat ives because they pointed out  that  they 

did not  have a mandate to discuss that  and that  they would 10 

have to go back to their  and they would discuss i t  wi th the 

Business Rescue Pract i t ioners la ter  that  day,  which I  

understand. . .  

 In the minute i t  said at  17:30 – I  am not  sure i f  that  

meet ing happened in – at  that  t ime but  they needed a 

mandate to discuss i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So Ms Daniels,  is i t  correct  that  pr ior to 

that  po int  or up unt i l  that  point ,  the sale that  had been 

negot iated was in  regard to the acquisi t ion of  Opt imum Coal 

Mine (Pty) Ltd? 20 

MS DANIELS :    That  was my understanding f rom the meet ing 

Mr Chai rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So what you are saying is,  Mr Koko was 

then expanding the scope of  the acquisi t ion to include OCM 

Coal Hold ings,  the assets belonging to OCM Opt imum Coal 
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Holdings? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct  Mr Chai rperson. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And what  was the response f rom 

Mr Howa? 

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Is i t  Mr Howa who responded? 

MS DANIELS :    Mr Howa responded that  they did not  have a 

mandate to discuss the purchase of  Opt imum Coal Holdings 

and that  they needed to reconvene with the Business Rescue 

Pract i t ioner.    10 

 In my notes i t  said that  he would have to get  a mandate 

f rom his board to discuss i t  wi th the Business Rescue 

Pract i t ioner.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So just  take us then to what 

happened next ,  af ter th is? 

MS DANIELS :    The next  t ime I  get  involved is on about the 

4 t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is about  the 4 t h. . .? 

MS DANIELS :    Of  December 2015.   My apologies.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    24t h of  December 2015? 20 

MS DANIELS :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   And what happens there? 

MS DANIELS :    Mr Koko then requested me – he was Group 

Execut ive Generat ion – he requested me to assist  h im with 

the draf t ing of  the correspondence to the Di rector General  of  
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Mineral  Resources and the document should have been t i t led 

Opt imum Coal Mine (Pty) Ltd,  our supply to Hendrina Power 

Stat ion.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    And you had worked this t ime? 

MS DANIELS :    I  cannot recal l .   I  was at  the off ice at  that  

t ime.  I  th ink the 4 t h of  December might  have been the Fr iday 

af ternoon.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So Mr Koko is request ing you to do 

what? 

MS DANIELS :    To draf t  correspondence for him.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Did you do that? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And i t  is  correspondence to what  

effect? 

MS DANIELS :    I t  was real ly – set  out  in broad terms what  

he wanted to say to the Di rector  General .   He wanted to 

make the Di rector General  aware of  the chal lenges Eskom 

was facing in respect  of  the coal  supply to Eskom.   

 And the other supply r isk that  Eskom was facing and he 

was not  c lear on the type of  assistance that  he wanted the 20 

DMR to lend to Eskom.  

 And what I  can say is,  what in i t ia l ly started out  as a 

reference to Hendrina u l t imately included the supply 

chal lenges faced at  Amot and Komat i  Power Stat ion as wel l .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Please turn to page 270 in your  
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bundle.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What page? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Two, seven,  zero Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    270.   Ms Daniels,  can you ident i fy the 

document? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  can.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  what is i t?  

MS DANIELS :    This is the let ter  addressed to Dr Thibedi 

Ramont ja,  the Director General  of  the Department of  Mineral  10 

Resources and i t  was s igned by Mr Koko on the 

6t h of  December 2015 and this was the f inal  version of  the 

let ter that  I  had prepared.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  you what? 

MS DANIELS :    That  I  had prepared.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  you had prepared for Mr Koko.  

MS DANIELS :    For Mr Koko,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So Dr Ramont ja has test i f ied 

before the Commission.   So the let ter is common course.   

Did you understand what Mr Koko sought to achieve by this  20 

let ter? 

MS DANIELS :    I t  was not  c lear at  the t ime Mr Chairman 

what he sought to  achieve.   I t  was – ja,  he just  – end of  the 

let ter was:   I  request  your assistance in th is regard.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did he – did you ask him what  
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assistance he sought you to obtain f rom the DMR? 

MS DANIELS :    At  the t ime, he d id not  real ly answer the 

quest ion.   I  d id ask him but  he did not  answer the quest ion.   

CHAIRPERSON :     

ADV SELEKA SC :     

He just  wanted the put  the informat ion before the DMR. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  should I  read certain  sal ient  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .points of  the let ter into the record? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.   H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chair.   So the let ter  reads – 

i t  is addressed to Dr Thibedi  Ramont ja:    

“Dear Dr Ramont ja.”  

 And i t  is Opt imum Coal Mine,  is the subject  l ine,  Coal  

Supply to Hendrina Power Stat ion.  

“As you may be aware,  Eskom has been involved in  

a legal  wrangle wi th the above suppl ier  f rom August  

th is year.   

In rather dramat ic  fashion,  the company was placed 20 

under business rescue and Eskom was faced wi th 

intermit tent  vei led threats of  l iquidat ion whi le at  the 

same t ime, the Business Rescue Pract i t ioners 

reportedly sought to const ruct ive engagement  

between the part ies.    
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From Eskom’s perspect ive,  i t  was expected that  at  

Lemko Operat ion,  Opt imum Coal Mine would enjoy  

far more support  on the condi t ion of  funding for  

l imi ted t ime periods that  was on offer.    

Opt imum suppl ies,  one of  Eskom’s key contr ibutors 

to the Nat ional  Power System, as Hendrina Power 

Stat ion is  a  stalwart  in the Eskom f leet ,  supply ing 

approximately  200 00 Mega Watts to the Nat ional  

Gr id.  

Lemko was fu l ly aware of  the dynamics and h istory 10 

re lat ing to the nature of  the Coal  Supply Agreement  

and i ts  st ructure when i t  concluded the sa le wi th i ts  

previous owner.    

At  the latest  meet ings of  the part ies,  the Business 

Rescue Pract i t ioners together wi th the Glencore 

representat ive,  indicated that  Opt imum is being 

rescued and that  i t  would honour the cont ract  in i ts  

current  form with no amendments.  

They further advised that  they wi l l  fo l low the 

contract  loot  to  process the Eskom claim of  20 

R 2.2 bi l l ion.  

They made i t  c lear that  they are not  insist ing on the 

extension of  the Koornfontein Coal  Supply Cont ract  

wi th Eskom.  They insisted that  the extension of  

Koornfontein Coal  Supply Cont ract  is at  the 
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d iscret ion of  Eskom. 

Eskom is perplexed by the turnabout,  g iven the  

events of  the past  few months and that  the blatant  

disregard that  Opt imum displays for the impact  that  

the threats of  l iquidat ion has on the precarious 

balance of  electr ic i ty securi ty and commercia l  

v iabi l i ty.    

As at  Lemko Operat ion,  Opt imum surely cannot be 

perceived to be act ing in the nat ional  interest . ”  

 Let  me read the next  – the second paragraph on the next  10 

page.  I t  says:  

“Whi le Eskom has issued requests for  proposals to  

the open market ,  the tender submissions indicate 

that  we wi l l  not  have suff ic ient  volumes to meet the 

requi rements for Amot.    

Based on previous test ,  Eskom can conf i rm that  the 

coal  qual i t ies at  Opt imum are su i table for Amot ’s  

burn requi rements and wi l l  pass the necessary 

combust ion tests.  

Based on Opt imum’s current  mine plans,  there 20 

should be suff ic ient  coal  volume to serve both power 

stat ions.   Therefore,  Opt imum becomes highly 

sought af ter source for Amot as wel l . ”  

 In the second last  paragraph,  he says:  

“The r isk of  secur i ty supply for Hendrina Power 
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Stat ion,  Komat i  Power Stat ion and Amot Power 

Stat ion is of  such key nat ional  interest  that  we 

thought i t  appropriate to  br ing i t  to your  at tent ion,  

th is upcoming advers i ty  facing Eskom wi l l  require 

some form of  intervent ion on the part  of  the 

Department of  Mineral  Resources to assist  Eskom in 

leveraging the necessary key-author i t ies to  assist  

me,  assuring resolut ion to the course of  supply 

si tuat ion and certainty going forward.  

I  would request  your assistance in th is regard.    10 

Should you require any more informat ion,  please do 

not  hesi tate to contact  me.”  

 So Ms Daniels,  you say you then assisted him in draf t ing 

this let ter? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct  Mr Chai rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    We know from the evidence presented in 

Phase 1 that  there was a response to this let ter f rom 

Dr Thibedi  Ramont ja.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Were you aware of  that  response? 20 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Just  br ief ly.   Your recol lect ion of  what  

the DMR’s response was.  

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Are you looking for that  response? 
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MS DANIELS :    Yes,  p lease.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Let  us see what – on page two, six. . .   

Page 276.    

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 276.  

MS DANIELS :    My apologies.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Just  br ief ly what the response was.    

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  he spoke about the t ransfer  of  the 

mineral (?) on an urgent  basis.   I t  a lso spoke about a 

f inancial  provision due to the his tor ical  l iabi l i t ies and i ts  10 

holding levels for Opt imum Coal Holdings,  and i t  then spoke 

about dr iv ing t ransformat ion.   I  th ink I  just  need to real  the 

whole sentence.    

“ In return for the new owners honour ing the current  

contract  up to 2018 and for dr iv ing t ransformat ion,  

we would l ike to propose that  considerat ion be made 

for some prepayment to be made for up to one year 

of  coal  supply,  understanding the upfront  capi tal  

in ject ions to be made, . . . [ indist inct ]  to meet coal  

pr ior requi rements f rom these mines. ”  20 

[Speaker not  c lear. ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   In a nutshel l ,  what  has become 

apparent  is that  th is let ter has been used as a basis for the 

board decision in regard to the prepayment.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    H’m.  We can see f rom your aff idavi t  that  

you took part  in the draf t ing of  a submission that  was given 

to the board in regard to that  prepayment request  for a 

prepayment decision.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  I  conf i rm in my aff idavi t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Can you tel l  the Chairperson how did 

your involvement come about? 

MS DANIELS :    Mr Chai r,  roundabout the – I  th ink i t  was the 

7t h of  December 2015, I  received a cal l  f rom Dr Ngubane, 

who was the chairman of  the board at  the t ime, wi th an 10 

instruct ion to convene a meet ing and this was the 

execut ives,  Mr Koko and Mr Singh in prepar ing the 

necessary documentat ion for c i rculat ion of  the board.    

 At  that  stage,  he was not  speci f ic as to what the 

contents of  the submission was going to  be about but  he told  

me to speak to the execut ives.   The correspondence between 

the DMR would eventual ly become part  of  that  board 

submission pack.  

 Af ter the cal l  wi th  Dr Ngubane, Mr Koko d id request  me 

to prepare the necessary paperwork for the board’s  20 

submission and considerat ion,  and i t  was headed.. .   I  am 

just  t ry ing to. . .  

 I  am just  t ry ing to f ind the copy on the. . .   I t  was the – 

the t i t le of  the submission was:  Pre-purchase of  Coal  f rom 

Opt imum Coal Mine (Pty) Ltd.  
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 So in th is,  I  started interact ing wi th Mr Koko and 

Mr Singh to get  the necessary informat ion.   And there were a 

couple of  draf ts of  the submission.   And so,  as the Head of  

Generat ion,  Mr Koko needed to provide the coal  supply 

impl icat ions whi le Mr Singh provided the f inancial  

arguments,  et  cetera.  

 So that  is the informat ion I  then used.   And whi le we 

were draf t ing,  the changes were communicated,  ei ther I  sent  

i t  by emai l  or te lephonical ly to Mr Koko and Mr Singh 

respect ively.    10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  in regard to the emai l ,  we have 

asked whether you could provide us wi th those emai ls.  

MS DANIELS :    I  d id not  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Could you obtain the emai ls? 

MS DANIELS :    I  d id not  have a l l  the emai ls Mr Chai rman.  

What I  d id have,  I  th ink,  we compared what the Commission 

has and what I  have.   So i t  shows the var ious draf ts.   Where 

there are not  rep l ies,  that  is when I  say,  you know, there 

were telephone exchanges.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   I  just  missed what you said about  20 

Dr Ngubane.  I  could not  hear you properly there.   He gave 

you a cal l . . .?  

MS DANIELS :    He gave me a cal l  roundabout the 

7 t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes? 
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MS DANIELS :    And he asked me to convene a meet ing of  

the board.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   Because this is what I  want to te l l  

you.   In his aff idavi t ,  Dr Ngubane says in regard to th is 

meet ing you are about to go in to:  

“The Company Secretary,  Ms Daniels requested an 

urgent  meet ing on the basis of  the let ter Mr 

Matshela Koko had wri t ten to the DG of  the 

Department of  Mineral  Resources. ”  

MS DANIELS :    No,  Mr Chai rman I  would not  cal l  the 10 

meet ing.   The meet ing would be. . .   I  mean, as the Company 

Secretary,  the meet ing would be the prerogat ive of  the 

board,  the chai rperson.  

 So I  would – Dr Ngubane def in i te ly cal led me to say 

that :   P lease,  assist  the execut ives and convene this 

meet ing.   They wi l l  provide the informat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So convening this meet ing,  was not  your 

in i t iat ive.  

MS DANIELS :    No,  i t  was not  my in i t iat ive.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   So a submission is  prepared.   20 

You prepare the submission.   Assist  wi th  informat ion,  you 

say you obtained f rom Mr Koko and Mr Anoj  Singh.   And 

where does i t  get  to be submit ted? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  one second Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Just  go back to the two versions.   Your 

vers ion and Dr Ngubane’s version about who said there 

should be a meet ing of  the board should be cal led.   You say 

that  he inst ructed you to convene a meet ing of  the board.   

And according to Mr Seleka,  he says . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Requested an urgent  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . requested an urgent  meet ing of  the 

board.   And you say you did not  request  a meet ing of  the 

board.   And as I  understand you,  you say you did not  request  

because i t  would not  be up to you whether there should be a 10 

meet ing of  the board.   Is that  r ight? 

MS DANIELS :    That  is correct  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Could i t  be that  you suggested as 

Company Secretary that  there was a need for  a board 

meet ing and you lef t  i t  up to him whether he went along wi th  

the suggest ion because I  guess i t  is a suggest ion you could 

make.  

MS DANIELS :    Under normal c i rcumstances,  yes 

Mr Chai rman, I  may have been able to do that  but  at  th is  

stage,  I  d id not  have enough informat ion.   You know, when 20 

he cal led me, al l  that  he said is  that ,  I  would need to 

convene a board meet ing and that  I  would get  the 

informat ion f rom the execut ives.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

MS DANIELS :    And you know, given the t ime of  the year,  i t  
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would have been very di ff icul t  to do unscheduled meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Yes.   Cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you Chai r.   You see,  he carr ies on 

further and just  l isten to the picture of  th ings ought to be 

painted here.    

“So Ms Daniels request  an urgent  meet ing on the 

basis of  the let ter  Mr Matshela Koko had wri t ten to 

the DG of  the Department of  Mineral  Resources on 

6 December 2015 and the undated response of  the 

DG and the copies are at tached.  10 

The Company Secretary (he goes on to say)  

presented the memorandum dated 

8 December 2015, deal ing wi th  the urgency of  the 

matter. ”  

 And he at taches a copy as wel l .   So the impression 

created – and maybe he wi l l  c lar i fy  when he is here – is that  

you cal led the meet ing,  you then presented the memorandum 

in regard to that .  

 Wel l ,  I  suppose th is memorandum is  the submission that  

we are referr ing to here but  i t  seems to be something that ,  20 

on his version would have come f rom you,  in your in i t iat ive,  

cal l ing a meet ing in submit t ing this memorandum. 

 Did you s ign the memorandum? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  I  d id not  s ign the memorandum 

Mr Chai rman.  I t  was signed by Mr Singh in his capaci ty as 
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Chief  Financial  Off icer and i t  was signed by Mr Koko as the 

Group Execut ive for Generat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So what did . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   The Chief  Execut ive of  – the 

Group Chief  Execut ive of  Eskom and f inanc ia l  o f f i cer  o r  

f inanc ia l  d i rec to r.   They were  ex-o f f i c io  members  o f  the 

board ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  about  the  company sec re tary,  i s  

the  company sec re tary  a l so  an  ex-o f f i c io  member  o f  the  10 

board  o r  does he or  she s imp ly  a t tend to  –  fac i l i ta te  

recordkeep ing  and so  on?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  one concept ion  

tha t  one needs to  debunk,  the  company secre tary i s  a  no t  a  

member  o f  the  board ,  has no  vo t ing  powers .   My funct ion  

was to  ensure  the  smooth  –  so  i t  i s  a  very  h igh  leve l  

techn ica l  c le r i ca l  ro le  in  one aspect  and i t  wou ld  ensure  

tha t  the  meet ing  is  run  su f f i c ien t ly,  tha t  they run  smooth ly,  

tha t  the  m inutes  are  taken and tha t  meet ings are  convened 

a t  the  request  o f  the  Cha i rman par t i cu la r ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The company secre tary  wou ld  prov ide 

bas ica l l y  a  resource  to  the  board .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  make the  work  o f  the  board  eas ie r,  to  

make sure  tha t  records  are  kept  p roper ly  and a lso  adv i se  
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the  board  on  some leg is la t i ve  mat te rs?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  had been asked,  you know,  in  the  

course  o f  my –  in  my dut ies  to  ge t  –  obv ious ly  e i ther  

adv ise  on  governance issues o r  ob ta in  lega l  op in ion ,  

e tce te ra ,  wh ich  came la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Jus t  fo r  

comple teness on  tha t  your  s ta tu to ry  du t ies  in  Sect ion  88  o f  

the  Companies  Act ,  I  am sure  you w i l l  reca l l  them,  Ms  

Dan ie ls ,  some o f  them is  to  ensure  tha t  the  m inutes  o f  a l l  10 

shareho lders ’ meet ings,  board  meet ings and the  meet ings 

o f  any commi t tee  o f  the  d i rec tors  o f  a  company o r  o f  the  

company aud i t  commi t tee  are  proper l y  recorded in  

acco rdance w i th  th is  Act .   Now they are  found in  Sect ion  

88(2)  o f  the  Companies  Act  71  o f  2008.   Ja ,  i t  i s  a  l i s t  o f  

f i ve ,  s ix ,  seven dut ies  inc lud ing  you to  avo id  –  I  mean,  to  

p rov ide  the  d i rec to rs  co l lec t i ve ly  and ind i v idua l l y  o f  

gu idance on the i r  du t ies ,  respons ib i l i t i es  and  powers ,  

mak ing  them aware  o f  the  law and mat te rs  a f fec t ing  the  

company.  20 

 So he re  is  a  submiss ion  prepared by  you w i th  –  

we l l ,  w i th  in fo rmat ion  f rom the  CFO and Mr  Matshe la  Koko.   

What  i s  the  purpose o f  the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Can I  re fe r  to  the  submiss ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  you  can te l l  us  f rom your  
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reco l lec t ion .   I  w i l l  ass i s t  in  regard  to  the  –  where  you f ind  

the  submiss ion ,  i f  i t  i s ,  page 281.  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink ,  in  jus t  h igh  leve l  te rms,  Mr  

Cha i rman,  i t  was to  negot ia te  and conc lude the  pre-

purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was to . . .?  

MS DANIELS:    What  the  submiss ion  says,  i t  was to  

negot ia te  and conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  ag reement  

fo r  the  proposed owners  o f  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  th ink  your  m ic  i s  aga in  no t  r igh t  10 

and …[ in tervenes ]  

MS DANIELS:    D id  you hear  me? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  cont inue,  I  am look ing  a t  the  

beg inn ing  o f  the  submiss ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Se leka,  jus t  cont inue?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now tha t  

submiss ion  is  on  page 281,  you conf i rm tha t  i s  the  

submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  where  I  am look ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  i t  i s :  

“Execut ive  summary round rob in  submiss ion  to  

board  o f  d i rec tors . ”  

Ti t le  o f  the  submiss ion :  
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“P re-pu rchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  Mine  

(P ty)  L td . ”  

Do you see tha t ,  Ms Dan ie ls?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you exp la in  tha t  to  the  

Cha i rperson?  I t  is  a  p re-purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum.  

MS DANIELS:    So  in  essence i t  was to  p repay fo r  coa l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  who –  so  the  in ten t ion  here  i s  to  

make a  submiss ion  to  the  board  mot iva t ing  fo r  the  board  to  

p repay fo r  coa l  f rom Opt imum.  10 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  f rom Tegeta .  

MS DANIELS:    Not  f rom Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now paragraph 2  says:  

“Reso lu t ion  requ i red   I t  i s  hereby reso lved tha t  the  

request  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Minera l  Resources 

is  hereby noted. ”  

And what  request  a re  they re fer r ing  to?  

MS DANIELS:    Th is  was the  request  to  cons ider  payment  

o f  R1.7  b i l l i on  up f ron t ,  as  you wou ld  have seen in  the  le t te r  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You mean the  l e t te r  on  page 276? 

MS DANIELS:    The le t te r  on  page 276,  i t  says :  

“P ropose fo r  cons ide ra t ion  be  made fo r  some 

prepayment  to  be  made up to  one year  o f  coa l  

supp ly. ”  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 44 of 249 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  us  go  to  page 276 p lease.   The  

las t  parag raph in  tha t  le t te r,  wh ich  is  undated,  i t  says :  

“F inanc ia l  p rov i s ion  due to  h is to r ica l  l i ab i l i t i es  a t  

OCH leve l  i s  es t imated a t  R1.7  b i l l i on .   The amount  

s t i l l  has  to  be  conf i rmed th rough  a  process wh ich  

w i l l  invo lve  the  par t ies  concerned. ”  

I  do  no t  know whether  anybody a t  Eskom o r  board  leve l ,  

yourse l f ,  d id  you  unders tand wha t  tha t  s ta tement  meant  

about  f inanc ia l  p rov is ion  due  to  h is to r ica l  l i ab i l i t i es ,  

es t imated a t  R1.7  b i l l i on .  10 

MS DANIELS:    From my unders tand ing  and exper ience,  Mr  

Cha i rman,  o f  coa l  cont rac ts ,  th is  was the  prov i s ion  tha t  

needed to  be  made fo r  env i ronmenta l  rehab i l i ta t ion .   So,  

you know,  as  m iners  progress in  the  m in ing  they have to  

make prov is ion  fo r  rehab i l i ta t ion  a t  the  end o f  the  m ine and 

as  concur ren t .   So tha t  was my unders tand ing  o f  th is  

sentence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  does i t  bear  any re levance to  the  

proposa l  to  do  a  pre -purchase or  p repayment?   

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A lso ,  there  seems to  be  no re ference to  

any rehab i l i ta t ion ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  there  is  no  re ference but ,  you know,  

hav ing  l ooked a t  the  documents  now,  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  

h inds igh t ,  tha t  was the  hook tha t  was used to  mot i va te  fo r  
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the  prepayment  because you wou ld  then see …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ,  the  rehab i l i ta t ion?  What  was the  

hook?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  i t  ta lks  about  R1.7  b i l l i on  and then i t  

ta lks  about  p rov id ing  suppor t  fo r  the  pro jec t  to  succeed  

and then i t  ta lks  about :  

“ In  re tu rn  fo r  the  new owners  honour ing  the  cu r ren t  

cont rac t  and fo r  d r iv ing  t ransformat ion ,  we wou ld  

l i ke  to  p ropose tha t  cons idera t ion  be  made fo r  some 

prepayment . ”  10 

So in  a  convo lu ted  way,  Mr  Cha i rman,  what  i t  was say ing  is  

tha t  they have got  th is  l iab i l i t y,  they  need some he lp  w i th  

opera t ions,  so  p lease he lp  them,  i f  I  can  jus t  pu t  i t  in  

co l loqu ia l  te rms.   Or  p lease g ive  cons idera t ion  to  he lp ing  

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   That  f i l e  you  

have has Dr  Ramont ja  a f f idav i t ,  bu t  I  w i l l  read to  you what  

he  says in  regard  to  th is  1 .7  and  maybe tha t  i s  where  the  

rehab i l i ta t ion  come f rom.   He says:  20 

“The le t te r  fu r the r  addressed i t se l f  to  the  h is to r i ca l  

l i ab i l i t i es  o f  Opt imum which  were  es t imated R1.7  

b i l l i on .   The depar tment  wou ld  be  pr ivy  to  cer ta in  o f  

the  l iab i l i t i es .   Any company  or  en t i t y  wh ich  

embarks  on  min ing  is  supposed to  p rov ide  f inanc ia l  
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guarantees to  the  depar tment  to  make prov i s ion  fo r  

f inances to  rehab i l i ta te  the  env i ronmenta l  

degradat ion  wh ich  may be caused by  m in ing . ”  

Now I  shou ld  add tha t  Dr  Ramont ja  tes t i f ied  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  he  d id  no t  wr i te  th is  le t te r.   In  the  

a f f idav i t  he  exp la ins  a  paragraph  wh ich  he  d id  no t  wr i te  

and he re fers  to  f inances –  make prov is ion  fo r  f inances to  

rehab i l i ta te  the  env i ronmenta l  degradat ion .   But  i t  s t i l l  

begs the  quest i on ,  what  does tha t  have to  do  w i th  a 

prepayment  o r  a  p re -purchase tha t  was be ing  mot iva ted  in  10 

the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    In  my submiss ion  th is  had noth ing  to  do  

w i th  the  prepayment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you app ly  your  m ind to  i t  a t  the  

t ime and maybe  enqu i re  as  to  why the  board  shou ld  be  

made to  re ly  on  th is  le t te r,  because tha t  is  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  

the  submiss ion  under  pa ragraph 2 .  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  t ime I  rea l l y  d id  no t  

in te r rogate  the  le t te r  to  tha t  degree.   I  have had the  benef i t  

o f  h inds igh t  and  you w i l l  see  i t  in  my a f f idav i t  o f  s i t t ing 20 

down and,  you know,  ac tua l l y  look ing  a t  the  –  a lso  a t  the  

request  o f  the  Commiss ion  and the  quest ions,  look ing  a t  

the  submiss ions and  re leas ing  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  d id  no t  make  

any sense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we go back to  tha t  submiss ion  
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under  Reso lu t ion  Requ i red .   They requ i re . . .  

“ I t  i s  hereby reso lved tha t  a  request  f rom the  

Depar tment  o f  Minera l  Resources is  he reby noted. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page is  the  reso lu t ion ,  where  is  

the  submiss ion  aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    281,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    281.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    281.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And paragraph  2 .1 .2 :  10 

“The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive . . . ”  

I s  tha t  Mr  Ano j  S ingh?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes a t  the  t ime the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  

Mr  S ingh was ac t ing ,  Mr  Mole fe  was o f f  s ick .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    “The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  together   

w i th  the  Group Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion…” 

Who is  tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    That  was Matshe la  Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    “ . . .and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r. . . ”  

MS DANIELS:    That  was Ano j  S ingh.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Ano j . . .  

“ . . .a re  hereby author i sed to  negot ia te  and conc lude  

a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  ag reement  w i th  the  p roposed  

owners  o f  OCM (Coa l  Supp ly) ”  

Now what  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Tegeta .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  is  tha t  cons is ten t  w i th  what  i s  sa id  

under  the  t i t le  o f  the  submi t ted  because the  t i t le  says:  

“P re-pu rchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  Mine  

(P ty)  L td . ”  

From the  ent i t y. ”  

MS DANIELS:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  cons is ten t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  say  more ,  i s  i t  con f l i c t ing ,  i s  i t  10 

the  same ent i t y  o r  what  i s  go ing  on  here?  

MS DANIELS:    Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka,  I  d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  by  the  way,  d id  you prepare  the  

submiss ion?  Who prepared the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    I  d ra f ted  ve rs ions 1  and 2  and  -  we l l ,  each  

vers ion  wou ld  be  sent  to  Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh.   They  

wou ld  come back add i t ions .   Th is  f ina l  vers ion  tha t  was  

s igned,  there  were  add i t ions  tha t  I  d id  no t  make but  i t  was 

a l ready s igned o f f  by  them.   So there  was no oppor tun i ty   

to  change th ings.   You w i l l  see  tha t  one i t  i s  s igned  by  the 20 

execut ives  I  do  no t  second-guess them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  thank you,  Cha i r.   Okay,  so  there  is  

tha t  –  i t  i s  a  confus ion  or  incons is tency and i t  goes on.   

Le t  us  see,  parag raph 2 .2 :  
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“Execut ive  Summary and Conc lus ion”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you move on,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Dan ie ls ,  your  ear l ie r  vers ions o f  the  

dra f t ,  was the re  any d i f fe ren t  be tween i t  –  o r  those dra f ts  

and the  u l t imate  parag raph 2 .1 .2?  

MS DANIELS:    I  do  no t  –  I  do  no t  have tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you can have a  look i f  there  i s  

someth ing  tha t  w i l l  re f resh your  memory.  

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  we have …[ in tervenes ]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do  no t  th ink  we have your  d ra f t  

vers ions.   

MS DANIELS:    In  the  bund le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  your  a f f idav i t .  

MS DANIELS:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because th is  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have got  them or  you do not  have 

them? 

MS DANIELS:    I  do  have them but  they are  no t  in  the  

bund le .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  they in  another  bund le ,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  Cha i r,  we  do not  have them,  the 

Commiss ion  does  not  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  have you go t  them somewhere?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  do  have them somewhere .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  does the  invest iga tor  have them? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The [ ind i s t inc t ]16 :38  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  th ink  we d id  have i t  in  our  

consu l ta t ion ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  we can proceed wh i le  

somebody is  look ing  fo r  them.   But  what  is  you r  

reco l lec t ion  or  you cannot  remember?  

MS DANIELS:    I  wou ld  no t  remember  the  m inut iae  o f  the  

de ta i l .   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be ,  you know,  un fa i r  to  pu t  them 

before  you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  wa i t  un t i l  we have got  the  

dra f ts .   P roceed,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So,  Ms Dan ie l ,  I  

wanted to  go  to  the  paragraphs under  2 .2 :  

“Execut ive  Summary and Conc lus ion”  

Says:  

“Eskom faces a  supp ly  r i sk  o f  coa l  to  the  Hendr ina  

Power  S ta t ion  o f  5 .5  NTPA by OCM as a  resu l t  o f  

bus iness rescue proceed ings. ”  

Was tha t  cor rec t  a t  the  t ime? 20 

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  was not  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    “ :There  is  a  po ten t ia l  p roposa l  f rom the   

bus iness rescue  prac t i t ioner  suppor ted  by  the  

Depar tment  o f  Minera l  Resources. ”  

Can you exp la in  t ha t  to  the  Cha i rperson?  So the  bus iness  
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rescue p rac t i t ioner  had made a  p roposa l  and tha t  p roposa l  

was suppor ted  by  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Minera l  Resources.   

Do you see tha t  s ta tement ,  2 .2 .2?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  see tha t  bu t  tha t  –  tha t  was not  

re f lec ted  in  the  cor respondence in  tha t  way.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  i f  one takes th is  paragraph,  on  

the  fac t  o f  i t ,  i t  means tha t  there  is  a  p roposa l  on  the  tab le  

by  the  bus iness  rescue prac t i t ioners  o f  OCM and tha t  

p roposa l  i s  suppor ted  by  the  DMR.   So tha t  means what  

fo l lows shou ld  be  Eskom accepts  tha t  p roposa l .  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  end resu l t  shou ld  be  tha t  the  

t ransact ion  tha t  i s  mot iva ted  here  wou ld  be  conc luded w i th  

the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione rs  because they a re  the  

ones who made the  proposa l  wh ich  the  DMR suppor ts .  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Look ing  a t  2 .2 .2 .  

MS DANIELS:    Jus t  look ing  a t  2 .2 .2 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Which  then is  s t i l l  a  puzz lement  

why 2 .1 .2  i s  worded the  way i t  i s  worded because i t  20 

env isages a  p re-purchase f rom a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y.  

MS DANIELS:    Bu t  –  ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And 2 .2 .3  says:  

“The so lu t ion  re la tes  to  a  pre -pu rchase o f  coa l  to  

the  va lue  o f  R1.68 b i l l i on  wh ich  m i t iga tes  supp ly  
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r i sk . ”  

So you read tha t  w i th  2 .1 .1 .   Says we a re  fac ing  supp ly  

r i sk ,  there fore  th is  i s  the  so lu t ion  and i t  seems to  be  the  

so lu t ion  based on the  proposa l  in  2 .2 .2 ,  le t  us  pre-

purchase coa l  to  the  va lue  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on  wh ich  m i t iga tes  

supp ly  r i sk .   Counterpar ty  r i sk  i s  m i t iga ted  by  a  sess ion  o f  

the  coa l  to  Eskom.   The fund ing  o f  the  –  a  pre-purchase 

w i l l  be  made by  an  inventory  work ing  cap i ta l ,  reduct ion  o f  

54  days fo r  approx imate ly  40  days.   I  do  no t  unders tand 

tha t ,  tha t  s ta tement .   10 

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman,  I  am hav ing  the  same 

prob lem hear ing ,  I  cannot  hear  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you canno t  hear  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe go c loser  to  the  m icrophone 

maybe,  Mr  Se leka.  

MS DANIELS:    Sor ry,  you fade in  and out .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  I  fade in  and out?  

MS DANIELS:    Apo log ies .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So wh ich  –  where  wou ld  you l i ke  me to 

repeat?   2 .2 .4 ,  I  was say ing  I  do  no t  unders tand tha t  20 

parag raph,  I  do  no t  know whether  i t  shou ld  de ta in  us .   We 

can move on.  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  the  execut ive  summary is  exp la ined  

in  sor t  o f  Sect ion  3  and then I  a lso  ana lysed  in  my 

a f f idav i t .   So I  th ink  i f  your  quest ions are  does th i s  make 
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sense,  as  I  sa id  i n  my a f f idav i t ,  i t  does not  make sense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  what?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  does not  make sense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  what  way?   In  what  respect?   Wel l ,  

you know,  le t  us  do  th is  f i rs t .    

MS DANIELS:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  you ,  jus t  in  a  nu tshe l l ,  exp la in  to  the 

Cha i rperson,  th is  submiss ion  is  about ,  as  they say,  a  p re-

purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum and i t  seems to  be  based 

on what  they say,  i t  i s  a  p roposa l  by  the  bus iness  rescue 10 

prac t i t ioner  wh ich  proposa l  i s  suppor ted  by  DMR in  respect  

o f ,  what  they say,  i s  a  r i sk  to  the  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  the  

Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .   What  i s  the  so lu t ion  to  tha t  r i sk?   

Le t  us  do  a  pre-purchase or  –  ja ,  they ca l l  i t  a  p re-

purchase o f  coa l  to  the  va lue  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on .  

 Now on the  fac t  o f  i t  –  we l l ,  on  the  one hand i t  i s  

re levant  so  the  submiss ion  looks a t  Opt imum (P ty)  L td ,  the 

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners ,  and  he ta lks  to  tha t .   

 On the  o the r  hand,  and te l l  me  i f  I  am cor rec t  

because I  am exp la in ing  th is  so  tha t  we unders tand i t ,  on 20 

the  o ther  hand,  tha t  parag raph,  wh ich  is  2 .1 .2  says i t  i s  a  

p re -purchase.  

“To negot ia te  and conc lude a  pre -pu rchase o f  coa l  

agreement  fo r  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM.”  

Now tha t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y.   That  w i l l  be  Tegeta .    
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  exp lana t ion  cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  a  succ inc t  way o f  look ing  a t  i t ,  

Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then am I  cor rec t  tha t  one then is  le f t  

w i th  a  confus ion .   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  one then is  le f t  w i th  a  

confus ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Th i s  i s  -  says  to  the  ident i t y  o f  the  

par t y  w i th  whom th is  t ransact ion  is  meant  to  be  conc luded.  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes because OCM,  Opt imum Coa l  Mine  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioner  i s  used qu i te  loose ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  a t  one  o ’c lock .   Those  dra f ts ,  

have they been found?  Do they have 2 .1 .2?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 443.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do they appear  a t  443?  Oh yes ,  I  can 

see 2 .2  seems to  be  same as 2 .1 .2  bu t  maybe not  exact ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  we are  look ing  a t  2 .2 .1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  you  compare  2 .2  a t  page 444 

and  2 .1 .2  up  to  a  cer ta in  po in t  they seem to  be  the  same 20 

but  what  appears  a t  2 .2  a t  page  444,  there  seems to  be  

someth ing  e lse  tha t  has been cu t  o f f ,  exc i sed,  bu t  i t  wou ld  

appear,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  tha t  even in  your  own dra f t  you had  

wr i t ten  tha t  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  –  oh ,  you  d id  no t  

pu t  in  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  bu t  you sa id :  
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“The Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer  together  w i th  the  Group  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  fo r  Genera t i on  are  he reby 

author ised to  negot ia te  and conc lude an agreement  

w i th  the  new owners  o f  Opt imum Coa l  Mine (P ty)  

L td . ”  

That  i s  where  they s topped.   You cont inue and sa id :  

“ In  regard  to  the  prepayment  to  secure  the  

[ ind is t inc t ]  26 .43  pr ice  fo r  a  pe r iod  o f  12  months  o r  

up  to  a  l im i t  o f  1 .68  b i l l i on  wh ichever  i s  the  lesse r. ”  

Can you see tha t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  can.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So i t  wou ld  seem tha t  whoever  se t t led  

tha t  submiss ion  m ight  no t  have in i t ia ted  tha t  word ing  and 

tha t  tha t  word ing  may have come f rom you.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The word ing  I  am re fer r i ng  to… 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s :  

“…to  negot ia te  and conc lude an agreement  w i th  the  

new owners  o f  Opt imum Coa l  Mine. ”  20 

That  i s  the  par t  I  am ta lk ing  about  wh ich  Mr  Se leka had 

drawn a t ten t ion  to  in  regard  to  the  document  a t  page 281.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  I  do  want  

to  po in t  ou t  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  exp la in  i n  more  de ta i l  and  i t  i s  a  

b i t  c learer  tha t  i t  i s  the  new owners  o f  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  I  thought  tha t  was prec ise ly  Mr  

Se leka ’s  concern ,  tha t  when you look a t  the  –  i t  was to  be  

a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  Mine and I  th ink  

Mr  Se leka ’s  po in t  and Mr  Se leka must  te l l  me i f  I  

m isunders tood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka ’s  po in t  I  thought  was one  

wou ld  expect  tha t  the  negot ia t ions  were  go ing  to  be  w i th  

Opt imum Coa l  Mine and not  w i th  the  proposed owners  o f  

Opt imum Coa l .   He was say ing  i t  i s  s t range tha t  2 .2  and 10 

2 .1 .2  on  the  f ina l  submiss ion  says tha t  these o f f i c ia ls  o f  

Eskom ment ioned  there  were  be ing  author i sed to  negot ia te  

w i th  the  proposed owners  ins tead o f  say ing  they must  

negot ia te  w i th  OCM.   That  i s  the  po in t  he  was mak ing .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   What  do  you say –  why d id  you wr i te  

tha t ,  what  was the  ra t iona le  beh ind . . .?  

MS DANIELS:    Those were  my ins t ruc t ions a t  the  t ime,  Mr  

Cha i rman,  and the  manner  i n  wh ich  I  phrased i t  here  

…[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS DANIELS:    I  sa id  those were  my ins t ruc t ions  a t  the 

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    From whom? 

MS DANIELS:    From Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh .   And 
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And why –  d id  you ask  h im why the  

submiss ion  shou ld  ta lk  about  the  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom be ing  

author ised to  negot ia te  w i th  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM 

ins tead o f  negot ia t ing  w i th  OCM i tse l f ,  d id  you ra i se  tha t  

i ssue w i th  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I  don ’ t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i t  wou ldn ’ t  have made sense to  

you.  

MS DANIELS:    Ja I  don ’ t  th ink  I  ra ised the  issue  a t  the  10 

t ime Mr  Cha i rman .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  why wou ldn ’ t  you have ra ised i t ,  

i t  doesn ’ t  make sense.  

MS DANIELS:    Ja,  i t  i s  aga ins t  the  backdrop  o f  the 

meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  o f  November.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  what  was in  tha t  meet ing  tha t  

cou ld  make one unders tand th i s .  

MS DANIELS:    There  was ment ion ,  o r  the  premise  o f  the 

meet ing  a t  the  t ime was the  purchase o f  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  20 

MS DANIELS:    So tha t  was the  on ly  l ink  a t  th is  t ime in  the  

process o f  d ra f t ing ,  because there  was d iscuss ions about  

buy ing  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean we l l  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  i f  you  

have an ag reement  w i th  somebody and somebody  e lse  is  
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l i ke ly  to  take  tha t  en t i t y  over  there  m ight  be  cause  to ta lk  

to  the  proposed owners  w i th  regard  to  the  fu tu re ,  i t  may be 

tha t  tha t  i s  i t ,  bu t  one wou ld  normal ly  have expec ted tha t  

s ince  the  p roposed owners  were  no t  owners  as  ye t  tha t  the  

negot ia t ions  wou ld  be  w i th  the  supp l ie r,  you unders tand  

tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    I  unders tand  tha t ,  and you  know in  

re t rospect  one wou ld  say you now tha t  shou ld  have been  

the  pos i t ion .   I  th ink  because o f  the  meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  o f  

November,  you know jus t  the  le t te r  o f  DMR as ide ,  i f  you  10 

look a t  i t ,  the  d iscuss ion  a t  tha t  meet ing  was the  par t ies  

were  a l ready under tak ing  a  due d i l igence,  they wanted to  

comple te  th is  by  a  par t i cu la r  da te  in  the  fu tu re  bu t  as  i t  

p rogressed you now those documents  were  no t  –  these  

documents  then don ’ t  suppor t  tha t ,  and tha t ’s  why I  am 

say ing  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  when you look a t  the  

documenta t ion  prov ided to  suppor t  h is  pos i t ion  they don ’ t  

rea l l y  t ie  up ,  and tha t ’s  what  I  say?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr  Se leka  I  th ink  we must  take  the  

lunch ad journment .   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  about  e igh t  m inutes  or  n ine  m inutes  

past  one we w i l l  ad journ  and resume a t  ten  past  two.    

 We ad journ .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you cha i r.  
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REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS    

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you ,  thank you DCJ.    Ms 

Dan ie ls  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  submiss ion  tha t  was  

prepared.   Now we are  a t  a  s tage o f  the  prepara t ion  o f  the 

submiss ion ,  the  contents  o f  the  submiss ion .   Th is  

submiss ion  is  p repared in  o rder  to  be  submi t ted .   Now we  

need to  know f rom you is  i t  to  be  submi t ted  to  the  Board  10 

fo r  d iscuss ion  and dec is ion  mak ing?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  was because i t  was a  Round Rob in  i t  

was dec i s ion  mak ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  there  was not  go ing  to  be  a  

meet ing  o f  the  Board?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  subsequent ly  became a  Round  Rob in  

d iscuss ion ,  I  mean a  Round Rob in  approva l  because 

members  o f  the  Board  were  no t  ava i lab le  to  meet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now,  th is  submiss ion  –  I ’ l l  come back 

to  i t ,  i s  be ing  prepared on the  7 t h  o f  December  2015.  20 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  Round Rob in  dec is ion  took p lace  

when?  

MS DANIELS:   I  sen t  ou t  the  documents  on  the  8 t h  o f  

December.   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    To  the  Board  members?  

MS DANIELS:    To  the  Board  members .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  Round Rob in  dec i s ion  was 

made?  

MS DANIELS:    On the  9 t h  o f  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  Board  members  had one day 

not ice?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or  one day  oppor tun i ty  to  cons ide r  

what  was be ing  submi t ted  to  them? 10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  request  tha t  –  I ’m  sor ry  Mr  Se leka,  

there  is  f i rs t  tha t  the  –  in  the  submiss ion  contempla ted  the  

Board  wou ld  no te  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Minera l  

Resources was the  request  f rom Dr  Ramont ja ’s  le t te r  –  in  

Dr  Ramont ja ’s  le t te r  tha t  Eskom shou ld  p lay  an  ac t ive  ro le  

in  p rov id ing  suppor t  fo r  the  pro jec t  to  p roceed? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  d id  tha t  mean,  do  you know? 

MS DANIELS:    No,  no t  a t  tha t  s tage,  i t  jus t  looked l i ke  20 

cons idera t ion  fo r  the  pre -payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  o f  these pa ragraphs  d id  Dr  

Ramont ja  say he  d id  no t  pu t  in  h is  le t te r,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    He d idn ’ t  d ra f t  the  le t te r,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  a l l?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  the  le t te r  was g i ven to  h im,  he  

found i t  on  h is  desk,  and he sa id  he  read i t ,  i t  made  sense 

to  h im,  he  says because the  DMR wou ld  somet imes 

in te rvene to  he lp ,  espec ia l l y  where  jobs are  a t  r i sk  and he  

s igned the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There ’s  a  le t te r  tha t  he  rece ived f rom 

Eskom and I  th ink  i t  must  have  been Mr  Koko as  we l l ,  

where  he  d id  no t  au tho r ise  a  response,  I  th ink  bu t  

somebody e l se  i n  DMR,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  p repared a  

response tha t  was supposed to  be  sent  o f f  on ly  a f te r  h im 10 

author is ing  i t ,  so  i t  must  be  anothe r  le t te r  because th is  one  

has got  h is  s ignature .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H is  s ignature  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  so  Ms Dan ie l s  we were  jus t  

t ry ing  to  p lo t  the  t ime l ine  f rom the  dra f t ing  to  the  

submiss ion  or  c i rcu la t ing  o f  the  submiss ion  to  the  Board  

members  and to  the  dec i s ion  mak ing  by  the  Board 

members .   So,  they ge t  the  submiss ion  f rom you  on the  

8 t h?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And when you send a  submiss ion  to  

them what  do  you ind ica te  in  te rms o f  when the  dec is ion  

shou ld   be  made?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  i t  was the  next  day by  m idday i f  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 62 of 249 
 

poss ib le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And can you reca l l  on  the  8 t h ,  when do 

you –  t ime w ise ,  when do you send the  submiss ion  to  

them? 

MS DANIELS:    I t  was in  the  a f te rnoon.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  they wou ld  have had  to  have 

cons idered i t  ove rn igh t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Make a  dec i s ion .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    By  Round Rob in  on  an R1.6b i l l i on?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P re-payment?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  any one o f  them ra ise  concerns?  

MS DANIELS:    There  were  two Board  members  tha t  sent  

quest ions,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And what  were  –  who a re  those? 

MS DANIELS:    That  was Ms V i rosh in i  Na idoo and Ms 

Mar iam Cass im.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And what  were  the i r  concerns?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  in  Ms Vi rosh in i  Na idoo ’s  case she 

approved the  submiss ion ,  the  f i rs t  l i ne  o f  the  emai l  sa id  I  

approve but  p lease ensure  tha t  th is  goes to  the  IFC,  wh ich  

is  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee ,  i s  i t  w i th in  –  you  
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know make sure  tha t  we adhere  to  the  PFMA approva ls  and 

does th is  need DPE approva l ,  wh ich  is  The Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rp r ises .   Ms Cass im had issues –  her  quest ions  

were  around the  f inanc ia l  const ruc t ion  wh ich  I  sent  to  – 

and the  coa l  p r ic ing  wh ich  I  then sent  to  Mr  Koko and Mr  

S ingh fo r  rep ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     D id  they rep l y?   

MS DANIELS:    They d id  rep ly,  and I  sent  the  rep l i es  tha t  I  

rece ived to  Ms  Cass im on the  morn ing  o f  the  9 t h  o f  

December.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  tha t  in  h is  a f f idav i t  Mr  Koko says,  

in  regard  to  the  dra f t ing  o f  the  –  oh  no tha t ’s  the  le t te r,  I  

th ink  he  conf i rms ,  ask ing  you to  d ra f t  the  le t te r  on  the  4 t h  

o f  December  2015,  tha t ’s  the  le t te r  you dra f t ,  and i t  goes  

to  the  DMR.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t ’s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The dra f t ing  o f  the  submiss ion  i t se l f ,  

you say is  on  the  7 t h .   So,  le t ’s  –  we were  go ing  th rough 

the  contents  o f  th is  submiss ion  and what  we see,  on  the  

face  o f  i t ,  i s  the  convo lu t ion  and confus ion  in  regard  to  the  20 

ident i t y  o f  the  en t i t y  w i th  whom to  do  th is  t ransact ion .   I f  

you  reca l l ,  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you  to  exp la in  th is  to  the  

Cha i rperson,   what  was in  the  m ind o f  –  o r  what  was  

exp la ined to  the  Board  when th is  submiss ion  is  p resented,  

what  i s  exp la ined ,  i s  the  purpose fo r  wh ich  th is  submiss ion  
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was made?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  the  cover ing  no te  jus t  sa id ,  th is  i s  

fo r  the  pre-purchase o f  coa l  –  p re-payment  o f  coa l  in  cash 

fo r  the  amount  o f  R1.68b i l l i on  f rom Opt imum to  Opt imum 

Coa l  Mine and the  suppor t ing  documents  wou ld  have been  

the  submiss ion  and the  l e t te rs  be tween Mr  Koko and Dr  

Ramont ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  now tha t  exp lanat ion ,  where  does  

one f ind  i t ,  i s  i t  in  an  emai l  o r  i s  i t  in  th is  submiss ion? 

MS DANIELS:    I t ’s  in  th is  submiss ion  and …[ in tervenes] .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    About  the  pre -payment  to  Tegeta?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  th ink  i t  was the  pre-payment  to  

Opt imum Coa l  Mine tha t  I  sa id  no t  Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  Opt imum Coa l  Mine?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You ’ re  say ing  i t ’s  in  th is  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  i t  says  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we l l  the re ’s  two th ings he re ,  I ’ ve  

sa id  the  en t i t ies  are  seeming ly  confused – we l l  no t  

confused but  i t ’s  confus ing  in  regard  to  the  ident i t y  o f  the  20 

ent i t ies  to  conc lude the  t ransact ion  w i th .   What  I  want  to  

unders tand,  i s  your  exp lanat ion  to  the  Cha i rperson,  what  

was exp la ined to  the  Board ,  i s  the  purpose o f  th is  

submiss ion ,  what  i s  the  Boar  to ld  and I  apprec ia te  tha t  the  

Board  is  rece iv ing  th is ,  i s  i t  by  emai l?  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Board  is  go ing  to  dec ide  by  way o f  

a  Round Rob in ,  cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  Board  is  no t  go ing  to  have a  

meet ing  to  d iscuss th is  documenta t ion  submi t ted  fo r  i t?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  no t  a t  a l l…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     So ,  they ’ re  go ing  to ,  ind iv idua l l y  send 

you,  in  the i r  approva l  o f  th is  documenta t ion  w i thout  hav ing  

sa t  together  to  d i scuss i t?   10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  what  i s  exp la ined to  the  Board ,  

when th is  document  i s  submi t ted  to  i t?  

MS DANIELS:    Th is  i s  the  submiss ion  fo r  dec i s ion ,  i t  

concerns the  pre-purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  

Mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  in  o ther  words,  there  is  no th ing  e lse  

o f  any consequence tha t  the  Board  was to ld  o the r  than the  

contents  o f  the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  i f  anyone wants  to  know,  what  

was the  Board  to ld ,  i t ’s  what ’s  in  the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  was in  the  documents  tha t  I  sent  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  was no d iscuss ion  ou ts ide  o f  

the  document?  
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MS DANIELS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm,  okay.   Why was i t  no t  necessary  

to  le t  a  mat te r  invo lv ing  such b ig  amounts  –  such a  b ig  

amount  be  dec ided by  way o f  a  Round Rob in  w i thout  the  

benef i t  o f  a  p roper  d iscuss ion  among Board  members?  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  a t  the  t ime,  g i ven the 

t ime o f  year,  i t  was p rac t ica l i t y  you know ostens ib ly  bu t  

there  was a  rush  to  ge t  a  dec is ion ,  so  the  ins t ruc t ion  was,  

send out  the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And whose ins t ruc t ion  was tha t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    There  was a  request  f rom the  o f f ice  o f  Mr  

S ingh,  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r,  to  send i t  ou t  by  Round 

Rob in  and,  you know,  tha t ’s  a lso  when I  a lso  prepared the  

documents  on  tha t  bas is ,  I  a lso  sent  i t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now,  what  was exp la ined as  the  

reason fo r  the  urgency?  

MS DANIELS:    There  ac tua l l y  was no exp lanat ion  fo r  the  

urgency o ther  than,  there ’s  a  th rea t  to  secur i t y  o f  supp ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was there  documenta t ion  re l ied  upon 20 

to  va l ida te  tha t  c la im o f  the  r i sk  o f  coa l  supp ly?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  no t  a t  th is  submiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  tha t  the  on ly  k ind  o f  fac to r  re l ied  

upon is  tha t  OCM has gone in to  bus iness rescue?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  does bus iness rescue –  a  company 

be ing  in  bus iness  rescue prevent  i t  f rom t rad ing?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  does not  and  more  par t i cu la r ly  i f  you  

bear  in  m ind tha t  there  had been a  commi tmen t  a t  the 

meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  o f  November  tha t  the  supp ly  wou ld  

cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and isn ’ t  i t  tha t ,  regard ing  what  

I ’ ve  jus t  asked you,  tha t  Tegeta  i t se l f  was acqu i r ing  coa l  

f rom OCM or  Opt imum Coa l  Mine in  o rder  to  supp ly  to  

Eskom.  10 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  appeared f rom the  documents ,  I  

d id  no t  have d i rec t  knowledge o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d idn ’ t  have d i rec t  know ledge o f  

tha t?  

MS DANIELS:    No but  i t  does –  tha t  was the  con t rac tua l  

a r rangement  i f  you  look a t  the  documenta t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  what  I ’m  say ing  is ,  i f  Tegeta  

cou ld  buy f rom th is  m ine,  Opt imum Coa l  Mine,  no  doubt  

Eskom cou ld  cont inue do ing  so ,  d i rec t l y  f rom the  mine? 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  I  mean,  i t  had a  cont rac t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  reason tha t  i t  was  under  

bus iness rescue was no reason a t  a l l  fo r  the  purposes o f  

th is  p re -payment?  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now,  you know,  we have seen ,  and I  
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want  you to  jus t  exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson,  the  evo lu t ion  

o f  th is  document  w i th  the  amendments  tha t  ge t  to  be  done  

to  i t ,  were  you aware  whether  th is  document  went  ou ts ide  

o f  Eskom for  commentary  by  some th i rd  par t y  and,  tha t  is  

dur ing  the  dra f t ing  p rocess and  then came back to  be  

f ina l i sed w i th  the  changes tha t  were  made and g i ven  to  you 

to  submi t  to  the  Board?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman,  dur ing  the  consu l ta t ion  

w i th  the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga t ion  team,  I  was p resented 

w i th  emai ls  be tween Mr  Er i c  Wood and The Bus inessman 10 

emai l  and I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Koko and Mr  S ingh.   My  

vers ion ,  two o f  the  documenta t ions  ac tua l l y  went  ou ts ide  o f  

Eskom,  i t  came back s igned -we l l  when I  rece ived i t ,  i t  was 

s igned.   I f  you  look  a t  the  d i scuss ion  tha t  happened 

between the  par t ies  i t  was changed f rom a  submiss ion  to  

the  Investment  and F inance  Commi t tee ,  there  was 

in fo rmat ion  added,  the  f inanc ia l  const ruc t ions were  added 

and i t  then came back to  me s igned,  bo th  by  Mr  Koko and  

Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  i f  I  may,  in  regard  to  th is  20 

par t i cu la r  aspect  I ’d  l i ke  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls  to  tu rn  to  

page 443,  tha t ’s  where  we were  re la t i ve  to  the  f i rs t  and the  

second vers ion  o f  the  dra f t  bu t  now,  I  wanted to  v iew i t  fo r  

a  d i f fe ren t  purpose,  443,  a re  you there  Ms Dan ie l s?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am there .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Someth ing  ca tches my eye on page 

444,  I  see tha t  –  i s  tha t  what  you re fer  to  as  your  f i rs t  

d ra f t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  d ra f t  on  the  7 t h  o f  

December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  head ing  under  Execut ive  

Summary is  Round Rob in  submiss ion  to  the  Investment  and  

F inance Commi t tee ,  IFC? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  why is  tha t  I  thought  th is  was a  10 

submiss ion  to  the  Board?  

MS DANIELS:    Mr  Cha i rman ,  when I  rece ived the  

ins t ruc t ion  i t  was  my v iew,  a t  the  t ime,  tha t  th is  was –  the  

Investment  and F inance Commi t tee  is  the  Commi t tee  o f  the  

Board  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  f inanc ia l  mat te rs  and i t  needed –  

and a  dec i s ion  o f  th is  na tu re ,  I  thought  i t  go  to  the  

Investment  and F inance Commi t tee  be fore  i t  goes to  the 

Board  and tha t  i s  why I  s ta r ted  ou t  p repar ing  the  document  

to  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  your  dec i s ion  as  opposed to  an 

ins t ruc t ion  to  you  f rom somebody e lse?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  your  dec i s ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Had you been ins t ruc ted  as  to  –  to  whom 

you were  supposed to  address the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  no t  a t  tha t  s tage,  I  was jus t  g iven the  

content .   You know when –  in  Eskom,  the  te rms Board  was 

used very  loose ly  you know,  so  we ’ re  go ing  to  do  a  

submiss ion  to  Board ,  and they wou ldn ’ t  spec i fy  in  de ta i l .   

So ,  my assumpt ion ,  in  the  f i rs t  ins tance was tha t  th is  

wou ld  go  th rough  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  re ference to  the  Board ,  what  do  

you say about  i t?  10 

MS DANIELS:    I  sa id  i t  –  you know,  in  Eskom i t  was qu i te  

a  loose te rm when we had d iscuss ions,  l i ke  you ’d  hear,  i t  

was dec ided by  the  Board  when  i t  was ac tua l l y  a  sub-

commi t tee  o f  the  Board .   So,  when I  s ta r ted  ou t  w i th  the  

dra f t ,  I  s ta r ted  ou t  on  the  assumpt ion  tha t  i t  wou ld  f i rs t  go 

to  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Now,  how d id  tha t  

ge t  to  be  changed?  

MS DANIELS:    When i t  came back in  vers ion  –  I  th ink  i t  20 

was ve rs ion  th ree ,  i t  was a l ready,  the  s igned,  the  f ina l  

vers ion  i t  came back and to  the  Board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  tha t ’s  the  ve rs ion  one  is  your  

page 444,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    That ’s  cor rec t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  emai l  –  your  emai l  to  Mr  Koko 

is  on  page 443.   So,  you say to  h im,  

 “For  your  rev iew and s ign -o f f ” ,  

 That ’s  Monday 7  December  2015 a t  15h16.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So ,  the  document  you ’ re  send ing  to  h im 

is  on  page 444.   

MS DANIELS:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  head ing ,  i t  re f lec ts  to  be  

submi t ted  to  the  IFC and i t  requ i res ,  on  page 447 10 

paragraph 4 ,   

“Othe r  approva ls  requ i red ,  Pub l ic  F inance  

Management  Act  ob ta ined f rom Nat iona l  Treasury  

and Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr ise  due to  tenure  

and cont rac t  va lue” .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then on page 448 there ’s  an  emai l  

aga in  f rom you to  Mr  Matshe la  Koko,  i t  says :  

 “Vers ion  2  –  V2” .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  th is  i s  s t i l l  addressed 20 

to  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  a t  15h58,  so  you tu rn  the  page,  

the  document  i s  s t i l l  addressed to  IFC and i t  s t i l l  has  a  

requ i rement  o f  Pub l ic  F inance Management  Act  on  page 

452,  paragraph 4 .  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t ’s  sent  o f f  to  h im,  then you tu rn  the  

page to  453,  aga in  s t i l l  on  the  7 t h  o f  December  2015 a t  

16h40.   Now,  p lease exp la in  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  ident i f y  to  

the  Cha i rperson what  you see there?  

MS DANIELS:    There ’s  an  emai l  f rom Bus inessman to  Er ic  

Wood who says:  

“ I  want  the  PFMA approva l  par t  removed,  I  a lso  

th ink  i t  shou ld  be  fu l l  Board  no t  IFC because over  

R1.5b i l l i on” .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  exact ly  i s  he  say ing?  

MS DANIELS:    What  he…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  th is ,  has he  seen 

your  summary or  your  document ,  the  submiss ion?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  appears  tha t  ve rs ion  2  was a t tached to  

tha t  emai l ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  i f  you  look a t  what  i t  says  in  the  

a t tachments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  I  accept  tha t ,  I  want  you to  

conf i rm.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  conf i rm.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  he  has seen tha t  he  has seen i t?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  I  can  on ly  conf i rm f rom what  he  

wr i tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  accept  tha t ,  based  

on…[ in tervenes] .  
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MS DANIELS:    Based on what  he  sa id ,  he  must  have seen  

what  I  had wr i t ten .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And is  he  mak ing  submiss ions –  i s  he  

mak ing  suggest ions o f  what  to  be  removed and wha t  to  be 

amended?  

MS DANIELS:    Wel l ,  tha t  –  I  wou ldn ’ t  say  those a re  

suggest ions I  th ink  those are  more  l i ke  ins t ruc t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  he  says he  has ident i f ied  a  pa r t  

tha t  he  says shou ld  be  removed? 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And he says tha t  i t  shou ld  no t  be  

addressed to  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee  i t  

shou ld  be  addressed to  the  fu l l  Board?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   D id  you –  do  you  

know how the  dra f t  submiss ion  wou ld  have landed  w i th  Mr  

Er ic  Wood and Bus inessman? 

MS DANIELS:    I  on ly  know tha t  f rom the  emai ls  t ha t  I ’ ve  

been shown.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You on ly  know f rom? 

MS DANIELS:    F rom the  emai ls  tha t  I ’ ve  been shown f rom 

the  invest iga t ing  team.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  my quest ion  is ,  do  you  know i t  

wou ld  have gone to  them,  th is  document?  
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MS DANIELS:    Okay,  i t  was e i ther  fo rwarded f rom Mr  Koko 

or  Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why do you say  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The invest iga tor  doesn ’ t  have an emai l  

to  tha t  e f fec t .  

MS DANIELS:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  why I ’m ask ing  whethe r,  do  you 

know? 

MS DANIELS:    Oh okay,  no  I  don ’ t  know then how i t  go t  to  

them but  tha t ’s  my assumpt ion .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  so  fa r  wha t  we see f rom the  emai ls  

i s  tha t  i t  i s  you and Mr  Koko exchang ing  the  d ra f t .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  e i ther  you  or  he  cou ld  have  sent  i t  

ou t?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you send i t  ou t?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  you aware  o f  th is  ema i l  a t  the 

t ime?  20 

MS DANIELS:    No,  I  was not  aware  o f  the  emai l s  a t  the 

t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  I  wan t  to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  Bus inessman emai l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  in fopor ta l1 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  in fopor ta l1 ,  were  you not  aware  o f  i t  

a t  tha t  t ime? 

MS DANIELS:    I ’m  ta lk ing  about  the  emai l  exchange,  Mr  

Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  bu t  the  ema i l  address you were?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   When d id  you become aware  

o f  the  emai l  exchange? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The invest iga tors  showed  

me…[ in te rvenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  the  Commiss ion .  

MS DANIELS:    O f  the  Commiss ion  and in  2018 as  we l l ,  

Amu Bongan i  sen t  me some quest ions,  I  th ink  tha t  was the  

f i rs t  t ime I  became aware .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In?  

MS DANIELS:    2018.  

CHAIRPERSON:    2018,  okay,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Dan ie ls ,  then –  we l l  on  the  dra f t  on  

page 454 I  see s t i l l  there ’s  IFC,  so  IFC hasn ’ t  been 

removed and on page 457 under  parag raph 5  i t  s t i l l  has  a  20 

PFMA,  Nat iona l  Treasury  requ i red ,  approva l  requ i red .   So,  

i t  seems by th is  t ime,  i t  hasn ’ t  come back to  you?  

MS DANIELS:    No,  i t  hasn ’ t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you,  in  fac t ,  do  the  changes f rom 

IFC to  Board ,  d id  you,  u l t imate ly,  do  those changes? 
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MS DANIELS:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Does your  f ina l  d ra f t  –  we l l  who made  

the  f ina l  d ra f t?  

MS DANIELS:    The f ina l  d ra f t  came back s igned  f rom – 

f i rs t  f rom Mr  Koko and then f rom Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    S igned?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  came to  you,  tu rn  to  page 486.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I ’m  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  you there ,  yes  p lease iden t i f y  the 10 

document?  

MS DANIELS:    I t ’s  an  emai l  f rom Matshe la  Koko to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  th is  i s  now on Tuesday 8  

December  2015?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   A t  16h40.   

MS DANIELS:    A t  16h40,  tha t ’s  co r rec t  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  by  th i s  t ime,  th is  document  has no t  

been submi t ted  to  the  Board?  

MS DANIELS:    No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t s  fo rward ing  to  you,  the  emai l  be low.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  emai l  be low is  a l so  f rom Mr  

Matshe la  Koko,  Tuesday December  8 ,  2015 a t  3h57pm i t  

sent  to  –  or  addressed to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh and the  sub jec t  i s  
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the  2015/12/08 RRR Opt imum Coa l  Mine P ty  L td  f ina l  and 

then he says,  

“Boss p lease rece ive  the  a t tached,  s igned 

documents ,  best  regards” ,  

 There  a t  the  top  then i t  ge ts  fo rwarded to  you.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  document  on  the  nex t  page? 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  the  document ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  the  las t  one then is  a  Round Rob in  

submiss ion  to  Board  o f  D i rec tors .  10 

MS DANIELS:    To  the  Board  o f  D i rec tors ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No longer  to  IFC? 

MS DANIELS:    No longer  to  IFC,  tha t  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  paragraph 4  o f  PFMA 

requ i rement?  

MS DANIELS:    Has now been removed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  document  i s  s igned by  Mr  

Koko on 8  December  2015?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  document  o r  submiss ion  you  20 

f ina l l y  c i rcu la ted  to  Board  members?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know whethe r  Mr  S ingh a lso  

s igned i t ,  I  see  he d idn ’ t  s ign  on  th is  one,  i s  the re  another  
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copy tha t  i s  s igned?  

MS DANIELS:    The next  copy  is  the  one tha t  I  used 

because i t  conta ined  Mr  S ingh ’s  s ignatu re .   I f  you  look a t  

page 492,  Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes.  

MS DANIELS:    And then you ’ l l  see  tha t…[ in te rvenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  look ing  a t  497.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t ’s  the  document ,  I  then,  used.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  want  to  go  s l igh t ly  back –  a  l i t t le  10 

back,  I  see on…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  jus t  fo r  my unders tand ing  what  

was the  rank ing  be tween the  CFO and Group Execut ive  

Genera t ion?  

MS DANIELS:   The CFO was the  Execut ive  D i rec to r  on  the  

Board ,  the Chief  Off icer  – Group Execut ive Generat ion was a 

member Exec – of  the Execut ive Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the? 

MS DANIELS:   Execut ive Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes – was the CFO not  part  of  the 20 

Execut ive Commit tee? 

MS DANIELS:   As wel l  but  in terms of  – when you think rank 

the CFO would rank.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  is confusing me because you have – 

we looked at  an emai l  a few minutes ago where I  th ink Mr 
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Koko addressed an emai l  – ja at  page 486 to Mr Singh and 

addressed him as Boss.  

MS DANIELS:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And now at  497 Mr Koko appears to  be the 

last  one to sign in  terms of  what I  take i t  to be hierarchy? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.   I  th ink just  to put  i t  in context  Mr 

Chairman at  th is  point  in t ime Mr Singh was act ing Chief  

Execut ive Off icer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  Mr Koko.  

MS DANIELS:   Mr Singh because Matshela Koko is wri t ing to 10 

Anoj  Singh and cal l ing him Boss.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who – you say Mr Singh was act ing as 

Group CEO? 

MS DANIELS:   Ja Mr Molefe was off  s ick at  that  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  on this document he did not  s ign in 

that  capaci ty at  497? 

MS DANIELS:   No,  no he signed as Chief  Financial  Off icer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  as Chief  Financial  Off icer when you 20 

compare to Group Execut ive Generat ion that  is what I  am 

asking what is the hierarchy? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Between the two of  them? 

MS DANIELS:   There would have been a hierarchy.   The 
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Chief  Financial  Off icer  is actual ly a bi t  h igher than the Group 

Execut ive Generat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  i t  is does not  make the sense that  

one has got  over  the t ime.  One has seen that  usual ly the 

highest  ranking off ic ia l  would be the last  to sign af ter 

everybody has made recommendat ions and then the last  –  

the highest  ranking off ic ia l  then makes the decision.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Whereas here – ja  you have the Chief  

Financial  Off icer before Mr Koko.   Okay so I  guess you – 10 

there is nothing you can – you can say about i t?  

MS DANIELS:   Wel l  you know at  th is stage I  th ink i f  you just  

look at  the emai ls  Mr Koko signed f i rst .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS DANIELS:   I f  you look at  the emai ls in terms of  the t ime 

Mr Koko signed the document f i rst .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were they – were they on the same level  

or were they not  on the same level  or is that  someth ing you 

would not  know? 

MS DANIELS:   I t  is di ff icul t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   The Chief  Financial  Off icer and Group 

Execut ive Generat ion.  

MS DANIELS:   I t  is . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or was one of  them higher than the other 

in terms of  the company hierarchy? 
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MS DANIELS:   In terms of  the – in terms of  the company 

hierarchy the Chief  Financial  Off icer would be h igher.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS DANIELS:   S l ight ly higher.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS DANIELS:   Than the Group Execut ive Generat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay al r ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Ja Ms Daniels because even 

the draf t  is in that  order.   Mr Singh is f i rst  and then Mr 

Matshela Koko is last  which is what the Chai rperson is 10 

saying.   Normal ly  the – the junior people wi l l  s ign f i rst  and 

pass i t  on to the most  senior person who wi l l  be the last  to 

sign.   Af ter  the document is submit ted to him and i t  is  

explained this is  what i t  means and he is sat isf ied then he 

signs.   That  is the point  he made.  But  you would have 

known who is senior – more senior than the others surely.   

Ms Daniels seeing as the Chief  Financial  Off icer would have 

been more senior? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes that  is what  I  am saying the Chief  

Financial  Off icer is more senior but  I  – I  d id not  actual ly – i f  I  20 

look at  th is now Chairman I  d id not  rea l ly take not ice of  the 

manner in which the document – the signator ies were.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Let  us go sl ight ly back to page 459?  
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MS DANIELS:   P lease say the page again for me? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 459.   So i t  is af ter that  emai l  f rom 

Businessman is I  want  – I  want – now this man wants i t .   I t  is 

not  may I  suggest  – I  want the PFMA approval .   Part  

removed. 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry I  thought you said 459? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r  I  was saying i t  af ter that  emai l .   

Let  us go to 459.   Let  us go to 459?  459 i t  is  on the 8 

December at  7:43 i t  is  an emai l  f rom Mr Koko to Mr Anoj .   

Now there we see Ms Daniels is the thi rd  version – version 10 

3.   Do you see that? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And he wr i tes:  

“FD please receive the sof t  copy as 

discussed.   Warm regards.”  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  you are not  copied there so you – 

would you have had knowledge of  th is exchange? 

MS DANIELS:   No not  that  I  can see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then there is the – I  am not  sure whether 20 

this is version 3 on page 468 because he st i l l  has IFC and 

he st i l l  has paragraph 4.   But  i t  d id not  come to you?  Wel l  

you are not  copied in that  emai l .  

MS DANIELS:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And go to page 464.   There are emai ls  
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there and the bot tom one is the one we have read between 

Mr – the one of  Mr Koko to Mr Anoj  Singh where he says:  

“FD please receive the sof t  copy.”  

That  is at  the bot tom.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then we go up and the middle of  the 

page there is another emai l  f rom – i t  is Pol ly.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now I  cannot pronounce that  name 

Visenet .  10 

MS DANIELS:   No real ly the Mr.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    

“On behal f  of  Anoj  Singh.”  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The 8 December 2015 11:03 am and i t  is  

addressed to Boi tumelo Mapasa now at  Regiments – 

[00:07:08]  at  Regiments.   Subject  i t  is the same subject  

Opt imum Coal Mine Pty Ltd V3 and i t  says:  

“FYI – for your interest . ”  

So what is happening here? 20 

MS DANIELS:   This  is going f rom the off ice Pol ly is the 

Execut ive or was the Execut ive assistant  to Mr Singh and 

this looks l ike i t  is going f rom Pol ly to someone at  

Regiments.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So Pol ly is an employee at  Eskom? 
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MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   This t ime – is a PA – wel l  I  do not  know 

is he a PA – is she? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes she was as you can see i t  says here 

Execut ive Assistant .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Execut ive Assistant .  

MS DANIELS:   Off ice of  the Chief  Financial  Off icer Mr Anoj  

Singh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh I  see.   So sending the document to 

Regiments.  10 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now does Regiments have anything to do 

wi th th is document? 

MS DANIELS:   Not  at  th is stage but  you wi l l  see later when 

i t  comes back f rom – when i t  comes back signed the – the 

f inancial  ver i f icat ions sect ion Regiments is included as the 

party who did the f inancial  ver i f icat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Financial  cert i f icat ion.  

MS DANIELS:   Ver i f icat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ver i f icat ion.  20 

MS DANIELS:   By – by independent  part ies.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Give us the page number? 

MS DANIELS:   You wi l l  f ind i t  on page 491.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh under paragraph 3.7? 

MS DANIELS:   3 .7.   My apologies you wi l l  see Regiments 
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Capi tal  Propriety Limited added in there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now let  us go back to page 64… 

CHAIRPERSON:   What is  the point  you were making about  

page 497? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is 491 – 497 yes.   He is  saying under 

paragraph 3.7 

“Regiments Capi tal  Propriety Limited is 

indicated there as ver i f icat ion by 

independent party. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Ms Danie ls let  us go back to page 

464.   And now did you know about Regiments as you go back 

to page 464? 

MS DANIELS:   Not  in th is context  Mr Singh because I  – Mr 

Chairman because they did not  have any input  into the 

document to my knowledge.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Ah because I  see on page 463 under 

the paragraph 3.7 ver i f icat ion by independent party they say 

not  appl icable there.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  what was to be ver i f ied i f  there was 

anything to be ver i f ied?  What does that  entai l?  

MS DANIELS:   Usual ly i f  – usual ly  i f  in submissions i f  there 

had been an external  evaluat ion whether i t  be f inancial ,  due 

di l igence you know where an external  party say for instance 
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a Deloi t tes or  somebody was consul ted we would then in 

submissions indicate who had been provided – who had done 

the ver i f icat ion.  And that  is why i t  says i f  appl icable.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Was i t  appl icable here? 

MS DANIELS:   Not  to my knowledge. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay but  just  th ink about i t .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Here is a submission for a pre-payment 

to be made.  Eskom wants to make a pre-payment R1.6 

bi l l ion.   What need – what – how does ver i f icat ion come to 10 

play – come into play there? 

MS DANIELS:   Not  – not  real ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  want  you to help us understand.  

MS DANIELS:   Ja.   Not  real ly Mr Chairman because the 

basis for  the – the basis for the submission was there is a  

supply issue and that  Eskom would be the only qual i f ied 

ent i ty to say there is a supply issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   So th is document is sent  to  

Regiments on the 8t h remember you said you would have 

sent  the document to the board members on that  day for a 20 

Round Robin resolut ion the next  day.   I  do not  know how 

much of  ver i f icat ion – how much is required in  the 

ver i f icat ion process? 

MS DANIELS:   Wel l  g iven the t ime came near Mr Chairman 

there would have been not  much that  they could do.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So let  us – let  us move on.   I  see 

on page 469 this – at  the top of  the page – at  the bot tom is  

the same emai ls we have read – at  the top you get  Boi tumelo 

Mapasa which is the one at  Regiments on the 8 December 

2015 and she sends the emai l  to Er ic Wood and cc’d 

Mohammed Bobat .   Did you know these persons and – sorry 

just  before you answer i t  seems to be forwarding version 3 of  

the document received f rom Pol ly.   You see that? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know Mr Eric Wood and 10 

Mohammed Bobat? 

MS DANIELS:   No I  d id not .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know them af ter th is t ransact ion? 

MS DANIELS:   I  met Mr Er ic Wood as I  test i f ied the last  t ime 

Mr Chairman at  Mr Essa’s off ices where he int roduced 

himsel f .   Mohammed Bobat I  th ink I  met  at  one of  the COCTA 

Round Tables that  we had with them. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Turn to page 474.   There is another emai l  

there.   474 you see that? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  see that .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   From Mr Mohammed Bobat Tuesday 8 

December 2015 at  12:28 and i t  is sent  to Fahima Badat that  

is the version 3 on the face of  i t .   As i t  appears did you know 

Fahima Badat? 

MS DANIELS:   No I  d id not .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Anyt ime thereaf ter? 

MS DANIELS:   No I  d id not  meet her.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you do not  know this person at  al l?  

MS DANIELS:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You would not  know in which company 

she is? 

MS DANIELS:   No I  do not ,  not  f rom here.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You turn that  page then there is an 

execut ive summary which on the face of  i t  would have been 

what was being exchanged and i t  has some track changes 10 

f rom track changes and one of  which is on page 478 and 

there is a comment there against  paragraph 4.   The comment 

says:  

“Looks l ike he wants this out ”   

Paragraph 4 which says  

“Other approvals requi re the Publ ic Finance 

Management Act . ”  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  can see that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see that .   So whoever inc luded this  

comment here seems to have known what Businessman 20 

wanted.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes that  is what i t  looks l ike.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And on page 480 please ident i fy the 

document? 

MS DANIELS:   I t  is an emai l  f rom Fahima Badat  to Anoj  
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S ingh and copying Eric Wood and Mohammed Bobat and 

here i t  says:  

“Subject  2015 RRR Opt imum Coal Mine Pty 

Limited f inal . ”  

And i t  reads:  

“Dear Anoj ,  p lease f ind the Opt imum Coal 

Mine board memo.   Thank you,  Regards 

Fahima Badat. ”  

And this looks l ike a Regiments signature – Regiments 

Capi tal  s ignature.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So that  15:28 – twenty eight  minutes past  

three and i t  was sent  to them from Pol ly the Execut ive  

Assistant  of  Mr Anoj  Singh on the same date at  11:03 am – 

three minutes past  eleven.   Just  before hal f  past  three they 

send back the document and they say i t  is f ina l .   You then 

get  i t  f rom Mr Koko signed by him – wel l  he f i rst  sends i t  to 

Mr Singh.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes he does.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On page 486.   Just  short ly af ter that  3:57 

pm.  Then the board makes a decision on this.  20 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  i t  has… 

MS DANIELS:   The next  day.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry I  may have lost  you Mr Seleka.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  what page are you now with the board – 

whether the board made a decision – what page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh the page for the board decision.   I  

have not  reached there yet  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  thought  maybe you were at  that  

page ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No you are – you are on t rack Chai r.   Ms 

Singh – Ms Danie ls – I  beg your pardon.   You then – do we 

have your emai l  to the board?  But  anyway you send this  

submission to the board.   I t  seems to be in the evening of  

the 8 December because only at  16:44 – oh sorry at  16:41 

when does i t  come to you?  I t  comes to you… 

MS DANIELS:   I t  comes to me at   

ADV SELEKA SC:   At  16: :40.  

MS DANIELS:   16:40.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   From Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  486? 

MS DANIELS:   And then 16:  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  at  486? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   At  486 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The emai l  f rom Mr  Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  comes to you and then at  492 – at  492 

you get  the one s igned.   What are you – what is  th is  – what 

is that  emai l  at  page 492? 

MS DANIELS:   492 is the signed document by Mr Singh wi th 

the covering emai l  by Ms Barnard f rom his off ice which says:  10 

“Hel lo Suzanne can you please assist  wi th  

the Round Robin to the board?  Kind Regards 

Maya. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  is th is not  the f i rst  t ime you are 

get t ing a request  for a Round Robin by the board? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes that  is correct .  For the board not  the . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  for the IFC.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:   Oh I  see the di fference.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because the document has now changed 

f rom IFC to the board.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because Businessman said I  want i t  to 

be submit ted to the board.  
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MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  IFC.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  comes f rom Maya Barnard.   Please te l l  

the Chai rperson who is she? 

MS DANIELS:   Maya Barnard was the General  Manager in 

the off ice of  the Chief  Financial  Off icer.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Of  Mr Anoj  S ingh.  

MS DANIELS:   Of  Mr Anoj  Singh yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And this is now the f inal  s igned 10 

document? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you are being asked to assist  wi th a 

Round Robin to the board.  

MS DANIELS:   To the board that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now on page 498 we see that  same emai l  

f rom Ms Barnard – Maya Barnard but  then at  the top of  the 

page is your emai l .   On the 8 December 16:44 you wri te the 

emai l  to Ms Maya Barnard to Mr Anoj  Singh but  I  th ink you 

just  repl ied to al l  of  them because they are al l  in her emai l .  20 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  repl ied to al l  and asked i f  the Chairman 

has been not i f ied or do I  have to request  him to al low. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.   Now expla in th is because I  thought  

the Chai rperson had asked you to convene – to assis t  in the 

draf t ing and to convene a board meet ing on the 7t h the day 



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 93 of 249 
 

before? 

MS DANIELS:   But  – yes he did ask for a meet ing.   This is 

di fferent  because i t  is Round Robin so I  just  wanted to make 

i t  sure and a l l  a long we had been doing a Round Robin to 

the IFC now we doing a board submission.   A ful l  board 

submission rather  than a board sub-commit tee submission.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So was there a response to your  emai l?   

I  see you have turned the page to 499.    

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink Ms Barnard and I  spoke Mr Chairman 

rather than emai led given the t ime of  the day and then I  see 

Mr Singh did respond:  

“Please ensure that  at tachments referred to in the memo are 

also ci rculated.”  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  he is not  answering your  

quest ion? 

MS DANIELS:   No,  no that  is why I  am saying I  th ink that  Ms 

Barnard and I  spoke.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You th ink you would have had a 20 

telephone.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Talk wi th her.   So thereaf ter you have 

sent  that  to the board? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  d id.   I  am just  not  sure of  the t ime.   But  
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i f  you – ah here i t  is.   I f  you go to page 524 Mr Chairman.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   524.    

MS DANIELS:   I  sent  i t  out  at  –  on Tuesday evening at  

17:52.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is an emai l  Tuesday 8 December 

2015 at  17:52 wel l  that  is  eight  minutes before six.   And i t  is  

sent  to board members.   Subject  is Urgent  Request  to 

approve the pre-purchase of  coal  f rom Opt imum Coal Pty 

Ltd.  

“Good evening board members,  the Chairman 10 

of  the board hereby requests that  you 

consider the at tached submission together  

wi th the at tachments inc luded in th is emai l  

for your approval  [00:24:09]  non-approval .   

K indly forward your signed resolut ions by 

12:00 tomorrow 9 December 2015 to the 

off ice of  the Company Secretary. ”  

So we are on the 7 t h today – the 7 December 2020.  This is 

the anniversary of  these exchanges here f ive years later.   

And did you get  the approval  f rom the board members? 20 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  d id Mr Chai rman.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  you did say Ms Verushni  Naidoo 

ra ised a concern – wel l  not  a  concern said:   I  am approving 

but  wanted the matter to be referred to IFC.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes she did.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Was that  done? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  d id so.   I  then convened a meet ing for 

8:30 on the 9 December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the 9 December you convened an IFC 

meet ing? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So when would they have been not i f ied 

that  there should be a meet ing? 

MS DANIELS:   I  cal led them immediate ly af ter Ms Verushni  

Naidoo’s emai l  because I  th ink i t  was on the same – i t  was in  10 

the same t ime per iod.   Later in the evening.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the 8t h? 

MS DANIELS:   On the 8 t h.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see there are emai ls on page 537.    

MS DANIELS:   Yes Mr Chai rman i f  you look at  5 – actual ly 

545 Mr Verushni  Naidoo responded at  6:30 in the evening.   

Oh no sorry I  have got  [00:26:10] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you say 545? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No my apologies I  got  the sequence 

incorrect .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  have referred you to 537 – 537.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink she has ment ioned qui te  a few 

pages.   545 was one of  them is i t  not? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes okay.   Mr Seleka is referr ing me to 537 

which is much easier.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So should we go to 537? 

MS DANIELS:   Yes.   I  th ink i t  is  a dupl icat ion of  the 

documentat ion later on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is i t  a dupl icat ion?  Ja you can pick up 

the sequence – let  us see – okay are you looking for  the 

emai l  where you not i fy ing the IFC members? 

MS DANIELS:   No your  quest ion was about Mr Verushni  

Naidoo.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:   Quest ioning so she sent  an emai l  that  10 

evening.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no I  th ink i t  was the page you had 

referred the Chai rperson to.  

MS DANIELS:   Oh was I  correct? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS DANIELS:   My apologies – my apologies Mr Chai r  i t  is  

just  a lot  of  documents.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so that  was page – wel l  I  see i t  on 

page 4 – I  mean 549.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 549 where she wr i tes to you 8 

December at  19:30 i t  says:  

“Hi  I  conf i rm my support  the Round Robin kind ly 

ensure  

1.  Al l  governance issues are compl ied wi th in  
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the PFMA and other  statutory regulat ions as 

they wi l l  require consent f rom DPE that  IFC 

commit tee has approved the purchase.   

Session cont racts are in place for the coal . ”  

2.  So two is the one that  IFC commit tee has 

approved the purchase.   Do you st i l l  need 

me to sign the document?  I  do not  have 

access to a pr inter  just  now.  Regards 

Verushni”  

Is that  the emai l  you were looking for? 10 

MS DANIELS:   That  is the emai l  I  referred to Mr Chairman 

and this is what I  then used to convene the meet ing the next  

morning at  8:30.   I  cal led the – the board members.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Just  one point  before I  move on.   Was i t  

your emai l  where you asked is the Chairperson aware of  th is 

to Mr Singh and Mr Koko and Boi tumelo.   But  then you when 

you send an emai l  to the board members you say:  

“ I t  is the Chairperson’s request . ”  

Is i t  because you knew the Chairperson had now agreed that  

that  is the route to fo l low? 20 

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  would have phoned him in between.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   The reason I  am asking you that  is  

because you saw in his aff idavi t .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   This morning he says you convened that  
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meet ing.  

MS DANIELS:   No I  would not  have convened the meet ing 

out  of  my own vol i t ion.   But  because i t  was a Round Robin 

Mr Chair  I  would have phoned him and said this is now a 

Round Robin you had asked for the meet ing may I  go ahead? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So on page 550 Kassiem or Kasim.  I  

th ink you have referred to th is ear l ier.    

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    And i t  was a lso on the 

8t h of  December 2015 at  21:28.  10 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Twenty-eight  minutes past  nine.   And 

she is wri t ing to you and Mr Anoj ,  asking quest ions there.   

You say these quest ions were answered? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  they were answered.   I  see we do have 

the emai ls wi th the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 552.  

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    552.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is where I  am.  They came the next  20 

morning and I  then forwarded this to Ms Kasim.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  is th is – is th is emai l  – because you 

need to ident i fy  i t  f i rst  – is th is emai l  an answer to 

Ms Kasim? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  th is is the answer.   On 552,  th is would 
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be the answer to Ms Kasim’s quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  i t  comes on the 9 t h of  December at  

nine minutes past  nine.    

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    When did IFC meet? 

MS DANIELS :    At  08:30 the morning on the 9 t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And for how long did they meet? 

MS DANIELS :    I  th ink that  meet ing was about hal f  an hour.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And how did the meet ing take place? 

MS DANIELS :    I t  was a telephonic meet ing.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    So the meet ing was no in person? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  i t  was not  in person.   I t  was a telephone 

conference.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did anyone of  them compla in about the 

short  not ice,  ext remely short  not ice given? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  there were no complaints.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Who are the members of  IFC? 

MS DANIELS :    The members were Mark Pamensky who 

recused himsel f  because he was the Director of  Oakbay.   

Mr Pat  Naidoo,  Ms Venete Klein and I  th ink Mr Khosa.   20 

Mr Zethemba Khosa.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Did you arrange the telephone 

conference? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id arrange the telephone conference.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now the outcome – just  give me the t ime 
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again.   Date? 

MS DANIELS :    I  th ink i t  was at  08:30.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   So this – i f  you took about 30-

minutes,  these answers would have come af ter the fact .  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The outcome of  IFC, what was i t?  

MS DANIELS :    The outcome of  the IFC meet ing was 

recommend approval  to the board,  to approve the pre-

purchase of  Opt imum Coal.   I  mean, the pre-purchase 

payment to Opt imum Coal Mine.   My apologies for. . .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Did you keep the minutes of  IFC? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Let  us see.   Turn to page 584.   Or 582.   

I t  seems to be the same thing.   Let  us see.   You wi l l  te l l  me.  

Page 582 has a watermark Draf t  on i t  and then there is 584.    

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Are you there? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you look at  the two – the documents 

on those two pages? 20 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  the one is the draf t  minute that  I  sent  

out  and then the. . .   My apologies.   Page 582 is the draf t  that  

I  sent  out  and 584 would be the minutes approved as signed 

off  by the chairperson of  that  meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So I  see that  then. . .   Ja,  the 



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 101 of 249 
 

meet ing,  9 December 2015 and at  08:30.   And i t  ended, page 

586,  closure.  

“There wi l l  be no further issues.   The chai rman 

thanked al l  for at tendance” 

 And the proceedings ended at  09:00.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So they have approved. . .   Anything more 

on this IFC outcome? 

MS DANIELS :    There was only that  mot ivat ion that  I  include 

in my – the sal ient  points in my aff idavi t  about  Mr Naidoo 10 

who is the chai rman of  the meet ing,  set t ing out  the reasons 

for the mot ivat ion for approving the recommendat ion to the 

board.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  you say i t  is in your aff idavi t?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  i t  is.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Let  us see.   Chairperson,  i t  is on page 

286.   Page 286.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You found i t  Ms Daniels? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You say the sal ient  points.   Anything of  

s igni f icance here you wish to  draw to Chai rperson’s 

at tent ion?  Sorry,  the document ,  just  for purposes of  

ident i f icat ion is dated 9 December 2015.   Eskom Board of  

Di rectors,  IFC proceedings,  December 2015.   
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MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The t i t le is:   Round-Robin Resolut ion.   

Ti t le of  submission:   Pre-purchase of  coal  f rom OCM.  At  the 

bot tom end is:   Thank you.   And the name appears there:   

Chad Naidoo.    

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    Mr Chai rman, I  th ink the most  sal ient  point  

for  me the business case for pre-purchase of  coal  which is 

paragraph 3 on page 286 where i t  says:  10 

“The business case for pre-purchase of  coal  for both 

Hendrina and Amot to be robust  and strong,  the  

cash f lows are managed and absorbed by good 

industry management of  stockpi les,  to reduce 

holding days so there is no r isk to e lect r ic i ty  

product ion and the prof i tabi l i ty of  the proposal  is  

noted.   The actual  gain should be r ing fenced and 

reported when i t  is real ised. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Which paragraph number were you 

reading f rom? 20 

MS DANIELS :    I  was reading f rom paragraph number three.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Number three.   Wel l ,  let  me read this  

document Chai r  very quickly.   The document says:  

“Resolut ion as submit ted is supported and approved.  

Sal ient  points f rom not ing and highl ighted in yel low 
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on the at tached submission document:  

1.  OCM and the Companies Act ,  the BOD.. . ”  

 Wel l ,  I  suppose that  is the Board of  Di rectors? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .approved and wi l l  support  and al low OCM to 

migrate f rom the status of  business rescue to that  of  

a growing concern.”  

 Now OCM here cannot be Tegeta.    

MS DANIELS :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because Tegeta is under business 

rescue.  

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

“ . . . to migrate on the status of  business rescue to 

that  of  a growing concern.  

Thei r  fu l l  r ights,  responsibi l i t ies and accountabi l i t ies 

wi l l  be as per the Companies Act .  20 

They plan to use the pre-purchase proceeds to 

address thei r  now l iabi l i ty and l iquidi ty chal lenges.  

This wi l l  be a posi t ive development,  both for OCM 

and for Eskom, which wi l l  address the present  day 

contractual  ob l igat ions and create a plat form for the 
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future susta inabi l i ty of  mutual  t rade,  business and 

job cont inui ty for fe l low South Af r icans.  

2.  Despi te of  the proposed solut ion,  OCM 

undertakes to  increase the ir  t ransformat ion 

accountabi l i ty and responsibi l i ty f rom 30% to 51% 

ownership.   This is a posi t ive development.   I t  is  

noted and acknowledged. ”  

 And I  wi l l  leave three which I  have read.   Paragraph 4 

says:  

“4.  The posi t ive outcome f rom the jo int  10 

management solut ion of  Eskom and OCM is noted 

and acknowledged as a nat ional  achievement.  

I t  a l lows for business cont inui ty and securi ty of  jobs,  

the securi ty of  e lect r ic i ty product ion and two 

nat ional  key-point  power stat ions,  Hendr ina and 

Amot.   I  am sure South Afr ica and customers wi l l  

send thei r  appreciat ion and al l  our customers.  

5.  A further recommendat ion is that  the chairman 

of  Eskom and chai rman of  Glencore jo int l y  

communicate i ts achievement to South Af r ica and 20 

the internat ional  community.  

Thank you.   Pat  Naidoo. ”  

 Now Glencore is not  Tegeta? 

MS DANIELS :    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Glencore was the owner of  Opt imum 
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Coal  Holdings.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Which was a holding company of  

Opt imum Coal Mine.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct  Mr Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you see th is  note? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So this note related to Glencore? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And Opt imum? 10 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So in  the mind of  IFC, th is resolut ion for  

the prepayment of  coal  was in relat ion to Opt imum? 

MS DANIELS :    To Opt imum Coal Mines,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And not  Tegeta? 

MS DANIELS :    Not  Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did the board see this? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  I  d id send i t  to  the board subsequent ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because I  have seen the Parl iamentary 

Port fo l io Commit tee,  Ms Vi roshini  Naidoo says she never 20 

received the IFC outcome from you. 

MS DANIELS :    No,  I  would have sent  i t  out  because she 

speci f ical ly asked for i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    She speci f ical ly  asked for i t?  

MS DANIELS :    I  mean, she speci f ical ly asked for the 
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meet ing.   So I  would have sent  the minutes of  the meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now Ms Daniels,  th is meet ing of  IFC 

ends at  nine . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DANIELS :    Nine o’c lock.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    09:00.   When do you receive. . .   Wel l ,  

there are two quest ions in my mind.   One is,  when did you 

send to the board?  You had sent  to the board. . .   Ja,  on the 

8t h.  

MS DANIELS :    On the 8 t h in the. . .   On the 8t h in the evening 

Mr Chai rman.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Then there was Ms Naidoo saying:   

Let  IFC look at  th is.  

MS DANIELS :    Let  IFC look at  th is .   I  convened that  

meet ing.   The documents had al ready gone out .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    So when.. .   Or you want to answer f i rst?   

Let  me give you a chance to answer.  

MS DANIELS :    So I  sent  out  the draf t  minutes immediate ly 

because I  was typing as we were talk ing and I  sent  – i t  20 

would have probably would have been within the hour  of  the 

9 t h.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Now, can you recal l?  When do you 

receive a response f rom the board members in regard to th is 

part icular submission?  And I  am now talk ing now the date 
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and the t ime.  

MS DANIELS :    Wel l ,  effect ive ly,  Mr Chairman, the approval  

started arr iv ing on the evening of  the 8 t h.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sorry,  I  am miss ing there? 

MS DANIELS :    I  sa id,  e ffect ively,  the approval  started 

arr iv ing on the evening of  the 8 t h because the f i rst  approval  

was actual ly f rom Ms Naidoo.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  the one where she approves 

hersel f?  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   That  is on the 8 t h? 

MS DANIELS :    On the 8t h,  in the evening.   And then,  I  th ink,  

Dr Ngubane on the morning . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 571.  

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  then i f  she approved and she asked 

that  i t  be considered by IFC, i t  would have been a formal i ty 

for her to receive i f  the outcome f rom IFC? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  but  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Because she has al ready registered thei r  20 

approval .  

MS DANIELS :    She has al ready registered the approval .   I  

see that  Dr Ngubane sent  his approval  at  08:34.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On the 9 t h? 

MS DANIELS :    On the 9 t h,  yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is the day thereaf ter,  af ter the 8 t h.  

MS DANIELS :    And actual ly,  Dr  Naidoo also approved the 

resolut ion on the 8 t h of  December at  22:56.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chairperson,  that  is page 569.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So he approves four minutes before 

eleven at  night .    

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Dr Ngubane sends his approval  at  08:34 

the next  morning.    10 

MS DANIELS :    That  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    IFC is in session.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Did you say his  approval  is  at  

569? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    His is at  page 571.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Thanks.   H’m. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   The one at  569 is Dr Pat  Naidoo’s.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And then the one of  Mr Romeo 

Khumalo.  20 

MS DANIELS :    That  is at  572 Mr Chai rman and that  is  

approved at  09:05.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On page 572.   Did Ms Pat Naidoo also 

approved this? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is what I  said to you,  Dr 
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Naidoo. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  no.   Sorry.   Mr Mark Pamensky.  

MS DANIELS :    No,  Mr Mark Pamensky recused himsel f  

because he was a director of  Oakbay at  the t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So even at  board level ,  he did not  take 

part  in the vot ing? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  he did not  take part  in the vot ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In the approval .  

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    So then by the t ime IFC is. . .   Wel l ,  I  do 10 

not  know whether  they del iberated on this.   They are busy in 

a tender conference and the chai rperson is Mr Pat  Naidoo 

because Mr Mark Pamensky has excused himsel f .   Mr Pat  

Naidoo has already sent  you his approval  the night  before.   

He is chair ing IFC the next  morning but  the decision is  

al ready made.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   So what happens to th is  

R 1.68 bi l l ion? 

MS DANIELS :    I t  then becomes.. .   I t  was approved in  the 20 

f i rst . . .  I t  f i rst  was approved by al l  the members and i t  then. . .   

I  am not  sure how i t  happened Mr Chairman but  i t  then 

became a guarantee discussion.   The approval  was for 

prepayment of  cash payment to  OCM.  And then the 

discussions on the 10t h,  started around convert ing this into a 
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guarantee.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Just  before that  conversion.   What 

did the board decide on the execut ion of  i ts decision to 

prepay OCM and Dr Pat  Naidoo suggest ing,  let  us do a jo int  

statement.   Chai rman of  Eskom and chai rman of  Glencore.   

How is that  – or was that  executed? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  the jo int  statement was not  executed 

Mr Chai rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And what d id the board decide on the 

execut ion of  the prepayment? 10 

MS DANIELS :    The prepayment was approved.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Was. . .?  

MS DANIELS :    Approved.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   How did they execute i t  now? 

MS DANIELS :    Wel l ,  that  was lef t  up to the Chief  Financial  

Off icer,  the delegat ion.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  what  was the board resolut ion?  

Maybe I  should ask you that .  

MS DANIELS :    I t  was approval  of . . .   I  just  need to get  i t .   So 

i t  was. . .    20 

“The Group Chief  Execut ive together wi th the Group 

Execut ive for Generat ion and Chief  Financial  Off icer  

are hereby author ised to negot iate and conclude the 

pre-purchase of  coal  agreement wi th the proposed 

owners of  Opt imum Coal,  OCM.”  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Give us the page number,  please? 

MS DANIELS :    This is. . .   I  am reading f rom page 577. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    577.   Thank you.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

“The agreement shal l  be subject  to the necessary 

regulatory approval  having been obtained by Eskom 

and the suppl ier,  respect ive ly,  as and when 

necessary.  

The Chief  Financial  Off icer is hereby author ised to  

take al l  the necessary steps to give effect  to the 10 

above inc luding the signing of  any consents or any 

other documentat ion necessary or related thereto.”  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So was that  done? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  was done. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    This is to execute on the prepayment? 

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Does this not  execute on the 

prepayment? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  am asking whether that  execut ion 20 

was done?  Was the prepayment made? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  the prepayment  in cash was not  made.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  what happened? 

MS DANIELS :    Then the cash payment was converted to the 

issuing of  a guarantee,  the performance guarantee in favour 
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of  Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you know who did that? 

MS DANIELS :    That  was at  the instruct ion of  Mr Singh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    At  the instruct ion of . . .?  

MS DANIELS :    Mr Singh.   Anoj  Singh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr S ingh,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did he inst ruct  you? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  th is was via the Group Treasury 

Department  in Eskom.  There was a memorandum prepared.   

I  am not  sure how the conversat ion went Mr Chai r.    10 

 But  there was – I  was copied in on subsequent emai ls 

and you now started having to moni tor what was happening.    

 There was a memo in which Ms Henry mot ivated,  that  i t  

was safer to do a guarantee than a cash payment.   And this 

was approved by Mr Singh on the 10t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So that  is exact ly the next  day? 

MS DANIELS :    The very next  day.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did that ,  what do you cal l  i t ,  convers ion 

for a lack of  a bet ter word,  f rom a cash to a guarantee go 

back to the board? 20 

MS DANIELS :    I t  a l l  went  back to the board in . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  did i t  go back to the board on the 

9t h? 

MS DANIELS :    No,  i t  d id not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  you wanted to say,  i t  went  to the 
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board,  when? 

MS DANIELS :    In  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What was the signi f icance of  convert ing i t  

f rom – convert ing f rom cash to guarantee as you understood 

i t ,  i f  you do understand i t?  

MS DANIELS :    In my understanding,  i t  was bet ter r isk 

management for Eskom to – effect ively,  i t  would have been 

giving cash to  a suppl ier.   So f rom a r isk management  

perspect ive and f rom a cost  perspect ive,  th is was a bet ter 

opt ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  was i t  not  interest ing that  that  

conversion was thought of  at  the level  of  execut ion as 

oppose to the level  of  the decis ion being taken by the board?  

Nobody in the board thought:   Let  us rather a guarantee 

rather than cash.   This came out  later  on,  on the instance of  

Mr Singh.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  there was very l i t t le quest ion at  board 

level  Mr Chai rman.  I  mean, other  than the two lad ies who 

asked quest ions about,  you know,  the coal  pr ic ing and the 

f inancial  const ruct ions,  there was real ly no discussion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And this was the board that  was appointed 

at  the same here,  is that  r ight?  In March . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DANIELS :    This is the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The same board that  suspended 

execut ives? 
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MS DANIELS :    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the chair  had been appointed. . .   

What,  December? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    December . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DANIELS :    [ Indist inct ]   

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    December 2014.  

MS DANIELS :    27. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS DANIELS :    I  refer to th is,  the Ngubane Board in my.. .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS DANIELS :    I  referred to i t  as the Ngubane Board in my 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ms Daniels,  the guarantee – the cash is  

converted into a guarantee.   And I  hear you venture an 

answer about the safety re lat ive to  that  but  the quest ion is.   

In whose favour was the guarantee issued? 

MS DANIELS :    As I  said,  the guarantee was issued in favour 

of  Tegeta Explorat ion in 2015 and not  Opt imum Coal Mines.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  also,  is the posi t ion not  that  once the 

guarantee has been put  in place,  has been secured?  You 

cannot undo i t  or can you undo i t?   

 In other words,  i f  you discover something and say:   No,  

no,  no.   We should not  have agreed to this,  or whatever.   I t  
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is too late.    

 In other words,  is  your ear l ier answer actual ly correct?  

I f  you give cash or give a guarantee,  can you stop the bank 

af ter you issued the guarantee f rom actual ly paying out?  

MS DANIELS :    Mr Chai rman, there was an underly ing 

clause by agreement that  was put  in place,  that  had to be – 

there were suspensive condi t ions in that  agreement.   But  

f rom the guarantee perspect ive.    

 So those – there were performance – the guarantee is in 

the bundle of  documents – but  there were certain  10 

performance related,  terms and condi t ions in that  guarantee.    

 You wi l l  hear that  i t  was,  you know, that  i t  expired on the 

31s t  of  March.   So there was a measure of . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was subject  to some condi t ions? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  So i t  would be paid i f  certain  

condi t ions . . . [ intervenes]   

MS DANIELS :    Condi t ions were met.   But  those condi t ions 

were not  met.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Mr Seleka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Ms Daniels,  which underly ing 

agreement is that?  Which are the part ies to the agreement? 

MS DANIELS :    That  is Tegeta and Eskom. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   But  does i t  matter?  Because the 

approval  of  the prepayment is made in relat ion to Glencore 
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and OCM.   

MS DANIELS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    The guarantee which piggy backs on the 

approval  is suddenly made in favour of  Tegeta.  

MS DANIELS :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Now go back to  the f i rst  resolut ion which 

re lates to the prepayment before OCM. 

MS DANIELS :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    There is the underly ing agreement 

between Tegeta and Eskom matter for that  decis ion.  10 

MS DANIELS :    No,  not  for the purposes of  the decision.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So that  is why. . .   You want to carry on? 

MS DANIELS :    I  just  want to say,  not  for the purpose of  the 

decision.   You know, i t  was real ly . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    I t  d id not  matter.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So i f  i t  does not  matter,  i t  makes 

everything about the guarantee i rrelevant .   I r relevant  to the 

decision made by IFC and the by the board on the 

9t h of  December 2015.  20 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct  Mr Chai rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  guarantee is i r re levant .  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is not  made by the board.   I t  not  made 

by Eskom.  I t  is made by Mr Anoj  Singh.  
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MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And he is making i t  in favour  of  a 

completely di fferent  ent i ty.  

MS DANIELS :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chairperson,  that  guarantee is on page 

599.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the ent i ty in favour of  whom the 

guarantee was made i f  f rom the ent i ty which was going to  

get  cash before the guarantee was int roduced? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  i t  was Mr Chai rman because the 10 

guarantee is in favour of  Tegeta.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS DANIELS :    And the prepayment of  cash was to Opt imum 

Coal Mines.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So i t  is a completely di fferent  th ing.  

MS DANIELS :    Completely di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And not  mandated by the board? 

MS DANIELS :    No.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So then this guarantee would have been 20 

given for an ul ter ior mot ive or purpose.  

MS DANIELS :    That  is the only conclusion that  one can 

draw, yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  we have learnt  f rom the evidence 

that  the Parl iamentary Port fo l io Commit tee,  that  i t  would 
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have been issued to assist  Tegeta to show that  i t  has the 

money to pay for the pr ice,  by the purchase pr ice of  OCM. 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t . . .   Did you know . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    This is a few months af ter Mr Anoj  Singh 

has jo ined Eskom? 

MS DANIELS :    Yes,  that  is correct  Mr Chai rman.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS DANIELS :    The. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He has not  even f in ished the year.  10 

MS DANIELS:   His appo in tment ,  h is  permanent  

appo in tment  was on ly  conf i rmed in  October  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  he  no t  e f fec t i ve  1  August  2015?  I  

th ink  i t  i s  e f fec t i ve  1  August  2015.   I  am not  sure .  

MS DANIELS:    I  jus t  remember  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    He ac ted  f i rs t .    

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He ac ted  fo r  some t ime.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And he was appo in ted .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  jus t  remember  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    When Br ian  Mole fe  s ta r ted ,  jo ined in  

Apr i l  2015 and ac ted  as  Group  CEO.   Mr  S ingh came 

about ,  what ,  th ree  months  a f te r  tha t ,  two months ,  th ree  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 119 of 249 
 

months  to  ac t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He is  seconded to  ac t  e f fec t i ve  1  

August  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1  August ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  th is  is  August .   September,  

October,  November,  in  December  th is  i s  what  i s  happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  tha t  s ix  –  tha t ’s  th ree  months ,  ja ,  a  

l i t t le  over  th ree  months  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And before  he  a r r i ves  who was ac t ing  as  10 

F inanc ia l  D i rec tor,  was i t  Ms D lamin i?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Nonku lu leko Ve le t i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ve le t i? .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  Ms 

Dan ie ls?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  I  am jus t  no t  sure  i f  she  res igned a t  

some po in t ,  bu t… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  cannot  reca l l  exact ly  when .  20 

MS DANIELS:    I  cannot  reca l l  exact ly  when she res igned,  

Mr  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS DANIELS:    Bu t  she res igned in  tha t  yea r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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MS DANIELS:    Bu t  I  remember  tha t  I  comple ted  the  

appo in tment  o f  d i rec to rsh ip  fo rms  and th ings l i ke  tha t  in  

October  o f  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  [ ind is t inc t ]  01 .52  because  

we have done –  the  1 .6  b i l l i on  prepayment  approva l  wh ich  

is  taken on shor t  no t ice ,  the  next  day is  conver ted  in to  a 

guarantee by  the  CFO,  a l l  on  h is  own,  and in  favour  o f  a  

d i f fe ren t  en t i t y  than the  one contempla ted  in  the  prev ious 

board  dec is ion .   Then the re  is  the  prepayment  o f  659  

mi l l ion ,  I  be l ieve  tha t  i s  the  next  th ing  you dea l  w i th  in  your  10 

a f f idav i t .   

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  i s  common cause the  board  

made tha t  dec is ion ,  Ms Dan ie ls ,  I  th ink  you have  – your  

par t  i s  re la t ing  to  the  Cha i rperson,  to  the  Commiss ion ,  the  

ro le  p layed in  the  bu i ld -up  to  the  mak ing  o f  tha t  dec is ion  

because i t  a lso  s ta r ts  w i th  the  submiss ion  and now we are 

on  –  we are  now in  Apr i l  2016 and you can  te l l  the  

Cha i rperson br ie f l y  what  happens.  

CHAIRPERSON:    From which  page in  her  a f f idav i t  does 20 

she dea l  w i th  tha t  top ic?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  f rom page 255,  th rough the  

who le  f i le .   Cha i r,  wh i le  Ms Dan ie ls  goes there  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  have got  i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   There  is  an  a f f idav i t  recent ly  

submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion  by  Mr  P ierce  Marsden who 

was …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  we do tha t ,  go  there ,  we dea l  

w i th  tha t ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  guarantee… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have we reached the  end o f  tha t  par t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have,  I  have.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  read a  po r t ion  f rom h is  

a f f idav i t  wh ich  re la tes  to  the  s ta tement  made  in  Dr 

Ramont ja ’s  le t te r  about  the  rehab i l i ta t ion  –  we l l ,  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  made in  h is  a f f idav i t  abou t  rehab i l i ta t ion .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.   And he says:  

“The bus iness rescue p rac t i t ioners  were  never  

engaged by  Tege ta  by  the  prepayment  o r  about  the  

guarantee tha t  Eskom issued in  favour  o f  Tegeta  fo r  

R1.68 b i l l i on  fo r  purposes o f  supp ly ing  coa l .   I  do  20 

not  know what  the  1 .7  b i l l i on  conta ined in  the  DMR 

le t te r  i s  re fe rence to .   The re ference is  no t  a  

re ference to  the  amount  owing to  the  c red i to rs  o f  

OCH and/or  OCM nor  to  the  funds he ld  fo r  

rehab i l i ta t ion  pu rposes and nor  fo r  any cap i ta l  
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expend i tu re . ”  

That  i s  jus t  what  wanted to  p lace  on record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms Dan ie l s ,  yes ,  I  had asked a  

quest ion ,  we are  go ing  now in to  the  prepayment  o f  the  560  

–  no ,  659 mi l l ion .  

MS DANIELS:    659 mi l l ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Beg your  pardon.   Aga in  you were  

asked to  do  a  submiss ion .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  was approached by  Ms  10 

Nte ta  who was the  Act ing  Genera l  Manager  F ie ld  Sourc ing  

and she asked fo r  ass is tance –  she needed to  ge t  a  

submiss ion  to  the  board  tender  commi t tee .   So th is  was 

around about  the  8  Apr i l ,  i t  was  the  –  I  th ink  i t  was a  

Fr iday and I  sa id  to  he r,  the  board  tender  commi t tee  is  

s i t t ing  on  the  13  Apr i l  and i f  you  needed to  ge t  a  

submiss ion  in ,  you know,  you need  to  ge t  i t  very  qu i ck ly.   I  

had jus t  done a  pack o f  la te  submiss ions so  I  was say ing  

to  her  l i s ten ,  p lease hur ry  up  i f  you  want  to  ge t  to  that  

meet ing .    20 

We –  she asked fo r  my ass is tance and we worked  

together.   By  the  Monday she had  -  you know,  we had th i s  

ske le ton  o f  a  submiss ion .   Mr  Mabe lane then a l so  asked fo r  

ass is tance to  ge t  i t  done.  

The unders tand ing  a t  tha t  po in t  was tha t  th is  is  
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go ing  to  the  meet ing  o f  the  13  Apr i l ,  wh ich  was the  

Wednesday and th is  was about  –  there  was a  coa l  shor tage  

a t  A rnot  and tha t  they needed  to  –  the  p rocurement  

p rocesses were  no t  ge t t ing  done in  t ime and they needed 

to  secure  coa l .   So tha t  was the  bas is  on  wh ich  we worked.  

La te  the  Monday a f te rnoon I  had  le f t  the  o f f i ce  and I  

s t i l l  d id  no t  have the  submiss ion  so  I  was a  b i t  nervous  

because hav ing  such la te  submiss ions to  the  board  tender  

commi t tee  I  wou ld  a lways bear  the  brunt  no  mat te r  i f  i t  was 

the  execut ive ’s  fau l t ,  the  company secre ta ry  a lso  go t  the  10 

tongue lash ing  in  the  meet ing .  

I t  was then on ly  la te r  tha t  Mr  Khoza,  who was the  

board  tender  commi t tee  Cha i rperson,  phoned me,  tha t  was  

around 7 .30  in  the  even ing  and he sa id  to  me tha t  we 

needed to  convene a  meet ing  tha t  even ing  and I  asked h im  

what  was th is  about  because,  you know,  we have a  meet ing  

48  hours ,  can i t  no t  wa i t  un t i l  then?  He sa id  i t  was about  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  the  meet ing  was meant  to  be 

when?  20 

MS DANIELS:    The 13 Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The 13 t h?  

MS DANIELS:    13 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Three zero .  

MS DANIELS:    One th ree .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    One th ree ,  yes .   And Mr  Khoza was 

phon ing  you on what  da te?    

MS DANIELS:    On the  11  Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  11 t h .  

MS DANIELS:    And th is  i s  in  the  even ing  o f  the  11 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   The meet ing  on  the  13 t h  was go ing  

to  be  a  meet ing  o f  the  board  tender  commi t tee .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  co r rec t ,  Mr  Cha i r.   So th is  was 

not  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And now he wanted you to  convene a  10 

meet ing  o f  the  same commi t tee  on  the  even ing  o f  the  same 

day on wh ich  he  ca l led  you.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Namely  the  11 t h .  

MS DANIELS:    The 11 t h  and i t  i s  a l ready 7 .30  p .m.  in  the  

even ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And th is  meet ing  tha t  he  wanted  

you to  ca l l ,  was i t  go ing  to  take  the  p lace o f  the  mee t ing  on  

the  13 t h  o r  was i t  go ing  to  be  an  add i t iona l  meet ing?  So  

there  were  go ing  to  be  two meet ing ,  in  o ther  words o r  no t?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Th is  was an add i t iona l  meet ing ,  a  spec ia l  

meet ing ,  as  we ca l led  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS DANIELS:    And th is  wou ld  be  to  jus t  cons ider  one 

par t i cu la r  top i c .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    He sa id  to  me tha t  there  was an emergency  

-  you know,  tha t  there  was an emergency a t  A rnot  Power  

S ta t ion  and tha t  th is  i s  why th is  meet ing  was now urgent .   

When I  sa id  we have 48 hours  to  the  next  meet ing ,  i t  can  

wa i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  he  wanted the  meet ing  o f  the  11 t h  

to  dea l  w i th  what?  

MS DANIELS:    There  was emergency supp l ies  a t  A rnot  

Power  S ta t ion ,  once aga in  a  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  i ssue .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS DANIELS:    And he sa id  the  opera t iona l  peop le  to ld  

h im tha t  i t  was urgent .   A t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  have any 

document  ye t  and I  then ca l led  Mr  Mabe lane,  who was the  

o f f i c ia l  respons ib le  and I  rece ived  a  submiss ion  and i t  was  

c loser  to  8  p .m.  in  the  even ing  when I  go t  tha t  and w i th  the  

request  because  I  asked h im to  g ive  me a  reason to  

convene a  meet ing .   So i t  was to  d iscuss the  emergency  

supp ly  a t  A rnot  Power  S ta t ion .  

 So when I  ca l led  a l l  the  board  members  –  the  BTC 20 

members .   These were  Mr  Khoza,  Ms Na idoo,  Ms Car r im 

and Ms Mabude  and they a l l  ind ica ted  tha t  they were  

ava i lab le ,  fu l l  meet ing .   I  sen t  ou t  the  documenta t ion  and I  

convened the  meet ing  –  I  th ink  i t  was n ine  o ’ c lock  tha t  

even ing .   Ms Mabude was the  on ly  one who ind ica ted  tha t  
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she  w i l l  be  a  b i t  la te  fo r  the  meet ing  bu t  she a t tended.   I  

sent .  

 I  sen t  ou t  the  submiss ion  documents  once rece ived 

f rom Mr  Mabe lane.   There  were  once aga in  quest ions f rom 

Ms Na idoo,  Vi roshnee Na idoo,  wh ich  I  sent  to  the 

execut ives  and sa id  look,  these a re  the  quest ions tha t  you 

are  go ing  to  need to  answer.   The meet ing  went  ahead a t  

n ine  o ’ c lock  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  one second.   Mr  Se leka,  we are  a t  

th ree  minutes  past  four.   Le t  us  take  an ad journment ,  we 10 

can cont inue,  and i f  tha t  i s  f ine  w i th  everybody,  maybe 

unt i l  about  quar te r  to  f i ve  or  thereabouts  and then I  w i l l  be 

ready to  s ta r t  the  even ing  sess ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  –  fo r  another  w i tness.   So le t  us  

take  a  shor t  ad journment  now o f  ten  m inutes .   Le t  us 

resume a t  quar te r  past .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  in  o rde r,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Ms Dan ie l s  there ’s  

a  quest ion  wh ich  I  reca l l  I  needed to  ask  you and tha t  i s  in  

regard  to  the  guarantee.   Remember  the  guarantee is  made  
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on  the  10 t h  o f  December  2015.   Do you know how 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:   Pos i t i ve l y  Mr  Cha i r  I  do  remember,  I  nodded 

my head,  my apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was there  any agreement  in  wr i t ing  

be tween Eskom and Tegeta  re la t i ve  to  the  guarantee? 

MS DANIELS:    As  I  sa id  Mr  Cha i rperson the  under l y ing  

agreement  tha t  we were  work ing  on  was a  co-supp ly  

agreement ,  wh ich  was supposed to  be  be tween the  th ree  10 

batches o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l ,  so  tha t  was the  

agreement  tha t  we were  a t tempt ing  to  pu t  in  p lace  a t  the 

t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay when  you say under ly ing  you  

mean the  guarantee wou ld  have been issued in  

contempla t ion  o f  tha t  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  on  the  s t reng th  o f  tha t  agreement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or on the  s t rength  o f  i t .   

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  on  the  s t rength  o f  tha t  agreement  i s  

a  be t te r  way to  pu t  i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now d id  you take  par t  in  the  dra f t ing  o f  

tha t  agreement?  

MS DANIELS:    We –  yes I  d id ,  I  engaged the  serv ices  o f  

C l i f f  Dekker  Hofmeyr  to  ass i s t ,  I  th ink  we rece ived a  

suggested two-pagers  f rom the  Pr imary  Energy  
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Depar tment ,  I  am not  qu i te  sure  how i t  happened,  bu t  there  

was a  two pager  agreement  in  p lace  tha t  we went  th rough.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Who,  who  asked you to  d ra f t  the  

agreement?  

MS DANIELS:    As  I  sa id  Mr  Cha i rman I  can ’ t  remember  

how exact ly  tha t  came about .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  on  page 7 ,  73 ,  page 7 ,  73 .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes I  am there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  a re  emai ls  the re ,  can you jus t  

qu ick l y  ident i f y  them to  the  Cha i rperson.    From bot tom up.  10 

MS DANIELS:    There  is  an  emai l  Mr  Cha i rman f rom myse l f  

to  Mr  Ano j  S ingh  and i t  says  le t te r  ag reement  to  ge t  an  

Eskom execut ion  copy,  and then I  say :  

“H i  Ano j ,  

Herewi th  the  ag reement  as  amended.  

Regards,  

Suzanne”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we l l  is  tha t  the  agreement  on  

page 774.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  th is  i s  the  ag reement  on  774.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  runs up  to  page 776,  i t  i s  uns igned 

so  tha t  i s  a  d ra f t .  

MS DANIELS:    I t  i s  a  d ra f t  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And Mr  Ano j ,  the  emai l  above yours?  

MS DANIELS:    The emai l  above mine is  f rom Mr  Ano j  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 129 of 249 
 

S ingh to  Mr  Er i c  Wood,  and he fo rwards the  ag reement  as  

i s  to  Mr  Wood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  on  10  December  2015 a t  4 :26 ,  

twenty  s ix  m inutes  past  four.  

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then there  is  an  emai l  above?  

MS DANIELS:    There  is  an  emai l  there  in  rep ly  f rom Mr  

Er ic  Wood to  Mr  S ingh wh ich  says :  

 “Any luck  w i th  the  guarantee d ra f t .  

 Regards”  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  emai l  i s  on  the  10 t h  December  

as  we l l  a t  16 :42 ,  and the  sub jec t  l ine  i s  le t te r,  agreement  

Tegeta  Eskom execut ion  copy.    

MS DANIELS:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now what  was the  t ime,  I  sa id  16 :42 ,  

i t ’s  twenty  to  f i ve ,  la te  a f te rnoon,  then p lease tu rn  to  page  

724.    

MS DANIELS:     Can I  have i t  aga in  Mr  Se leka p lease,  I  

d idn ’ t  hear  i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    724.   A re  you there?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes I  am there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P lease ident i f y  the  document .  

MS DANIELS:    I t  i s  an  ema i l  f rom Bus inessman to  

Matshe la2010 and there ’s  a  two pager  be tween,  the  sub jec t  

i s  two pager,  the  body o f  the  emai l  says :  
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“Two pager  be tween Tegeta  and Eskom sa l ien t  

po in ts .   Eskom wi l l  p rov ide  bank guarantee fo r  

1 .68b i l l i on .    CP fo r  re lease  and Sect ion  11  

approva l  f rom DMR Compet i t ions  Commiss ion  

approva l .   Tegeta  w i l l  supp ly  f rom OCM as the  

cont rac t  bu t  fo r  t he  12  months  prepayment  January  

2016 to  January  2017 w i l l  g ive  a  5% d iscount  o f f  

the  154.    Tegeta  w i l l  supp ly  f rom Koorn fon te in  as  

per  cont rac t  fo r  the  same per iod  a t  the  or ig ina l  380 ,  

no t  the  requested increased ta r i f f .   A t  the  end o f  10 

each month  s ta r t ing  end February  2016 Eskom sha l l  

deduct  140mi l l ion  f rom amounts  due to  recoup the  

1 .68b i l l i on .   Tegeta  rece iv ing  prepayment  fo r  two 

months  supp ly  bu t  Eskom can use mon ies  owed  

f rom a l l  th ree  mines,  Brak fon te in  to  recoup the  

140mi l l ion  a  mon th .   There fore  i f  Tegeta  does not  

de l i ver  fu l l  vo lume f rom OCM to  Kroon the  payments  

due fo r  Brak fon te in  can be c lawed.    Any amounts  

due over  the  R140mi l l ion  fo r  each month  sha l l  be  

payab le  to  Tegeta .   Two pager  a lmost  as  addendum 20 

to  the  supp ly  con t rac ts . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes th is  emai l  i s  on  the  10 t h  o f  

December  2015,  and i t  i s  a t  f i f teen minutes  past  twe lve ,  

a f te r  m idn igh t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS DANIELS:    That ’s  what  i t  looks  l i ke  and then i t  i s  sent  
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to  me a t  7 .31 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  tha t  i s  what  i s  confus ing  me 

because i t  i s  10  December  2015  a t  jus t  a f te r  ha l f  past  

seven sent  to  you,  tha t  w i l l  be  10  December  in  the  

morn ing .   

MS DANIELS:     Bu t  I  th ink  th is  i s  –  i f  you  look a t  the  t ime  

i t  i s  GMT+2,  so  i t  m igh t  be  d i f fe ren t  t ime zones,  tha t  cou ld  

be  the  exp lanat ion  I  th ink .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom 

Bus inessman to  Matshe la  emai l  address  2010,  10 

Matshe la2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  no t  h is  Eskom emai l  address 

hey?  

MS DANIELS:    No tha t  i s  no t  h is  Eskom emai l  address Mr  

Cha i rman but  tha t  i s  h is  persona l  yahoo address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Emai l  address.    Yes but  d id  you  know i t  

to  be  h is  persona l  emai l  address  or  you are  jus t  say ing  

because i t  has  go t  h is  name?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  know tha t  i t  i s  h is  pe rsona l  emai l  

add ress.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  an  emai l  above f rom 

Matshe la2010@yahoo.com sent  to  you,  Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  

fo rward ing  the  two pager.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you know tha t  you know tha t  you  

rece ived th is  f rom Mr  Koko?  

MS DANIELS:    I  don ’ t  reca l l  the  emai l  spec i f i ca l l y  Mr  

Cha i rman but  yes  i t  has  my name on i t  so  I  accep t  tha t  i t  

was sent  to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So wou ld  th is  have preceded the  

dra f t ing  o f  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement ,  what  you have  

re fer red  to  as  the  under ly ing  agreement?   

MS DANIELS:    I  am not  sure  about  the  t im ing ,  th is  seems 

to  be  a t  7 .31  in  the  morn ing ,  I  do  reca l l  tha t  I  had 10 

ins t ruc ted  Mr  –  C l i f f  Dekker  Hofmeyr  on  tha t  day.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  tu rn  the  page to  725,  see whethe r  

tha t  doesn ’ t  re la te  to  what  you a re  ta lk ing  about .  

MS DANIELS:    Yes i t  does  because i t  i s  the  10 t h  

December  8 .42 ,  I  speak to  Roche l le  Mood ley  about  the  

Opt imum Eskom fee  purchase.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So what  were  you ask ing  there?  

MS DANIELS:    Here  I  ask  p lease ca l l  me,  I  need your  

ass is tance in  d ra f t ing  th is  agreement ,  u rgent  t ime 

pressure ,  I  need the  dra f t  by  twe lve  o ’c lock .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  see  tha t  the  a t tachments  i s  

ins t ruc t ion  two pager  be tween Tegeta  and Eskom,  wh ich  

seems to  be  s im i la r  to  the  emai ls  on  the  prev ious page  

wh ich  a l so  is  the  sub jec t  o f  a  two-pager.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So  does i t  mean tha t  Bus inessman 

wou ld  have a t tached a  document  to  h is  emai l  address,  

wh ich  i s  two-pager,  fo rwarded to  your  by  Mr  Matshe la  

Koko,  wh ich  then gets  fo rwarded fu r ther  to  CDH,  Mr  

R ishaban Mood ley  o f  CDH.    I s  tha t  what  i s  happen ing  

here?  

MS DANIELS:     I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  i t  wou ld  mean Mr  

Cha i rman,  I  can ’ t  remember  prec ise ly,  i t  i s  f i ve  years  ago,  

bu t  I  d id  send i f  these a t tachments  were  there  then I  d id  

send them.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i f  one looks a t  the  body o f  the 

emai l  –  we l l  I  don ’ t ,  maybe he  d idn ’ t  a t tach  anyth ing ,  

Bus inessman on page 724,  i f  you  look a t  the  body o f  h is  

emai l  he  says two-pager  be tween Tegeta  and  Eskom 

sa l ien t  po in ts ,  Eskom wi l l  p rov ide  bank guarantee fo r  

R1.68b i l l i on .   Th i s  i s  Bus inessman and then he wr i t es  CP –  

what  does CP s tand fo r,  CP fo r  re lease is?  

MS DANIELS:    Cond i t ion  Precedent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay cond i t ion  precedent  fo r  re lease  

is  one,  Sect ion  11  approva l  f rom DMR,  two Compet i t ion  20 

Commiss ion  approva l .   Now le t ’s  pause the re  fo r  a  

moment ,  le t ’s  go  to  page 726.   Cou ld  tha t  have been the 

document  annexed to  your  emai l  to  Mr  Mood ley  o f  CDH? 

MS DANIELS:    That  cou ld  be  Mr  Cha i rman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So i t  says  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  looks  l i ke  Bus inessman ins t ruc t s  

Mr  Matshe la  Koko and Mr  Matshe la  Koko ins t ruc ts  you?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you send i t  to  the  a t to rneys,  I  need  

your  ass is tance in  d ra f t ing  th is  agreement ,  so  page  726  

says two-pager  be tween Tegeta  and Eskom,  sa l ien t  po in ts .   

That ’s  exact ly  what  Bus inessman wro te ,  two pager  be tween  

Tegeta  and Eskom sa l ien t  po in t s .    Eskom wi l l  i ssue bank 

guarantee in  favour  o f  Tegeta  fo r  R1.6b i l l i on  on  s ignature ,  

so  tha t  i s  the  same bu l le t  po in t  as  h is  except  on  s ignatu re  10 

is  there ,  a  fac t ion  e f fec t i ve  da te ,  and then CP fo r  re lease 

is  wh ich  is  a lso  how he wro te  i t .   The f i rs t  bu l l e t  po in t  

under  the re  is  Sect ion  11  approva l  f rom DMR which  is  

exact ly  the  same as h is .    Next  bu l le t  po in t  i s  Compet i t ion  

Commiss ion  approva l  wh ich  is  a l so  the  same as h is ,  and 

there  a re  o ther  aspects  added to  the  dra f t ,  no tar ia l  bond  

on fu tu re  coa l  company secre ta ry  to  i ssue le t te r  o f  comfor t  

tha t  tha t  shares have been t ransfer red  and issued  to  new 

owner,  and lawyers  le t te r  o f  comfor t  tha t  the  CP ’s  have 

been fu l f i l l ed ,  do  you see tha t?  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes I  see tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  the  res t  o f  the  bu l le t  po in ts  the  

same as the  one  in  Bus inessman,  ja  i t  seems to  be  the  

same.  

MS DANIELS:   I t  seems to  be  the  same.   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  you  look  a t  the  las t  bu l l e t  po in t  

Cha i rperson any  amount  due over  R130mi l l ion  f o r  each 

month  sha l l  be  payab le  to  Tegeta .   The one above tha t ,  

there fo re  i f  Tegeta  does not  de l i ver  fu l l  vo lume f rom OCM 

or  Kroon the  payments  due fo r  Brak fon te in  can be c lawed,  

exact ly  the  same.   Go to  the  one  above,  Tegeta  rece iv ing  

prepayment  fo r  two mines supp ly  bu t  Eskom can use 

mon ies  owed f rom three mines,  B rak fon te in  a lso  to  recoup 

the  R140mi l l ion  a  month .  Exact ly  the  same.   So somebody 

e lse  was dra f t ing  h is  own te rms fo r  Eskom,  fo r  you guys.  10 

MS DANIELS:   Yes he  was.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you see th is  emai l  wh ich  was  

fo rwarded to  you  by  Mr  Matshe la  Koko on page 724?   I s  

th is  emai l  be ing  fo rwarded to  you?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes i t  has  been fo rwarded to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   D id  you express any v iew,  

no t  v iew but  was  th is  o f  any –  d id  i t  ra ise  any concern  to  

you tha t  i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Bus inessman tha t  i s  assuming 

you don ’ t  know who is  Bus inessman,  does i t  ra ise  any 

concerns fo r  you,  quest ions,  quer ies ,  where  does th is  come 20 

f rom? 

MS DANIELS:    Not  a t  the  t ime Mr  Cha i rman.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Why not?  

MS DANIELS:    I  rea l l y  jus t  took  i t  and looked a t  the  top  

and went  and d id  the  agreement .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  wou ld  Mr  Matshe la  Koko have sent  

you th is  t ype o f  documents  or  ins t ruc t ions w i thout  any 

d iscuss ion  w i th  you f i rs t  as  to  what  they rea l l y  re la ted  to  

and why they –  i t  was necessary  to  inc lude them in  an  

agreement  o r  guarantee?    

MS DANIELS:    He probab ly  wou ld  have ca l led  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And d iscussed w i th  you?  

MS DANIELS:    And d iscussed w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  th is  t ime d id  he?  

MS DANIELS:    I  rea l l y  don ’ t  remember,  you know jus t  10 

g iven the  way tha t  i t  happened there  he  may have but  I  

can ’ t  [aud io  cu ts  ou t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Because you see i f  he  d idn ’ t  d iscuss  

them wi th  you be fore  he  sent  them to  you my in t imat ion  is  

to  th ink  tha t  you  wou ld  have been surpr i sed where  is  he  

ge t t ing  a l l  o f  these th ings w i thout  d iscuss ing  them wi th  you  

and  tha t  you wou ld  have wanted to  d iscuss w i th  h im befo re  

even send ing  to  Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o r  whoever,  bu t  d id  you  

d iscuss w i th  h im  these te rms,  these issues before  you 

ins t ruc ted  a t to rneys to  ass i s t  you.  20 

MS DANIELS:    I  rea l l y  can ’ t  remember  the  spec i f i c  phone  

ca l l  o f  tha t  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  Koko says tha t  the  two  o f  you 

were  very  c lose  and 2015 is  a l l  w i th in  the  years  tha t  he  

says tha t  the  two o f  you were  very  c lose ,  he  sa id  when he 
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was g i v ing  ev idence las t  week tha t  in  townsh ip  l ingo you  

were  t igh t .  

MS DANIELS:    [ laugh ing ]  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You conf i rm you  were  ve ry  c lose?  

MS DANIELS:   We were  c lose  a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes a t  tha t  t ime,  so  one wou ld  have 

expected tha t  he  wou ld  have d iscussed these th ings w i th  

you and i f  he  d idn ’ t  you wou ld  f ind  tha t  s t range and maybe  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS DANIELS:    I  wou ld  have probab ly  found i t  you know.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And say where  does th is  come f rom,  you  

haven ’ t  d iscussed th is  w i th  me.  

MS DANIELS:    H’m tha t ’s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  as  I  s i t  

here  today I  cannot  remember  tha t ,  you know those 

par t i cu la r  phone  ca l l s ,  there  were  lo t s  o f  phone ca l l s  

be tween us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm.  

MS DANIELS:     The fac t  tha t  I  ac ted  on the  emai l  I  can  

say there  must  have been a  conversa t ion ,  bu t  because I  

don ’ t  have an independent  reco l lec t ion  as  I  s i t  here  today,  20 

bu t  judged on what  I  d id  there  must  have been a  

conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Ms Dan ie l s  th is  i s  in  

December  2015 d id  you have an idea in  December  2015 as  
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to  who Bus inessman was or  cou ld  be  in  December  2015? 

MS DANIELS:    I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  p lace ,  Mr  Cha i rman I  

th ink  I  had my susp ic ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You had your  susp ic ion?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  was your  susp ic ion?  

MS DANIELS:    That  g i ven you know the  na ture  o f  what  

was be ing  d i scussed tha t  th is  cou ld  be  Mr  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ldn ’ t  you have sought  to  conf i rm 

whethe r  tha t  was so?  10 

MS DANIELS:   Mr Cha i r  I  th ink  i f  I  look  a t  the  –  what  I  

w i tnessed in  tha t  year  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You look?  

MS DANIELS:    What  I  had w i tnessed in  tha t  year,  2015 

and knowing wha t  Mr  Essa was capab le  o f  I  wou ld  have,  

you know I  was qu i te  care fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you were  Company Secre tary  a t  the  

t ime,  you were  a  lawyer,  you had  an op in ion ,  you adv ised  

on cont rac ts  i sn ’ t  i t?    Or  tha t  was your  p rev ious pos i t ion  

or  you s t i l l  d id  tha t  when you were  Company Secre tary  in  20 

te rms o f  cont rac ts ,  you were  no  longer  invo lved in  adv is ing  

on  cont rac ts  bu t  you had the  know ledge.  

MS DANIELS:   No,  I  had the  know ledge.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and what  th is  was about  was 

connected w i th  cont rac ts?  
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MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you rea l i sed tha t  there  is  th is  

Bus inessman who is  e f fec t i ve l y  ins t ruc t ing  Mr  Koko to  do  

cer ta in  th ings about  cont rac t s  o r  guarantees and Mr  Koko  

in  tu rn  ins t ruc t s  you to  g i ve  e f fec t  to  tha t .   Sure ly  tha t  

shou ld  have concerned you to  say  we l l  who is  th is  person  

tha t  I  don ’ t  know wi th in  Eskom who is  g iv ing  ins t ruc t ions  

and I  am supposed to  car ry  ou t  the  ins t ruc t ions.  

MS DANIELS:    I  th ink  Mr  Cha i rman I  sor t  o f  

compar tmenta l i sed i t  in  te rms o f  th is  i s  coming f rom 10 

Matshe la  Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  have seen f rom the  

emai ls  i sn ’ t  i t  tha t  o r ig ina l l y  i t  comes f rom Mr  

Bus inessman?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  am –  and you d idn ’ t  know anybody 

w i th in  Eskom whose emai l  address was Bus inessman? 

MS DANIELS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So you wou ld  have thought  i t  must  be  

somebody f rom outs ide .  20 

MS DANIELS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  shou ld  have wor r ied  you.  

MS DANIELS:    Yes i t  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you wou ld  have been,  you  wou ld  

have been concerned whethe r  the  a f fa i rs  o f  Eskom were  
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now be ing  d ic ta ted  to  by  fo rces ou ts ide  o f  Eskom and you 

wou ld  no t  have wanted to  be  pa r t  o f  tha t  i sn ’ t  i t? 

MS DANIELS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i rman but  a t  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And there fo re  once tha t  was the  th ink ing  

you wou ld  have  –  one wou ld  expect  tha t  you  wou ld  

conf ron t  Mr  Koko ,  more  so  he  was  c lose  to  you a t  the  t ime 

so  you wou ld  have no reason to  fear  tha t  maybe he  

wou ldn ’ t  take  i t  pos i t i ve ly.     You wou ld  have –  you  shou ld  

have ra ised the  i ssue w i th  h im to  say bu t  where  are  you 10 

get t ing  these ideas f rom,  because  you are  no t  ge t t ing  them 

f rom wi th in  Eskom.  

MS DANIELS:    I  shou ld  have Mr  Cha i rman but  a t  tha t  

s tage I  d id  no t .   I  rea l l y  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  you accept  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  

s t range i f  you d idn ’ t  ra ise  the  issue and ye t  be ing  aware  

tha t  i t  seemed tha t  fo rces ou ts ide  o f  Eskom were  g iv ing  

ins t ruc t ions as  to  what  Eskom of f i c ia ls  shou ld  do?  

MS DANIELS:    Yes,  tha t  I  accept  you know,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  

want  you to  take  in to  cons ide ra t i on  the  mood a t  the  t ime,  20 

you know.   Yes i t  may be so  tha t  Mr  Koko and I  were  c lose ,  

bu t  the  fac t  tha t  we had exper ienced what  we d id ,  tha t  

c loseness was a l ready wan ing ,  i t  wasn ’ t  a t  tha t  po in t ,  

remember  th is  i s  now December  2015,  i t  i s  no t  a t  th is  

s tage where  I  can  say hey what  i s  go ing  on  here .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  he  sa id  your  re la t ionsh ip  soured 

between the  two o f  you,  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  two  

o f  you on ly  soured in  2017 i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.  

MS DANIELS:    No tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  tha t  i s  i ncor rec t  

you know because you w i l l  remember  las t  t ime I  sa id  to  you 

tha t ’s  incor rec t ,  he  is  conf la t ing  the  da tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On your  ve rs ion  when d id  i t  sou r?  

MS DANIELS:    I t  s ta r ted  la te  2016.   I  had a l ready you 

know s tar ted  t ry ing  to  be  mindfu l  o f  what  I  w i tnessed and 

mindfu l  o f  you now the  rush –  w i tness ing  what  the  Board  10 

had done,  tha t  there  de f in i te ly  was  outs ide  in f luence.    You 

know I  cannot  s i t  here  and te l l  you  there  wasn ’ t .    You 

know tha t  wou ld  be  jus t  nonsense.    

 Mind fu l  o f  tha t  I  s ta r ted  pu t t ing  the  d is tance and I  

th ink  i t  was la te  2016 when we s tar ted  hav ing ,  we  s tar ted  

ge t t ing  a l l  these quest ions f rom about  the  f i r s t  quar te r  o f  

March,  I  mean the  f i rs t  quar te r  o f  2016,  about  you know 

the  Gupta  a f f i l i a t ions ,  the  connect ions and a l l  o f  those 

th ings,  and in  tha t  p rocess the  d is tance,  I  t r ied  to  keep the  

d is tance but  i t  a lso  main ta ined the  pro fess iona l  20 

re la t ionsh ip ,  so  I  th ink  when Mr  Koko uses a  par t i cu la r  

inc ident  wh ich  is  rea l l y,  i t  s ta r ted  way before  then.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  ea r l ie r  than December,  I  th ink 

a t  the  la tes t  i f  I  am not  m is taken f rom your  p rev ious 

ev idence he re ,  in  September  o f  20  –  I  th ink  15  I  don ’ t  know 
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i f  i t  was 14 but  I  th ink  15  o r  i t  must  be  15  because Dr  

Ngubane on ly  jo ined 2015 was the  f i rs t  ca lendar  year  tha t  

he  was a  member  o f  the  Board ,  f rom your  p rev ious  

ev idence you reca l l  tha t  the re  were  emai l s  tha t  came in  

f rom –  i f  i t  was  not  Bus inessman i t  was In fopor ta l ,  and 

there  is  a  d ispute  be tween yourse l f  and Dr  Ngubane,  you  

sa id  in  e f fec t  –  I  am put t ing  i t  in  my own words,  th is  person  

sought  to  communica te  w i th  h im and you were  jus t  g iven 

ins t ruc t ions by  Dr  Ngubane,  I  th ink  he  says he  pushes the  

b lame to  you tha t  you were  the  –  you wou ld  be  the  person  10 

who knew about  th is  pe rson but  tha t  emai l  add ress Mr  

Se leka was e i ther  Bus inessman or  In fopor ta l  i sn ’ t  i t? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was Bus inessman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Cha i rperson so  where  the  name – i t  i s  

essent ia l l y  the  same,  so  where  you see the  emai l  address 

i t  i s  In fopor ta l ,  bu t  then somet imes you see the name. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Other t imes you see both.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Businessman then infoportal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh i t  is the same emai l  address? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the same Chai r.  

MS DANIELS:   I t  is the same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so the point  Ms Daniels is how – how 
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can you in December when you see this Businessman, th is 

emai l  address that  sends emai l  to Matshela Koko and he is  

saying – sends inst ruct ions to you.   So how can you st i l l  not  

ra ise the issue when that  is not  just  the f i rst  t ime you had 

another occasion or other occasions about  the same emai l  

address?  Unless of  course the other scenario is i f  you knew 

then obviously you did not  raise anything? 

MS DANIELS:   Mr Chairman I  suspected at  the t ime – I  d id  

not  have concrete evidence and that  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  that  suspicion is the one that  should 10 

have dr iven you to ask.   That  is par t  of  the point .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  – I .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why did i t  not  dr ive you to ask? 

MS DANIELS:   You know asking the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Matshela Koko.   Mr Matshela Koko who 

is th is person that  is sending us this – sending you 

instruct ions and you send them to me because obviously th is  

is somebody outside of  Eskom?  Who is th is – what is  

happening?  Why did you not  ask that? 

MS DANIELS:   Wel l  I  th ink I  – I  real ly did not  want  to – to 20 

cause any t rouble for mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You would not  cause any t rouble for 

yoursel f  wi th Mr Koko he was – the two of  you were t ight .  

MS DANIELS:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  i t  is. .  
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MS DANIELS:   Just  remember I  mean.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You were close.  

MS DANIELS:   I  want  to just  – I  want to dispel  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   hm.  

MS DANIELS:   Because – I  want to dispel  that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you agreed earl ier on.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   F ive minutes ago.  

MS DANIELS:   We were but  not  that  c lose but  I  would now 

be able to be in a posi t ion to say to him – hey? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No but  Ms – you cannot say i f  there was 

not  something that  you suspected to be something wrong.   

You cannot say that  you would not  have been in a posi t ion to 

ra ise i t  wi th Mr Koko? 

MS DANIELS:   Yoh Mr Chai rman I  mean – I  th ink you would 

have to – you would have to understand the mood of  Eskom 

at  that  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  at  least  a t  the level  of  want ing to  

understand.   You say I  do not  understand who is th is 

Businessman?  So i t  cannot v ict imise you for that .   He 20 

cannot.   You are just  enqui r ing.   Who is th is person?  I  see 

that  you pass on to me instruct ions that  are given to  you by 

somebody that  seems to be outside of  Eskom. 

MS DANIELS:   Ja look at  the t ime I  just  d id not  want to  

upset  the applecart  and you know what now when you look 
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back at  i t  I  should have done so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you accept  i t  or do you not  accept  that  

the other possib i l i ty of  course is for  somebody in your  

posi t ion not  to raise the issue was i f  they knew who – 

exact ly what was going on? 

MS DANIELS:   No I  accept  that  proposi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You accept  that  proposi t ion.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  am not  going – I  am not  go ing to argue 

wi th you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MS DANIELS:   You know but  I  just  wanted to  please 

understand that  the mood was very,  very d i fferent  to the 

ordinary corporate envi ronment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS DANIELS:   And especial ly i f  you know you want to give 

the appearance of  be ing f r iendly.   Because I  had wi tnessed – 

remember I  had now sat  in on a number of  sort  of  

purportedly closed meet ings and I  had seen how these 

people operate.   And i t  was not  – I  mean Mr Koko was the 

only one who came back.   And here we have Mr Singh,  we 20 

have Mr Molefe,  we have Mr – Dr Ngubane and they al l  seem 

to be in  the same ci rc le you know.  And the l imi ted – at  that  

stage the l imi ted exposure that  I  had had to the board 

members you know they had acted qui te ruthlessly when 

someone quest ioned things.   You know.   So for me i t  was 
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just  – I  would ask you – yes I  accept  I  should have done 

more.   There is  no way I  can say to you you know I  should 

not .   With the benef i t  of  h indsight  i f  I  were a co-sec today I  

would certainly do things di fferent ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka I  see we have gone beyond 

quarter to? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  you want one or two quest ions to.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   P lease yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To f in ish for the day that  is f ine.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chair  because relat ive to Dr 

Ngubane Ms Daniels he was saying you told him he is  

Richard Seleke and you said he was the one who told you 

that  is Richard Seleke.   I  am wondering what is  Mr 

Matshela’s version going to be?  I  understand he says you 

gave him the emai l .  

MS DANIELS:   Yes I  th ink that  – I  th ink you would f ind that  

even in his – I  am not  sure which version of  his  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Aff idavi t .  

MS DANIELS:   Aff idavi t  or  you know – he says that  I  to ld him 20 

that  is that  is the chairman’s address.   I  mean the records 

clear ly show i t  came f rom him you know.  So I  would real ly  

dispute that .   I  d id not  at  any t ime say to h im that  th is was 

the Chai rman’s address.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Quickly you know the emai l  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 147 of 249 
 

exchanges ul t imately  a lso goes to expl ic i t  Mr 

sal imessa@gmai l .com page 752 as wel l  as page – wel l  let  us 

deal  look at  752.   There is Mr Anoj  Singh on 10 December 

2015 3:14.   That  is fourteen minutes past  three.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes Mr Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   

“Please f ind above at tached.”  

And that  emai l  seems to have been forwarded – oh i t  goes to  

Er ic Wood of  Regiments and Eric  Wood at  the top of  the 

page forwards i t  to sal imessa@gmai l .com.   And you turn to  10 

page – and that  is the last  one 768 at  14:13 you – 10 

December there was a lot  of  act iv i ty on the 10 December.   

You send to Mr Anoj  

“Hi  Anoj  herewith the agreement as amended.”  

At  the top the emai l  above yours he forwards i t  to Er ic Wood 

of  Regiments at  4:26 pm.  Er ic Wood on the same day he 

forwards i t  to sal imessa@gmai l .com at  16:36.   So th is is how 

third part ies outs ide of  Eskom kept  in the loop of  what is 

happening.   But  more than that  in  fact  they start  thei r  th ing 

and they are kept  in the loop – the develop – internal  20 

development in Eskom.  Is that  a fa i r  assessment? 

MS DANIELS:   That  is a fa i r  assessment I  mean we cannot 

argue wi th th is Mr  Chairman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   I f  you did not  stand up based on 

your dut ies I  suppose you knew them very wel l  as a 

mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
mailto:salimessa@gmail.com
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Company Secretary.   This board who was going to advise i t  i f  

you were si lence who was going to advise this board? 

MS DANIELS:   Mr Chai rman I  d id get  a bi t  bolder as t ime 

went on.   So when – when I  was asked to advise I  d id so.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you wai t  unt i l  you were asked to 

advise or did you advise as you saw the need? 

MS DANIELS:   When I  saw the need and both Mr Chai r  when 

I  was asked to advise we put  in place a program of  di rector 

t raining etcetera you know so I  cont inued to do the – the 

dut ies that  I  was engaged for.   So i t  was a combinat ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Ms Daniels I  want  to conclude wi th  

th is.   I  saw another emai l  there where you tel l  Mr Anoj  Singh 

that  you have not  put  the expi ry date for the ful f i lment of 

condi t ions of  the CP’s.   That  expi ry date was ul t imately 31 

March 2016.  Who placed that  date? 

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink i t  was… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   For the ful f i lment of  the… 

MS DANIELS:  I  th ink I  got  those – I  th ink I  got  those dates 

f rom him Mr Chairperson because the – we did not  have 20 

them in the – in the agreements we draf ted.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Were you aware that  at  the same t ime as 

this was happening that  Tegeta had signed an agreement 

wi th – in fact  i t  s igned on that  day the 10 December 2015 

signed an agreement wi th Opt imum or Glenco for the 
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purchase of  Opt imum Coal  Holdings and that  that  agreement  

was subject  to [00:10:40]  condi t ions.  

MS DANIELS:   I  was not  aware of  that  at  the t ime Mr 

Chairman.  I  later  became aware when that  came out  in the 

media.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you know what was the date for the 

ful f i lment of  those condi t ions? 

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink i t  was… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  when you became aware? 

MS DANIELS:   I  th ink i t  was March – i t  was the end of  10 

March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  coincided wi th  the same date.  

MS DANIELS:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   31 March 2016.  

MS DANIELS:   I t  d id – yes i t  d id.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja that  wi l l  lead us to the pre-payment on 

your return.  

MS DANIELS:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you Ms Daniels you wi l l  come 20 

back – another date wi l l  be arranged.  

MS DANIELS:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For now you are excused thank you.  

MS DANIELS:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  have not  seen the next  evidence 
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leader but  I  am sure.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  I  understand that . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh he is here I  can… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can see him.  Ja okay.   I  w i l l  take a short  

adjournment to enable them to set  up and then we wi l l  go 

into the evening shi f t .   Okay we adjourn.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Good af ternoon Mr Chaskalson.   Good 

af ternoon everybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Good af ternoon Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  are we ready? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We are Chai r.   I t  is Mr Holden.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  he is  cont inuing wi th his evidence.   

Good af ternoon Mr Holden.  

MR HOLDEN :    Good af ternoon Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   The oath that  was appl icable Fr iday,  20 

i t  cont inues to apply,  oath or aff i rmat ion.   Okay,  al r ight .  

PAUL EDWARD HOLDEN :    (s.u.o.)  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you Chai r.   Mr Holden,  

today we are going to be talk ing about the kickback 

payments made in respect  of  the locomot ive cont racts f rom 
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Transnet and we are going to be talk ing about payments to  

Tequesta and Regiments,  Asia.    

 Before we get  there,  I  wonder i f  we could just  go through 

the cast  of  characters so the Chai r  has a sense of  who we 

wi l l  be referr ing to  in due course? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  just  for the record.   Mr Chaskalson,  i f  

you could conf i rm again what bundle we are st i l l  using? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We are using FOS-6 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Flow of  Funds,  Bundle 6.   Thank you. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chai r,  to give you a sense of  

where we are to be going.   The locomot ive’s  cont ract  were 

paid in two di fferent  stages.   They started out  being paid 

through ent i t ies cal led JJ Trading and Century General  

Trading which were part  of  the Wor ld Windows Group and 

those payments were made general ly in the UAE.   

 And then at  a certain point ,  they shi f ted to Tequesta and 

Regiments,  Asia which were more di rect ly integrated into the 

Gupta enterpr ise as opposed to the World Windows Group 20 

that  was just  laundering for them.   

 And Tequesta and Regiments,  Asia payments were made 

ini t ia l ly in Hong Kong and then we can see that  they moved 

back into the UAE at  a later stage.    

 A l though sequent ia l ly,  the JJT and CGT payment star ted 
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f i rst ,  we are going to just  do i t  in reverse order.   So we wi l l  

ta lk today about the Hong Kong payments to Tequesta and 

Regiments,  Asia and then tomorrow we wi l l  go back to the 

World Windows Group and JJT and CGT.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Just  to int roduce some of  the 

characters and companies we wi l l  be referr ing to  today.   

Mr Holden,  can I  ask you to go to your report  at  page 175 of  

the bundle? 

MR HOLDEN :    Is that  the bundle there? 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Somebody wi l l  br ing i t  to you Mr Holden.  

MR HOLDEN :    Can I  just  have the page number again,  

please? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    175.    

MR HOLDEN :    I  am there,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there you l ist  the people to  

whom you are referr ing in your report .   Under A,  Ind ividuals 

Gupta Family,  most  of  the names are fami l iar but  can you tel l  

the Chai r  who you have under Paragraph V,  Kamal Singhala? 20 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   I  would actual ly l ike to  cross-

reference i t  against  the person,  i f  I  can? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sure.    

MR HOLDEN :    I f  I  can just  locate that? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [No audible reply]   
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MR HOLDEN :    Chai r,  Kamal S inghala which I  descr ibed at  

FOS-6 290 which the . . . [ ind ist inct ]  person [speaker not  

c lear] .   He was AJ Gupta’s son and he was also a di rector of  

VR Laser alongside Sal im Essa.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And have you seen reports of  his  

wedding? 

MR HOLDEN :    Yes,  I  have.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you tel l  the Chai r  what you 

read in the reports of  that  wedding? 

MR HOLDEN :    We see that  a certain amount – wel l ,  a 10 

part icular individual  was hi red for that  wedding who wi l l  be – 

who were ident i f ied receiving funds f rom Regiments,  Asia at  

a certain point .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you date that  wedding 

and place i t  or. . .?  

MR HOLDEN :    Yes,  the wedding took place in  Turkey.   I  just  

need to double check the art ic le again.   I  th ink i t  is in  2015.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct .   Then the next 

person I  would ask you to explain to the Chair  is Aashika 

Singh.  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   Aashika Singh was an 

Indian Nat ional .   She was an employee of  Inf in i ty  Media 

which was a Gupta enterpr ise company or at  least  we can 

t rack one payment to her which is recorded as a salary 

payment.    
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 The re levance of  Ms Singh in th is regard is that  at  a  

certain point  at  Tequesta and Regiments,  Asia which acted 

as the pr imary condui t  through which being paid,  Sal im Essa 

stepped down as the sole director and he was also replaced 

– he was then replaced by Aashika Singh.    

 And I  am sure as we wi l l  get  throughout the test imony,  

there is also an indicat ion that  she was present  at  a 

part icular ly notable gather ing in Dubai .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And you just  ment ioned Tequesta 

and Regiments,  Asia,  I  th ink,  ta lk ing about them a lo t .   Can 10 

you br ief ly te l l  the Chair  who they were? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   Tequesta and Regiments,  

Asia were two companies that  were formed in Hong Kong.  

They were f rom – what we can gather f rom the company 

informat ion records in Hong Kong,  they were registered by 

an onl ine company format ion agent who special ises in the 

creat ion of  companies in offshore tax havens.   They were 

in i t ia l ly registered wi th Sal im Essa,  the sole director,  a 

posi t ion they held unt i l  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And we have come backwards and 20 

forwards to the World Windows Group.  Can you just  again 

tel l  the Chai r  br ie f ly what the World Windows Group was and 

what i ts relat ionship to the Gupta enterpr ise was? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   The World Windows Group 

is conglomerate companies,  headquartered in Ind ia.   At  the 
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t ime of  the matters under considerat ion here,  the World 

Windows Group head by a man by the name of  Piyoosh 

Goyal .    

 The Gupta Leaks shows that  f rom at  least  ear ly 2010 

onwards unt i l  at  least  mid-2015, there was qui te an intense 

and a lucrat ive business relat ionship between the World 

Windows Group and the Gupta enterpr ise and that  included 

the World Windows Group operat ing two companies by name 

of  JJ Trading and Cent ral  Genera l  Trading,  both of  which 

were acted as money laundering vehicles form which 10 

kickbacks f rom suppl iers in relat ion to Transnet contracts 

were received and dissipated to Gupta enterpr ise companies.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And you ment ioned Piyoosh 

Goyal .   Chai r,  you might  remember,  he was the man whose 

name was on the emai l  wi th – to which the Transnet  Cranes 

Tender Report  was forwarded.   We discussed that  last  week.  

 The other World Windows Group individual  we wi l l  come 

across today is Rupesh Bansal .   Can you te l l  the Chair  who 

he is or what we know about him? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   He is a bi t  of  a  mystery 20 

f igure.   What we do know about i t  – the extent  what we know 

about i t  is included in a very l imi ted amount of  informat ion 

appearing in companies house f i l ings in . . . [ indist inct ]  

[speaker not  c lear]  companies of  houses,  the UK version of  

CIPC here.    
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 There is a company by the name of  WW Ventures in 

which Mr Bansal  appears as a co-di rector wi th Mr Goyal .   

That  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  just  stop you at  that  point?  

Can you go to page 869.63? 

MR HOLDEN :    I  do not  have an 869.63 in  the bundle I  am 

afraid.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  do you have an 869.63? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  does not  look l ike I  have got  869 and 

af ter that ,  i t  is 870.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  th is is a. . .   Let ’s make into 

a. . .   I  th ink the documents are . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Coming my way? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Coming down in a second.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   [ laughs]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  I  must  apologise.   Could we 

ask for a f ive minute adjournment,  just  that  we can sort  out  

your f i les and the wi tness’s f i les? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  take a f ive minute adjournment.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry about  that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No problem.  Yes,  let  us cont inue.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We were talk ing about  Rupesh 

Bansal  and you had ment ioned a company cal led WW 

Ventures Limited and I  had asked you to go to Annexure DD 

which is at  page 869.63.   And sorry Chai r. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You are now using a di fferent  bundle,  

hey? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Your bundle has now been spl i t  

between two f i les.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i t  would be bundle FOS-6A and 10 

FOS-6B.  This is at  the start  of  FOS-6B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   I  am just  t ry ing to th ink of  what 

we are saying to the record to make sure that  somebody who 

keeps on fol lowing Bundle 6 does not  get  confused.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  wi l l  have to refer to A and B each 

t ime I  ment ion a document.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  for record purposes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Any number in FOS-6 that  is  20 

above 869 . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .wi l l  be in Bundle B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bundle B,  ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    869 and below is Bundle A.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja,  so basical ly,  Bundle 6 has now 

been spl i t  into two bundles,  6A and 6B.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a lr ight .   So going forward,  there 

wi l l  no reference to just  Bundle 6.   I t  wi l l  e i ther  be Bundle 6A 

or Bundle 6B.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .   Thank you.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  so this is now Bundle 6B, 

869.33.   I t  is point  63.   Can you ident i fy that  document to the 10 

Chair? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   This the Companies House 

f i l ing for WW Ventures Limited which is a company wi th 

regist rat ion number 07629898 which is registered in  the UK 

with a speci f ic address,  Set t ler Floor,  Heathrow, Cube 9,  

Arkwright  Road, Col l in Brook,  Slow, Middlesex,  England,  

SL30HJ.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you di rect  the Chair  to 

Mr Bansal ’s role in that  company? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   He appears at  the fol lowing 20 

page, which is  Bundle 6A, FOS-06-869.64.   I t  indicates the 

company di rector  one is one Mr  Rupesh Bansal  wi th a 

serv ice address of  29 Woodcraf t  Crescent ,  Axe Bridge, 

Middlesex,  England,  UB10 9JB.   

 I t  provides certa in informat ion about him below which 
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indicates that  he was – he is usual ly a resident  in England.   

He is a Br i t ish ci t izen and his date of  bi r th  is the 

18t h  of  October 1974.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then i f  you go over the page, 

can you tel l  the Chair  who the second di rector is? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   The second di rector is  

Mr Piyoosh Goyal .   His service address is 9 . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We do not  need his deta i ls.   Just  

his name.   

MR HOLDEN :    [ laughs]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chai r,  that  wi l l  be at  page 

869.65 of  Bundle 6B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now, Mr Bansal  is going to appear 

in connect ion wi th  a very important  emai l .   Can I  ask you to 

go to  page 419 of  Bundle 6A and explain to the Chai r  what  

that  emai l  is? 

CHAIRPERSON :    What is the page number? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    419,  Bundle A Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    6A.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is 419,  né? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you Chai r.   Mr Holden,  can 
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you start  at  the bot tom of  the page which is where the 

st ream starts and explain what th is emai l  is? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   A t  the bot tom, you can see 

that  the or ig inal  emai l  is sent  f rom Rupesh Bansal  at  the 

emai l  address replyrb@googlemai l .com.   

 I t  is sent  to a Yang(?) Minu(?) which h is address is  

yangminu54642@qq.com.   

 I t  is sent  on the 6 t h  of  January 2015.  And as we can see 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  before you go further 10 

Mr Holden.   Chai r,  can I  just  ask you to make a note of  that  

emai l  address of  Mr Yang Minu because we wi l l  f ind i t  again.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  thank you.   But  i t  includes 

546.42,  hey? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.   That  is what wi l l  make i t  easy to  

get  c lar i ty.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   The date you give for th is emai l  

Mr Holden,  is i t  because you are able to read that  language?  20 

[ laughs]  Or that  wri t ing there because I  cannot see.   I  can 

see the year.   I  do not  see the month.   Ja,  I  th ink you said 

February.  

MR HOLDEN :    I t  is January.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  January.   Oh,  that  is the one? 
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MR HOLDEN :    Correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR HOLDEN :    And there is a six af ter the address.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  is i t  6 January? 

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And going up the stream, what  

happens to that  emai l?  

MR HOLDEN :    What we see is Yang Minu f rom that  address,  

which we have just  ident i f ied,  sends an emai l  to an address 10 

cal led Businessman of  which infoportal1@zovo.com.   He is 

forwarding the message on the 7t h  of  January 2015 and the 

body of  the message just  reads:   “Dear si r.   For  your 

interest .   Regards.”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And are you able to ident i fy who 

Businessman is? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   I  understand f rom the 

Commission’s invest igat ions that  Businessman refers to  

Mr Sal im Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And to whom – and going up to  

the top of  the t r ia l .  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   F inal ly we have an emai l  f rom 

Businessman sent  on Sunday,  the 22nd of  March 2015 to 

Ashu Chawla and i t  provides a subject  forwarded which has 
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two Chinese photos and then thereaf ter,  i t  indicates there is 

an at tachment,  at tached by emai l  wi th the name of 

f inalcsr2015workings.xl fx.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then ask you to turn to the 

fol lowing page, which is Bundle 6A, page 420?  And is that  

the at tachment. . .   Oh,  sorry.   Where did you f ind that  emai l?  

MR HOLDEN :    Chai r,  the emai l  was located wi thin the Gupta 

leak prof i le.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the document that  we see on 

page 420 of  Bundle 6A, what is that? 10 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   That  was the document in an 

Excel  spreadsheet that  was at tached to the t r ia ls of  emai ls  

we have just  seen.    

 Effect ively,  what th is Excel  spreadsheet works out  is the 

number of  or the value of  k ickbacks to be paid on certain  

Transnet contracts,  in part icular,  what they refer to as the 

359 Pro ject ,  the 100 Pro ject  and the 95 Pro ject  which refer 

to the 95 Locomot ive Project ,  the 100 Locomot ive Project  

and the 359 Locomot ive Projects.    

 And i t  ind icates the total  amount that  have already been 20 

paid to var ious ind ividuals,  to  var ious companies,  in 

part icular JJT and CJT, under the terms of  those kickback 

arrangements and what remains to be paid.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We were going to go through i t  in  

some detai l  but  whi le we are here,  why do we not  just  go 
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through i t  now?  I f  you can expla in to the Chair  how that  

spreadsheet works? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   What you have at  the very 

top l ine of  the spreadsheet is  a heading providing an 

indicat ion of  what  project  is being referred to.   So 359,  100 

refers to the 359 Project  and 100 Pro ject  and then 95 Pro ject  

and then the total .  

 Underneath that ,  i t  provides a part icular Rand value for  

each locomot ive wi thin that  project .   So each loco value for 

the 359 Project  is  R 50.48 mi l l ion,  and for the 100 Pro ject  i t  10 

is R 44 mi l l ion and for the 95 Project  i t  is R 28.28 mi l l ion.   

 And underneath . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What does R 50.48 mi l l ion represent? 

MR HOLDEN :    Apologies Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    What does R 50.48 mi l l ion represent  in  

respect  of  359 Project? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   So the 359 Project  was the supply 

of  359 locomot ives and each – the R 50.48 mi l l ion refers to  

the cont ract  pr ice of  each locomot ive wi thin that  cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   I  would have thought i t  was 20 

much more than that  but . . .   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is per locomot ive Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  per locomot ive.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Ja,  I  th ink that  is important  to – 
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per locomot ive.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you just  explain to the Chair  

how each one of  these projects seemed to,  what we have 

been cal l ing the 1064 Purchase? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe before you say that .   So I  guess,  

st r ict ly speaking Mr Chaskalson,  because i t  was one cont ract  

for an X number of  locomot ives.   I t  is not  accurate to say 

R 50.48 mi l l ion is the cont ract  pr ice because the contract  

pr ice includes a l l  the 359 Locomot ives or whatever,  is  i t  not?  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  I  just  want that  for  mysel f  

to. . .    

MR HOLDEN :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   So that  is – the 

R 50.48 mi l l ion is one locomot ive? 

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR HOLDEN :    And then the l ine below that ,  you can see i t  

indicates Chai r  project  value.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Which then gives a total  value of  that  

part icular cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  that  contract .   Okay.  

MR HOLDEN :    And that  is  the value of  the contract  as 

signed between the part icular Chinese manufacturer and 
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Transnet.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  that  is f ine.    

MR HOLDEN :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink Mr Chaskalson wanted you to  

explain something and I  interrupted him. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   We talked a lot  about  the 

1064 Project  but  these are component parts of  that  project .   

Can you explain to the Chair  what. . .   Wel l ,  they are not  al l  

component parts  in that  project .   Can you explain to the 

Chair  how these f i t  in wi th the 1064 Project  and what  kind of 10 

locomot ives there are and who the purchaser is? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   I  wi l l  just  have to double check my 

notes and make sure that  I  get  i t  exact ly r ight .   We have a 95 

Locomot ive Project  and I  am trying to just  remind mysel f  

whether that  is an elect r ical  or diesel  locomot ive project  

which I  wi l l  ref lect  very short ly.  

 Chai r,  as far as I  recal l  the 95 Locomot ive Pro ject  

ref lects a 95 diesel  locomot ives.   They were purchased by 

Transnet.   And they were purchased f rom China North Rai l ,  

CNR, Hong Kong.  20 

 The 359 Locomot ive Project  refers to the purchase of  

359 elect r ica l  locomot ives.   That  was part  of  the or ig inal  

larger 1054(sic)  Contract  and those are purchased f rom 

China South Rai l ,  Hong Kong.  

 I  should ment ion Chair  that  for the purposes today,  that  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 166 of 249 
 

at  a certain point  af ter June 2015, China South Rai l  and 

China North Rai l  merged into a single ent i ty which is 

referred to as CRRC.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And I  th ink you referred to the 

1054 Project .   I  presume you meant to say the 1064 Pro ject .  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The 100 Project? 

MR HOLDEN :    The 100 Project  re fer to the provision of  a 

hundred diesel  locomot ives.   And as far as I  can see f rom my 

notes,  I  have – that  was a cont ract  that  was signed with 10 

CRRC. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  let  us come back to that 

because there wi l l  be. . .  I  th ink the Chair  may have heard 

evidence about the decision by Transnet  to fast  t rack a pre-

purchase of  a hundred electr ical  locomot ives.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  I  th ink so.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Because – extensively because 

the 1064 procure was being . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   I  d id,  ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  anyway.   Let  us go further  20 

down the tab le so that  we understand the numbers in  i t .    

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   A t  the thi rd l ine,  we have 

the project  value which we have al ready ment ioned.   The 

f i rst  value is of  the 359 Project .   I t  g ives the value as 

R 18.122 32 00,00.   And on the 100 Project  i t  is g iven as 
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R 4.4 mi l l ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  I  th ink you are confusing 

mi l l ions and bi l l ions.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i f  you can start  again.  

MR HOLDEN :    Sure.   I t  is R 18.122 32 000,00 in the f i rst  

column under 359.   And the 100,  i t  is R 4.4 bi l l ion.   And the 

95 Project ,  i t  is R 2.686 60 000,00.   And then we have a total  

f igure for al l  of  those contracts together which is  

R 22 152 232 000,00.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR HOLDEN :    Thereaf ter,  we have an entry which says total  

receivables wi l l  be f rom CSR which stands for China South 

Rai l .   For the whole project ,  i t  is 20% for 95 and 21% for 359 

and 100.  

 What they propose,  i t  wi l l  become a l i t t le bi t  c learer 

below, is  the port ion of  the total  project  va lue that  CSR 

intended to pay over  to  JJT and CJT of  which 15% was to go 

to CJT.  

 And so CJT and JJT, for their  part icular fees for money 20 

laundering,  and the remainder of  that  was to go to  the Gupta 

enterpr ise.    

 So what we have here at  that  fourth l ine,  is effect ive ly a 

calculat ion of  the total  value of  k ickbacks to be paid on 

these three contracts.    



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 168 of 249 
 

 The total  value under the 359 Pro ject  is  

R 3.805 687 2 000,00.   The 100 Project  would be a total  

k ickback of  R 924 mi l l ion.   And the 95 Project ,  i t  would be 

R 537.32  000,00.   And then the total  amount would be 

R 5.267 007 2 000,00.    

 So that  was the total  amount that  would be paid out  to 

the var ious recipients of  k ickbacks in relat ion to th is  

contract .  

 The l ine below indicates the amounts that  have already 

been paid by the data of  th is part icular working sheet ,  which 10 

at  that  point ,  which you can see i t  is a CSR has paid on the 

6 t h of  January 2015, which,  i f  the Chair  recal ls,  was the date 

on which the emai l  was f i rst  sent  by Rupesh Bansal .  

 And i t  g ives a f igure of  US Dol lars for the combined 

f igure for the 359 and the 100 cont racts of  

107.203 921 mi l l ion Dol lars.    

 And then under the 95 Project  i t  provides a f igure of  – i t  

is a l i t t le bi t  d i ff icul t  to read wi thout  the decimal point  in 

place but  i t  is  f ine but  as far  as I  can see i t  is  

16.699 028 9 mi l l ion US Dol lars.  20 

 And then the total  f igure combined of  those two amounts 

is 123 903 822,89 US Dol lars.   That  was the amount that  was 

al ready been paid under the terms of  these kickback 

arrangements.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you just  read that  note in red 
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that  explains how one reaches that  f igure – how that  f igure 

of  123.903 mi l l ion Dol lars was reached? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   The l ine reads:   Note:   CSR paid 

at  di fferent  t ime when i t  was due.   And CSR appl ied var ious 

project  rates,  ZAR/USD which stands for South Afr ican 

Rand/US Dol lar.   At  the t ime of  the payment,  JJT/CJT 

received al l  in US Dol lars.  

 What th is refers to Chair  is that  the amounts were to be 

paid to CJT and JJT and those notes related to Tequesta and 

Regiments.   Af ter certain mi lestones payments have been 10 

made by Transnet .   Usual ly  related to a part icular number of  

locomot ives.  

 At  that  po int ,  there was a Rand f igure that  was 

calculated that  needed to be paid based on the Rand f igure 

that  was paid by Transnet  to CSR or CNR and that  was then 

converted to a Dol lar amount and the Dol lar amount was 

then t ransferred to CJT and JJT.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then in  the next  row, receivables 

f rom CSR.  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   This breaks down Chai r  the way in 

which the amounts,  the kickback have been calculated.   

What we see here is under the 359 and 100 Pro jects,  i t  

indicates that  21% is total  receivables.   That  is the total  

amount to be paid to CJT.  2% advanced success fees.   That  
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is 2% of  the cont ract  value to be paid as a success fee and 

19% receivables on actual  basis that  is due f rom CSR.   

 And there Chai r,  what  that  means is 90% of  each 

mi lestone payment that  is made f rom Transnet to CSR.   

 Under the 95 Pro ject  i t  is a sl ight ly easier calculat ion.   

They just  refer to 20% of  total  receivables.   And then i t  g ives 

a f igure to the r ight  which is R 5.267 007 200 000,00.    

 What th is indicates Chair  is that ,  very s imple,  that  for  

the 359 and the 100 Projects,  China South Rai l  was intended 

then to pay a total  of  21% of  the pr ice paid by Transnet to 10 

JJT and CJT.  And on the 95 Project  i t  was intended to pay 

20% to CJT and JJT.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the total  amount that  i t  would 

pay? 

MR HOLDEN :    Again,  that  is  R 5.267 007 200  000,00 

Dol lars(sic).   Apologies.   Rand, not  Dol lars.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then the next  l ine,  what  does that  

refer to? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly,  Chai r.   What th is l ine indicates is i t  

refers to JJT/CJT and expendi tures.   The effect  of  th is is  to  20 

descr ibe the fee that  was to be paid to JJT and CJT for 

carrying out  certa in – for receiving the funds and then just  

repeat ing them. 

 I t  says here out  of  2%, under 359 Pro ject  and 100 

Projects indicates,  out  of  2% success fee,  1% success fee 
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for  JJT and 1% expendi tures,  which we understand to mean,  

1% of  the total  contract  value would be paid on the grant ing 

of  the contract  to  JJT and 1% would be paid to the Gupta 

enterpr ise.  

 Out of  19% CSR receivables,  which is the 21% total  

contract  va lue minus 2%, JJT receives 15% and expendi ture 

is 85%.  So on th is contract ,  JJT receives 15% of  19% and 

addi t ional  1% of  the total  contract  and the remainder is pa id 

over to the Gupta enterpr ise.  

 At  the fol lowing l ine i t  says out  of  20% receivables,  CJT 10 

receives 15% and expendi ture is 85%.  This again indicates 

that  a part  of  the total  pro ject  value,  CJT would take a 15% 

share of  20% share of  the contract  value,  whi le the 

remainder of  the 20% would be paid over to the Gupta 

enterpr ise.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Next  l ine.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   So the next  l ine then provides a 

Rand f igure breakdown.  The amounts that  wi l l  be accruing 

to JJT and then under expendi tures,  what we understand to 

be the Gupta enterpr ise.  20 

 Under the 359 and the 100 Projects as a combined 

f igure,  we have R 3.862 577 880,00.   And for JJT,  we have 

R 867 109 320,00 .    

 Under the 95 Project ,  we have an amount of  

R 456 722 000,00.   I  just  want to make sure that  is a 
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hundred percent  correct .   That  is correct .   So i t  is 

R 456 722 000,00.  

 And then of  that ,  then CJT was to receive i ts own 15% 

which is equal  to  R 80 598 00,00.   And then the f inal  row 

gives a total  across those three contracts.    

 I t  is  total  expendi tures i .e.  the total  amount that  he paid 

to the Gupta enterpr ise under these calculat ions,  would be 

R 3.908 250 008,00.   And for JJT and CJT, i t  wi l l  be 

R 947 747 707 320,00.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The next  l ine on expendi tures? 10 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   So expendi tures then explains the 

– i t  effect ive ly repeats to an extent  of  – to some of  the 

previous l ines.   I t  indicates the speci f ic amounts that  wi l l  be 

paid to the Gupta enterpr ise here.    

 So under the 359 and the 100 Projects,  they were 

intended to be paid a 1% success fee which is. . .   I  must  

double check I  have got  the correct  decimal places here.   I t  

is 21 903 000  Dol lars.    

 And i t  says 85% of  remain ing receivables would be. . .   I  

have 554 132. . .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  th ink that  is 55 mi l l ion.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.   I f  I  may,  I  might  just  

get  a pen to mark the decimals to  make i t  s l ight ly easier to 

read? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Somebody should just  assist  
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you wi th a pen.   Oh, you have got  one? 

MR HOLDEN :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay he has got  i t .    

MR HOLDEN :    Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is qual i ty Chai r.   That  is 55 430 2097,75 

Dol lars under the 359 and 100 Projects.   And then under the 

95 Pro ject ,  we have an amount of  40 194 917,45 Dol lars 

which was supposed to be paid to the Gupta enterpr ise.  

 And then we have a total  amount in US Dol lars of  10 

90 614 118.20 Dol lars.   So that  is the total  f igure that  was 

supposed to be paid – remained to be paid to – that  was to 

be paid the Gupta enterpr ise in  relat ion to these three 

contracts.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then the next  l ine,  which I  

imagine gives the JJT/CJT total  payment. . .   Wel l ,  payment  

breakdown.  Maybe i f  you can just  te l l  us what that  total  

f igure to go to JJT and CJT would be? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   So at  the far r ight ,  we have the 

tota l  f igure and that  is 33 289 705,68 Dol lars.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then the bot tom l ine which is 

cruc ial  for let t ing us know what had actual ly been paid at  

that  stage and what was st i l l  to be paid.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   We have notes in  red.   And the 

f i rst  note reads:   1.   JJT/CJT in total  have to receive – and 
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let  me just  make the decimal point  marks again.   I t  is 

R 5 267 7200,00.    

 And i t  says CSR has made several  payments using 

appl icable forex rates to t ransfer ZAR.  That  is South Afr ican 

Rand into appl icable US Dol lars.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Underneath.   Just  keep reading 

through that  – unt i l  the bot tom of  the table.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   I t  says:   Request  CSR to inform 

that  in total  how many ZAR (South Af r ican Rands),  CSR 

(China South Rai l )  has t ransferred in appl icable exchange 10 

rate for which JJT/CJT received in tota l  123 903 822,89 

Dol lars unt i l  now.   

 Then at  point  6,  as the above ZAR amount,  which was 

used to t ransfer US Dol lars,  123 903 822,89 Dol lars.   This 

can be deducted f rom the total  receivables ZAR which is  

R 5.267 bi l l ion.   This f igure wi l l  g ive the balance due as total  

f rom CSR.  

 The above balance X amount in ZAR repaid by CSR in 

future to JJT/CJT and JJT/CJT have to account  the 85% 

towards expendi tures.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So whatever remained af ter the 

deduct ion of  the Rand equivalent  of  123.9 mi l l ion Dol lars 

f rom the total  of  R 5.267 bi l l ion would st i l l  be payable to 

JJT/CJT but  85% of  that ,  they would have to account to the 

Guptas for.  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 175 of 249 
 

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So let  us now turn to the 

agreements in terms of  which al l  of  these payments were 

made.  And whi le  we are i t ,  we may ident i fy one or two – or  

actual ly one addi t ional  agreement that  we wi l l  d iscuss 

tomorrow.  Can I  ask you now to turn to Annexure A on FOS, 

Bundle 6A, page 298? 

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease repeat that  page Mr Chaskalson. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is Bundle 6 A,  page 298.   Chai r,  

298.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    629.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  298 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  298.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bundle 6,  page 298.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And th is  i s  a  cont rac t  tha t  we  

w i l l  ge t  to  tomor row but  very  br ie f l y  because we a re  go ing  

th rough the  who le  ba tch  o f  cont rac ts ,  can you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what  th is  cont rac t  re la tes  to?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  agent  agreement  20 

tha t  i s  da ted  the  13  June 2011 and s igned between  par ty  A 

wh ich  has prov ided Shangha i  Zhenghua Heavy Indust r ies  

Co L im i ted  and we w i l l  be  re fe r r ing  to  them tomorrow in  

more  de ta i l  as  ZPMC which  is  the  a l te rna te  acronym fo r  

them and pa r ty  B  is  JJ  Trad ing  FCE and i t  re la tes  to  a 
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con t rac t  fo r  two sh ip  to  shore  conta ine r  c ranes inc lud ing  

the  repos i t ion ing  o f  ex i s t ing  Noe l l  Cranes,  and add i t iona l  5  

number  sh ip  to  shore  cranes fo r  Transnet  South  A f r i ca .   

The name o f  the  pro jec t  i s  –  the  Transnet  in te rna l  name fo r  

the  pro jec t  i s  iCLMHQ0762 wh ich  then i s  ind i ca ted  as  

des ign ,  manufac ture ,  de l i very  and  commiss ion ing  o f  seven  

hand and l i f t  sh ip  shore  c ranes fo r  the  Durban Conta iner  

Termina l ,  Durban,  South  A f r i ca  and re loca t ion  o f  two 

ex i s t ing  IMPSA sh ip  to  shore  cranes f rom Durban  to  Por t  

E l i zabeth ,  South  A f r i ca .   And I  shou ld  add here ,  Cha i r,  th is  10 

is  a  separa te  and  d is t inc t  cont rac t  to  the  cont rac t  tha t  was 

entered in to  be tween Transnet  Por t  Termina ls  and L iebher r  

wh ich  we d i scussed on Fr iday.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  –  I  mean,  we w i l l  ge t  to  in  

de ta i l  tomor row but  th is ,  to  an t ic ipa te  tomor row,  i s  

k ickback cont rac t  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  p rocu rement  

o f  c ranes f rom ZPMC.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.    What  the 

agreement  e f fec t i ve l y  a r ranges is  fo r  –  incent iv ises  JJT to 

seek to  inc rease the  cost  o f  the  cont rac t  to  benef i t  ZPMC.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  next  agreement  wh ich  

is  the  f i rs t  agreement  tha t  we  have dea l ing  w i th  the  

locomot ives  cont rac t ,  tha t  i s  on  page 304 o f  bund le  6A and  

i t  i s  annexure  B .   And on page 304  can you br ie f l y  descr ibe  

how the  cover  page descr ibes th is  agreement?  
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MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  i t  ind ica tes  and exc lus i ve  

agency ag reement  en tered in to  be tween CNR Hong Kong,  

wh ich  is  Ch ina  Nor th  Ra i l  Hong Kong Corpora t ion  L im i ted ,  

was Tequesta  Group L im i ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you go ove r  the  page  

to  page 305 can you fu r ther  share  the  da te  o f  the 

agreement?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  the  da te  o f  ag reement  

appears  a t  the  ve ry  top  o f  tha t  page,  i t  reads:  

“Th is  agency agreement ,  th is  ag reement  i s  da ted  20  10 

May 2014 and is  made and ente red in to  by  be tween 

the  fo l low ing pa r t ies . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  f i rs t  par ty  named on the  

agreement?  

MR HOLDEN:    I s  Tequesta  Group L im i ted ,  here ina f te r  

re fe r red  to  as  TGL,  a  company du ly  inco rpora ted  and  

ex i s t ing  under  the  laws o f  Jeb i l  A l i  Free  Zone and  hav ing  

i t s  reg i s te red o f f i ce  a t  P.O.  Box 17398,  Duba i ,  UAE,  du ly  

au thor ised and represented by  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  Essa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then  i f  you can go down to  20 

fo l low ing page 306  under  the  de f in i t ions .   There  i s  a  

de f in i t ion  o f  p ro jec t  and product ,  can you redact  those 

def in i t ions  ou t  fo r  the  Cha i r?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  under  p roduct  i t  reads:  

“Means d iese l  locomot ives  as  awarded by  Transne t  
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Fre igh t  Ra i l  fo r  genera l  f re igh t  bus iness a f te r  be ing  

successfu l  in  tender. ”  

And under  p ro jec t ,  p ro jec t  i s  de f ined as :  

“Refers  to  supp ly  o f  232 d iese l  locomot ives  fo r  the  

genera l  f re igh t  bus iness i ssued by  Transnet  Fre igh t  

Ra i l  in  South  A f r i ca . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then there  i s  –  we l l ,  i f  you  go to  

page 309 the  te rms o f  payment  a re  descr ibed under  c lause 

7 .   Can you take  the  Cha i r  to  those?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  so  in  c lause 7  we have seven 10 

sub-c lauses,  7 .1  s ta tes :  

“The agency commiss ion  o f  TGL sha l l  be  

ascer ta ined on a  dea l  to  dea l  bas is . ”  

TGL be ing  Tequesta  Group L im i ted .   7 .2 :  

“For  the  pro jec t  re fe r red  he re  and above,  TGL sha l l  

…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  can you jus t  pause the re ,  

tha t  wou ld  be  the  232  locomot ives ,  d iese l  locomot ives  

pro jec t  accord ing  to  the  de f in i t ions .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   Return ing  to  7 .2 :  20 

“For  the  pro jec t  re fe r red  here  and above,  TGL,  

Tequesta  Group  L im i ted ,  sha l l  be  en t i t led  fo r  a  

success fee  o f  2% o f  the  cont rac t  va lue  and an 

agent  fee  commiss ion  o f  19% of  the  cont rac t  va lue  

wh ich  sha l l  invar iab ly  inc lude the  va lue  o f  a l l  
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supp l ies  made under  the  p ro jec t . ”  

7 .3  reads:  

“TGL shou ld  be  ent i t led  to  agency commiss ion  

i r respect ive  o f  the  fac t  whethe r  supp ly  i s  o f  ma in  

product  o r  any spare  par t  o r  anc i l l a ry  i tem the re to . ”  

7 .4  reads:  

“The success fee  o f  2% on the  to ta l  va lue  o f  the  

pro jec t  as  s ta ted  above w i l l  be  pa id  by  CNR Dal ian  

Locomot ive  and Ro l l ing  S tock  Company to  Century  

Genera l  Trad ing  FCE here ina f te r  re fe r red  to  as  RAL 10 

wh ich  is  du ly  incorpo ra ted  and ex i s t ing  under  the  

compan ies  ord inance o f  Hong Kong and hav ing  i t s  

reg i s te red o f f i ces  a t  P.O.  Box 17398,  Hong Kong,  

UAE,  du ly  au thor ised and represented by Mr  Sa l im  

Essa. ”  

I f  I  may,  Cha i r,  what  we have here  is  a  s l igh t  confus ion  in  

the  cont rac t  be tween who exact ly  CNR i s  cont rac t i ng  w i th .   

We know tha t  th is  i s  a  cont rac t  be tween CNR and  

Tequesta .   However,  these typos wou ld  ind i ca ted  tha t  there  

was a  s im i la r  cont rac t  o r  s im i la r ly  worded cont rac t  tha t  20 

app l ied  be tween CNR and Century  Genera l  Trad ing  and in  

p repar ing  th is  pa r t i cu la r  cont rac t  an  a t tempt  was made to 

rep lace Centu ry  Genera l  Trad ing  w i th  Tequesta  Group  

L im i ted  bu t  tha t  does not  appear  to  have happened in  a l l  

cases.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then 7 .5?  

MR HOLDEN:    7 .5  reads:  

“The agency commiss ion  o f  19% on to ta l  p ro jec t  

va lue  sha l l  acc rue immedia te l y  on  rece ip t  o f  

purchase o rder  o r  on  secur ing  o f  the  b id  by  the  

company and same sha l l  become due fo r  payment  

appor t ionate l y  e i ther  when payment  when the  

company is  re leased by  the  u l t imate  buyer.   

However,  i t  i s  ag reed tha t  19% of  the  f i rs t  payment  

w i l l  be  pa id  by  company in  second payment  o f  50%,  10 

means ha l f  o f  19% a long w i th  19% of  second 

payment  amount  and 50% means ba lance ha l f  o f  

19% in  th i rd  payment  a long w i th  19% of  the  th i rd  

payment  amount  and f rom the  four th  payment  

onwards 19% in  every  payment .   The amounts  a re  

ge t t ing  due sha l l  be  t ransfer red  to  the  account  o f  

TGL th rough a  w i re  t ransfe r  w i th in  15  days o f  

rece ip t  o f  payment  by  the  company. ”  

And a f te r  pass ing  some very  d i f f i cu l t  to  read con t rac tua l  

language,  I  unders tand th is  to  mean tha t  on  a  ro l l ing  bas i s  20 

CNR wou ld  re ta in  50% of  the  success fee  tha t  was due a t  a  

par t i cu la r  m i les tone payment  and tha t  wou ld  re lease the  

fo l low ing 15% on the  payment  o f  the  next  payment  

m i les tone,  c lea r ly  as  a  means o f  bu f fe r ing  CNR f rom 

adverse  costs  in  re la t ion  to  th is  cont rac t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you go down to  page  

313 can you jus t  ident i f y  who the  ind iv idua l  i s  who must  

rece ive  no t ices  on  beha l f  o f  Tequesta  Group L im i ted? 

MR HOLDEN:    313?  Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    C lause 12.1 .3 .  

MR HOLDEN:    C lause 12.1 .3  ind ica tes  tha t  fo r  Tequesta  

Group L im i ted  wou ld  be  fo r  the  k ind  a t ten t ion  o f  Mr  Sa l im 

Az iz  Essa,  P.  O.  Box 17398,  Duba i ,  UAE.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then to  the  s ignatu re  page 

on 315 and i f  you can jus t  ident i f y  the  s ignator ies  to  the  10 

Cha i r?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  a t  page 315 the  s ignatory  on  

beha l f  o f  Teques ta  Group L im i ted  is  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  Essa  

and fo r  and beha l f  o f  CNR is  Mr  Ma Zhan.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  we can go to  the  next  

cont rac t ,  tha t  i s  on  page 316,  i t  is  annexure  C and aga in  

on  the  t i t le  page,  the  par t ies?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   Th is  reads:  

“Exc lus ive  agency ag reement ”  

And i t  i s  a  cont rac t  be tween CNR Dal ian  Locomot ive  and 20 

Ro l l ing  S tock  Company L im i ted  w i th  Reg iments  As ia ,  CNR 

s tand ing  fo r  Ch ina  Nor th  Ra i l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And over  the  page on 317,  the  

da te  and ind i v idua l  represent ing  Reg iments  As ia?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  the  da te  i s  p rov ided a t  the  top  
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l i ne ,  the  da te  i s  the  20  May 2014  and under  the  par t ies  i t  

ind ica tes  fo r  Reg iments  As ia  here ina f te r  re fe r red  to  RAL.   

They are  du ly  au thor i sed and represented by  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  

Essa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  can then go down to  page 

320 and ident i f y  the  pro jec t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  under  p ro jec t  i t  re fe rs  to  the  

supp ly  o f  locomot ive  and [ ind is t inc t ]  .10 .26  par t s  in  South  

A f r i ca .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  324,  the  payment  te rms 10 

in  c lause 7?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  under  c lause 7 ,  7 .1  reads :  

The agency commiss ion  o f  RAL,  Reg iments  As ia  

L im i ted  sha l l  be  ascer ta ined on dea l  to  dea l  bas is .  

7 .2  For  the  pro jec t  re fe r red  he re  and above  

Reg iments  As ia  L im i ted  sha l l  be  en t i t led  fo r  

an  agency commiss ion  o f  18  120 000 US 

do l la rs ,  sha l l  invar iab ly  inc lude the  va lue  o f  

a l l  supp l ies  made under  the  pro jec t .   

Reg iments  As ia  L im i ted  sha l l  be  en t i t led  to  20 

agency commiss ion  i r respect ive  o f  the  fac t  

whethe r  supp ly  i s  o f  ma in  product  o r  any  

spare  par t  o r  anc i l la ry  i tem there to . ”  

7 .4  The agency commiss ion  wh ich  works  ou t  a t  

US do l la rs  18  120 000,  as  s ta ted  above,  
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sha l l  ge t  immedia te ly  due and payab le  in  

f i ve  ins ta lments  w i th in  a  month  o f  the  pro jec t  

be ing  s igned,  va l ida ted  and upon  rece iv ing  

advance depos i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  ba tch  f rom the  

u l t imate  buyer  by  the  company. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then down to  page 329  to  see 

who gets  no t ices  fo r  Reg iments  As ia .   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  under  329 i t  ind i ca tes  tha t  the 

ind iv idua l  who had rece ived not ice  fo r  Reg iments  As ia  

L im i ted  wou ld  be  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  Essa a t  P.O.  Box 17398,  10 

Hong Kong.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  332,  the  s ignatures?  

MR HOLDEN:    Page 332,  Cha i r,  the  s ignatory  on  beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  As ia  L im i ted  is  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  Essa fo r  and on  

beha l f  o f  CNR Dal ion  Locomot i ves  and Ro l l ing  S tock  

Company,  i t  i s  Mr  Zhu Zh i  Jong(? ) .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The next  cont rac t  i s  a  d ra f t  

cont rac t ,  i t  i s  annexure  D a t  page  334.   I t  was superseded  

by  annexure  a t  page 346,  so  because we are  go ing  to  dea l  

w i th  ne i the r  o f  them today maybe you can sk ip  annexure  D  20 

and go s t ra igh t  to  annexure  E  and br ie f l y  descr ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  what  annexure  E ,  page 346.  

CHAIRPERSON:    346?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    346,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  
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MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  bus iness 

deve lopment  se rv ices  agreement  en tered in to  be tween 

CNR China Nor th  Ra i l  Ro l l ing  S tock  South  A f r i ca  (P ty)  L td ,  

so  as  d i s tan t  f rom i t s  Hong Kong ent i t y  w i th  Bus iness 

Expans ion ,  s t ruc ture  Products  (P ty)  L td  and i t  p rov ides a  

reg i s t ra t ion  number  fo r  –  what  we re fe r  to  as  BEX 

2009/020420/07 and the  agreement  da te  i s  the  25  Apr i l  

2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now we  are  no t  go ing  to  d iscuss  

th is  ve ry  b r ie f l y  jus t  to  te l l  the  Cha i r  what  i t  governed.  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  i t  i s  the  re loca t ion  o f  cer ta in  

fac i l i t i es  tha t  was requested by  Transnet  in  re la t ion  to  the  

product ion  o f  locomot ives  and  the  substance  o f  the  

cont rac t  i s  tha t  BEX or  Bus iness Expans ion  Products  wou ld  

be  incent iv ised to  t ry  and ensure  tha t  Transnet  increased 

the  amount  tha t  i t  was go ing  to  be  pay ing  to  CNR way  

above the  or ig ina l  s ta ted  amount ,  wh ich  was jus t  under  

R10 mi l l ion ,  and tha t  any amount  over  a  cer ta in  benchmark  

pr ice ,  wh ich  is  R580 mi l l ion  wou ld  be  payab le  to  BEX so i t  

i s  an  incent ive  on  beha l f  o f  BEX to  induce Transne t  to  pay  20 

a  much la rger  amount  than had or ig ina l l y  been ant ic ipa ted  

fo r  re loca t ion  cos ts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you jus t  repeat  those two  

f igures?  What  was the  or ig ina l  an t ic ipa ted  cost?   What  

was the  benchmark  cost  in  the  cont rac t  above wh ich  BEX 
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wou ld  ge t  the i r  commiss ion?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   The o r ig ina l  quoted pr i ce  was 

s l igh t ly  under  R10 mi l l ion .   I t  was,  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l ,  R9.75  

mi l l ion  and the  benchmark  pr i ce ,  wh ich  has ac tua l l y  

increased on the  prev ious cont rac t  i s  R580 mi l l ion  and  

thereaf te r,  the  amount  tha t  was  to  be  earned by  BEX,  

wou ld  be  the  amount  over  and above R580 mi l l ion .   So i f  

there  were  ab le  to  ge t  Transnet  to  pay more  than R580  

mi l l ion  they wou ld  rece ive  the  add i t iona l  amount  tha t  i s  

pa id .   That  i s  c lear ly  an  adverse  o r  p re jud ice  to  Transnet  o f  10 

c lose to  -  in  te rms o f  the  benchmark  pr i ce  R570 mi l l ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  benchmark  pr ice  i s  a t  

page 357,  annexure  A .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   I t  appears  a t  

annexure  A under  po in t  2  wh ich  ind ica tes :  

“Negot ia te  and ass i s t  to  inc lude the  p ro jec t  a t  the  

m in imum benchmark cost  o f  R580  mi l l ion  exc lud ing  

VAT. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then we come to  the  cont rac t  

wh ich  is  the  most  famous o f  a l l  o f  these cont rac ts ,  i t  i s  20 

annexure  F a t  page 358.   Can you take  the  Cha i r  to  tha t  

cont rac t  and the  par t ies  on  the  cover  page? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  358 we have a  bus iness  

deve lopment  se rv ices  agreement  be tween CSR,  wh ich 

Ch ina  South  Ra i l  Hong Kong L im i ted  w i th  Tequesta  Group 
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L im i ted ,  o r  i t s  nominee,  w i th  an  agreement  da te  o f  the  18  

May 2015.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  page 362 we see the  pro jec t  

to  wh ich  th is  re fe rs .  

MR HOLDEN:    Indeed,  Cha i r,  i t  re fe rs  to  p ro jec t  359 and 

pro jec t  359 is  de f ined as :  

“Refers  to  any por t ion  o f  the  tender  fo r  the  supp ly  

o f  359 e lec t r i c  l ocomot ives  22E to  Transnet  SOC 

L im i ted  South  A f r i ca ,  here ina f te r  the  c l ien t . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you can go to  page 10 

365,  paragraph 3 .3  and exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  what  tha t  

c lause dea ls  w i th?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  I  w i l l  read out  the  fu l l  c lause but  

the  summary o f  the  c lause is  t ha t  –  summat ion  o f  the 

c lause is  tha t  a t  a  cer ta in  po in t  JJT and CJT were  no  

longer  used as  the  main  –  as  the  pr imary  agents  and they  

were  rep laced by  in  th is  case Tequesta  L im i ted  and tha t  

Tequesta  wou ld  seek under  i t s  own powers  to  reso lve  any  

ou ts tand ing  d isputes  w i th  JJT ar i s ing .   Shou ld  I  read  the  

fu l l  parag raph?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  do ,  yes .  

MR HOLDEN:    Okay.   3 .2  reads:  

“The company has adv i sed Teques ta  tha t  a  p rev ious  

agreement  had been s igned between CSR Zhuzhou 

E lec t r i c  Locomot i ve  L im i ted  and JJ  Trad ing ,  FZE,  
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here ina f te r  re fe r red  to  as  the  JJT.   However,  the  

company adv ised  Tequesta  tha t  in  event  tha t  JJT 

d isputes  or  contes ts  the  cance l la t ion  or  non-

payment  in  a  cour t  o f  law and i f  the  cour t  decrees  

tha t  the  ag reement  w i th  JJT is  va l id  o r  t he  

[ ind is t inc t ]  17 .51  agreement  i s  reached between 

Tequesta  and JJT then the  f inanc ia l  compensat ion  

to  JJT,  wh ich  w i l l  no t  exceed the  re ten t ion  amount ,  

tha t  i s  15% of  the  to ta l  amount  payab le  to  Tequesta  

under  th is  ag reement  w i l l  be  deducted f rom the  10 

amount  re ta ined f rom Tequesta  as  per  c lause 6 .1 .6  

and the  ba lance,  i f  there  i s ,  w i l l  then be pa id  to  

Tequesta  w i th in  30  days a f te r  the  company rece ip t  

o f  the  las t  payment  and/or  re tu rn  o f  a l l  bank  

guarantees re leased by  the  c l ien t  wh ichever  occurs  

la te r.   Under  th is  c i rcumstance,  the  invo i ces w i th  

re ten t ion  to  the  company sha l l  be  no t  be  c la imab le ,  

[ ind is t inc t ]  18 .25  Tequesta ,  Tequesta  sha l l  reso l ve  

the  d ispute  w i th  JJT th rough amicab le  consu l ta t ion  

and ensure  there  is  no  fu r ther  d ispute  w i th  the  20 

company f rom e i ther  s ide . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  you can go to  page 367 

c lause 6 .1 .1 .    

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  6 .1 .1 .  I t  reads:  

“For  the  pro jec t - re la ted  adv isory  serv i ces  p rov ided  
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by  Tequesta  as  de ta i led  in  annexure  A Tequesta  

sha l l  be  en t i t led  to  an  adv i sory  fee  o f  21%.  

In  b rackets  i t  ind ica tes  20% but  I  am assuming  tha t  i s  

supposed to  read  21%.  

“ . . .o f  the  cont rac t  va lue  o f  p ro jec t  359 awarded to  

the  company based on 2% of  the  cont rac t  va lue  as  

a  success fee  and 19% of  p ro  ra ta  to  the  m i les tone 

based payments  rece ived by  the  company f rom the  

c l ien t .   The company has a l ready  pa id  3 .9% of  the  

cont rac t  va lue  wh ich  is  ind i ca ted  R706 770 480 to  10 

JJT up to  the  ag reement .   To ta l  payab le  amount  to  

Tequesta  under  th is  agreement  i s  17 .1% of  the  

cont rac t  va lue  wh ich  is  R3 098 916  720.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  can you exp la in  b road ly  what  

tha t  i s  descr ib ing? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  i t  i s  desc r ib ing  tha t  had  a l ready 

been pa id  to  JJT and TJT up  unt i l  the  da te  o f  th is  

par t i cu la r  cont rac t  and therea f te r,  w i th  tha t  amount  

deducted f rom the  cont rac t  va lue ,  the  amoun t  tha t  

remained to  be  pa id  to  Tequesta  under  th is  ag reement  20 

wh ich  meant  tha t  by  s ign ing  th is  agreement  Tequesta  was 

due to  rece ive  over  R3 b i l l i on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  no t ices  a t  the  foo t  o f  

page 370.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  i t  says  under  m isce l laneous,  i t  
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p rov ides fo r  Tequesta ,  Tequesta  Group L im i ted ,  i t  says :  

“For  the  a t ten t ion  o f  Mr  Sa l im Essa . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The s ignature  page,  375? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  page 375 we have Mr  

Sa l im Essa s ign ing  on  beha l f  o f  Tequesta  Group L im i ted ,  

th is  cont rac t  was  s igned a t  Shenzhen on the  18 t h  day o f  

May 2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then annexure  A ,  the  serv i ces  

tha t  Tequesta  and Mr  Sa l im Essa had to  p rov ide  CSR for  in  

re tu rn  fo r  these b i l l i ons  o f  rands are  l i s ted .   Can you take  10 

the  Cha i r  th rough those se rv i ces  and then we w i l l  pause 

and reach the  f ina l  c lause.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  and the  annexure  A ,  there  are  s i x  

serv i ces  tha t  a re  ident i f ied .   F i r s t  is :  

1 .  Adv ise  the  company on the  regu la to ry  soc ia l ,  

cu l tu ra l  and po l i t i ca l  f ramework  i n  South  A f r i ca 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  what  i s  the  page where  the 

serv i ces . . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    376,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    376.   Okay,  thank you.   I  have got  i t .   

MR HOLDEN:    Okay,  so  under  1 ,  le t  me beg in  aga in ,  

Cha i r.  

1 .  Adv ise  the  company on the  regu la to ry  soc ia l ,  

cu l tu ra l  and po l i t i ca l  f ramework  i n  South  A f r i ca 
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w i th  respect  to  the  pro jec t .  

2 .  Ident i f y  the  var ious oppor tun i t ies  o f  par t i c ipa t ion  

in  var ious government  and p r iva te  p ro jec ts  

lead ing  to  the  shor t  l i s t ing  and  focus on  the  

cur ren t  p ro jec t  as  contempla ted  in  th i s  

agreement .  

3 .  C lose ly  coord ina te  w i th  the  des ignated 

author i t ies  to  comprehend  the  app l i cab le 

government  po l i c ies  and adv i se  the  company 

accord ing ly  to  ensure  smooth  execut ion  o f  the 10 

pro jec t .  

4 .  P rov ide  consu l t ancy on  par t i c i pa t ing  in  the  

tenders  and b idd ing  p rocesses re la ted  to  the  

pro jec t  on  an  ongo ing  bas i s .  

5 .  Ass i s t  the  company in  negot ia t ing  w i th  the  c l ient  

on  pr i c ing  leve l s  in  re la t ion  to  the  pro jec t .  

6 .  Ass i s t  the  company in   increas ing  the i r  foo tpr in t  

in  government  and p r iva te  pro jec ts  in  South  

A f r i ca . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you read the  c lause  a f te r  a l l  20 

o f  th is?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The c lause thereaf te r  

reads:  

“ I t  i s  hereby noted and agreed between the  par t ies  

tha t  the  above serv i ces  are  p rov ided as  a  p re-
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p ro jec t  serv ice  and w i l l  conc lude  on the  company  

s ign ing  the  cont rac t  fo r  the  pro jec t  w i th  the  c l ien t .   

The company w i l l  no t  requ i re  any proof  o f  de l i very  

o f  the  above serv ices  s ince  i t  i s  unders tood tha t  the  

pro jec t  wou ld  no t  have mater ia l i sed  w i thout  the  

ac t i ve  e f fo r ts  o f  Tequesta  to  p rov ide  the  serv ices  

l i s ted  above. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  found the  -  apar t  f rom th is  one,  

th is  c lause,  I  found tha t  o the r  one ,  what  i s  i t ,  3?  

“C lose ly  coord ina te  w i th  the  des ignated author i t ies  10 

to  comprehend the  app l i cab le  government  po l i c i es . ”  

[Laughs] .   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Now,  can you –  so  th is  i s  

fo r  the  359 e lec t r i c  locomot ive  pro jec t .   Do you remember  

when tha t  tender  was awarded?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  have to  doub le-check my 

notes ,  I  do  no t  know the  exact  da te  bu t  I  know i t  cer ta in l y  

be fore  th is  cont rac t  was ente red in to .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Wel l ,  i t  was pa r t  1064 

locomot ives  so  the  BADC dec is ion  was in  March 2014.   20 

What  i s  the  da te  o f  th is  cont rac t?  

MR HOLDEN:    The date  o f  th is  cont rac t  i s ,  i f  I  re fe r  

backwards,  i t  i s  the  18  May 2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    2014,  2015 in  Eskom and Transnet  were  
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qu i te  busy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    They were  indeed,  Cha i r.   As  

was Mr  Essa.   Then you have sourced f rom Hong  Kong,  

f rom Hong Kong Companies  o f f i ce ,  de ta i l s  o f  the  Tequesta  

Group L im i ted .   Can I  take  you to  annexure  G on page 377  

and can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  tha t  document  i s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  document  tha t  I  

p rocu red –  i t  i s  an  annua l  re tu rn  fo r  Tequesta  Group  

L im i ted  tha t  I  pu rchased f rom the  Companies  Reg is t ry  i n  

Hong Kong.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  d id  i t  te l l  you  o f  

in te res t?  

MR HOLDEN:    The most  in te res t i ng  th ing  fo r  me appears  

a t  –  we l l ,  there  i s  two potent ia l l y  in te res t ing  th ings  w i th in  

th is  document .   The f i rs t  appears  a t  page 380 o f  bund le  6A 

and i t  p rov ides the  de ta i l s  o f  the  loan d i rec to r  o f  the 

company and the  loan d i rec tor  o f  the  company i s  g iven as  

Sa l im Az iz  Essa  w i th  the  res ident ia l  address o f  2  New 

Forest  Road,  Fores t  Town,  Johannesburg ,  2193  South  

A f r i ca .    20 

Refe r r ing  to  the  prev ious page,  a t  page 379,  we  

have the  de ta i l s  o f  the  company secre tary ,  so  th is  i s  the  

ind iv idua l  -  the  company tha t  was f i l i ng  the  re turn  on  

beha l f  o f  Mr  Sa l im Az iz  Essa and we w i l l  re tu rn  to  why th is  

i s  in te res t ing ,  I  am sure ,  in  a  wh i le ,  bu t  i t  i s  wor thwhi le  
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no t ic ing  the  emai l  address there  is  

abbey l ie@onl inecompanyreg is te rs .com under  the  re levant  

–  so  tha t  w i l l  become c lea rer  a  b i t  la te r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .   I  was look ing  fo r  the  emai l  

address,  I  have seen i t  here ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can I  take  you to  another  

document  tha t  you sourced in  re la t ion  to  Tequesta  f rom the  

Hong Kong Companies  o f f i ce ,  i t  i s  page 385 and can you 

te l l  the  Cha i r  wha t  tha t  document  i s?  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  document  aga in  

tha t  I  acqu i red  f rom the  Hong Kong Companies  Reg is t ry,  i t  

i s  F rom ND2A which  is  a  no t ice  o f  change o f  company 

secre tary  and/or  d i rec tor  and the  substance o f  th is  i s  tha t  

the  so le  d i rec to r  i s  ident i f ied  –  whose deta i l s  w i l l  be 

changed,  i s  ident i f ied  a t  the  f i rs t  page and tha t  i s  g i ven as  

Sa l im Az iz  Essa and on the  fo l low ing page,  page 386,  i s  an  

ind ica t ion  o f  the  new d i rec tor  o f  the  company and  tha t  i s  

g iven as  Aash ika  S ingh w i th  an  address 233 Kua  

Namayigu t  Road,  Dharapara ,  So l l y  Gungee Kokuta  70082,  20 

West  Benga l ,  Ind ia .  (a l l  names spe l t  phonet ica l l y )  

 I  shou ld  no te ,  Cha i r,  I  have neg lec ted  to  ment ion  

tha t  on  the  prev ious page they i nd ica ted  the  da tes  o f  th is  

fo rm is  the  17  November  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  wou ld  I  be  cor rec t  in  

mailto:abbeylie@onlinecompanyregisters.com
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assuming tha t  on  the  17  November  2016 Aash ika  S ingh 

rep laced Sa l im Essa as  the  so le  d i rec tor  o f  Tequesta?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then go to  our  next  

cont rac t  wh ich  is  annexure  H on page 388 and can you te l l  

the  Cha i r  what  –  who the  pa r t ies  to  tha t  cont rac t  a re?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  388 we have a  bus iness  

deve lopment  serv ices  agreement  be tween CSR,  Zhuzhou  

E lec t r i c  Locomot i ve  Company L im i ted  w i th  Reg imen ts  As ia  

L im i ted  and the  agreement  da te  i s  p rov ided as  the  10  June  10 

2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  go down to  page 392 you  

see pro jec t ,  can  you te l l  the  Cha i r  wh ich  p ro jec t  th is  

agreement  re la tes  to .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  and the  pro jec t  tha t  reads:  

“Refers  to  the  long te rm,  expected 12 years ,  

f inanc ia l  budget  fo r  the  ra i lway spare  and 

main tenance by  Transnet  SOC L im i ted  South  A f r i ca ,  

here ina f te r  the  c l ien t . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then a t  page 398,  the  20 

payment  te rms?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  we have –  a t  paragraph 6  we  

have a  c lause 6 .1 .1 .   Shou ld  I  read the  fu l l  te rms in to  the 

record?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P lease do,  yes .  
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MR HOLDEN:    A t  6 .1 .1  we have:  

“Prov ided tha t  the  cont rac t  i s  awarded to  the  

company fo r  any  par t  o f  the  pro jec t  the  company 

sha l l  pay  and amount  equ iva len t  to  21% aga ins t  the  

ac tua l l y  par t i c ipa ted  cont rac t  amount  o f  the  

company inc lud ing  var ia t ions  and ex tens ions to  

Reg iments  wh ich  is  re fe r red  to  as  the  serv ice  fee . ”  

6 .1 .2 :  The serv ice  fee  w i l l  be  pa id  to  Reg iments  as  

fo l lows:  

6 .1 .2 .1   A pe rcentage o f  the  cont rac t  amount  w i l l  be  t rea ted  10 

as  success fees and cer ta in  o ther  m i les tone 

payments ,  w i l l  become payab le  a f te r  the  s ign ing  o f  

the  cont rac t  be tween the  company and the  c l ien t  

and the  rece ip t  o f  the  advance  payment  by  the  

company f rom the  c l ien t  and on reach ing  the  sa id  

m i les tones respect ive ly,  these amounts  w i l l  be  

de termined c lose r  to  the  t ime o f  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  

cont rac t  and w i l l  be  de ta i led  in  an  addendum to  th is  

agreement .  

6 .1 .2 .2  The remain ing  amount  w i l l  be  pa id  in  p ropor t ion  to  20 

the  payment  rece ived the part ies agree that  the 

proport ion on per iod is subject  to cash f low received 

f rom the cl ient .   The detai led mechanism for th is  

arrangement wi l l  be out l ined in a separate addendum 

to this agreement,  c loser to the t ime of  f inal isat ion.  
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6.1.2.3 I t  reads:  

Within 30 days af ter receipt  of  the payment by the 

company f rom the cl ient . ”  

And at  6.1.2.4.  

With the amount in the same currency as the payment 

received by the company,  and a currency to be 

int imated by Regiments and each invoice they wi l l  be 

submit ted by Regiments to the company.   The 

exchange rate,  exchange rate wi l l  be f ixed on the 

date payment is received by the company f rom the 10 

cl ient .  

6.1.2.5 Al l  of  the income tax and other types of  taxes i f  any 

may be levied by and banking charges in Mainland 

China,  related to the payment shal l  be borne by the 

company.   Al l  o ther taxes and banking charges 

outside of  Main land China shal l  be borne by 

Regiments. ”  

And at  6.1.2.6 i t  reads:  

For the sake of  c lar i ty,  . . .   ( indist inct)  otherwise 

provided in th is agreement each party  shal l  bare i ts  20 

own costs and expenses incurred in negot iat ing and 

enter ing into this  agreement and pursuing further ing 

and ful f i l l ing the r ights and obl igat ions set  forth  

herein.  

And then can you ident i fy the party to whom not ices for 



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 197 of 249 
 

Regiments . . .   ( indist inct)  d ispute rests?  I t ’s on page 402?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   Under c lause 10.1.4 i t  indicates 

that  the person,  the contact  person for Regiments Asia would 

be Mr Sal im Essa.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And this  contract  has for  the f i rst  

t ime has some banking detai ls  at tached to i t  for the 

Regiments or to quest  the party,  they are at  page 405.   Can  

you take the Chai r  to that?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   At  page 405,  on that  paragraph 11,  

indicates Regiments’ banking detai ls.   The f i rst  ent ry is name 10 

of  bank and branch which is given as HSBC Bank Head 

Off ice Cent ral ,  Hong Kong.  I t  provides an account  number 

which is 652353533-838.   The currency of  the account is  

indicated as US dol lars.   The account name is given as 

Regiments Agency Limited.   And then i t  provides a Swif t  

code of  HSBCHK4HOKH.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then can you take the Chair  to  

the s ignator ies to that  cont ract  at  page 406? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly,  we have the contract  indicated 

being signed in Sandton on the 10 t h of  June 2015, for and 20 

behal f  of  Regiments Agency Limited.   I t  was Mr Sal im Essa.   

And for and behal f  of  SCR, is usual ly Electr ic Locomot ive,  i t  

is Mr Zhu Quinn Yi .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then br ief ly to 407 where we 

see the same addendum that  we saw to the previous 
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agreement ta lk ing about services.   Can I  at  th is t ime ask you 

to just  read out  the last  c lause of  the addendum? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   At  page 407,  the f inal  c lause 

reads:  

“ I t  is hereby noted and agreed between the part ies 

that  the above services are provided as a pre-project  

serv ice and wi l l  conclude on the company signing the 

contract  for the project  wi th the cl ient .   The company 

wi l l  not  requi re any proof  of  del ivery of  the above 

serv ices since i t  is understood that  the pro ject  would 10 

not  have mater ia l ised wi thout  the act ive efforts of  

Regiments to provide the services l isted above.”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then you had made some 

inquir ies at  the Hong Kong company’s off ice in re lat ion to  

Regiments?  Regiments Asia.   Can I  ask you to go to page 

408?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can  you tel l  the Chai r  what that  

document at  408 is? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly  Chai r.   Page 408 is annual  return 20 

document that  I  secured f rom the Hong Kong company’s 

regist ry.   The annual  return is dated the 20t h of  June 2016 

for Regiments Asia.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   At  the top of  page 409,  the emai l  

address of  Regiments Asia? 
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MR HOLDEN:   The emai l  address as provided again as 

abbeyl ie@onl inecompanyregister.com.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Page 411,  where i t  ident i f ies the 

Di rector.  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   The sole Director is ident i f ied as 

Sal im Aziz Essa,  wi th an address of  2 New Forest  Road,  

Forest  Town, Johannesburg,  2193.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then on page 416,  there ’s a 

second document .   I  understand you sourced that  too f rom 

the Hong Kong Company’s off ice.   Can you tel l  the Chair  10 

what th is is? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r,  th is is again form ND2A, 

which is a Not ice of  Change of  Company Secretary and 

Di rector,  which is dated the 17t h of  November 2016.  And the 

substance of  th is  form which is then revealed on th is page 

and the fol lowing page is to replace Mr Sal im Aziz Essa as 

the sole Di rector wi th Ashiq Hussain.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  I  remember correct ly,  i t  is  

the same date,  17 November 2016 as was the case in 

re lat ion to Tequesta.  20 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we then go to the next  

contract  which is  Annexure K,  page 421?  And can you 

descr ibe to the Chair  what th is contract  or who the part ies to 

th is cont ract  are and what i t  does? 
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MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   This is an addendum to the 

al ready exist ing agreements signed between CRRC Hong 

Kong Company Limited and Chai r  i f  you recal l  ear l ier on in 

the evidence I  noted that  CRRC is  the merge name of  CNI  

and CSR.  Regiments,  and that ’s s igned . . .   ( indist inct) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was a f te r  Ju l y.   You sa id  a f t e r  Ju ly  

2015?  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct  Chai r.   Regiments Asia Limited 

and Tequesta Group Limited and i t ’s dated August  2016.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the essence or the purpose of  10 

the cont ract  is,  is  essent ia l ly set  out  in clause 2.1.   Can you 

read that  c lause to the chai r  and explain i ts s igni f icance? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   I t  reads at  c lause 2.1:  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  page 422,  sorry Chai r.   422.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was look ing  a t  the  r igh t  page.   You must  

have sa id  i t .   I  was look ing  a t  the  r igh t  page,  you must  

have sa id  i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh Chai r,  I  must  apologise.   I  th ink 

that  the replacement pages for th is,  for th is agreement i t  

should have been – no,  th is agreement has always been in 20 

the f i le.   Does you 422 page start  wi th … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The  par t ies  now hereby agree to  

res t ruc ture?  To  res t ruc ture  the  payment  method as  

fo l lows?  That  i s  2 .  –  tha t  i s  2 .1  and then there  is  2 .1 .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   2 .2  Star ts  w i th ,  tha t  w i th in  10  work ing  

days.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Yes.   Chai r,  Chai r  no we are 

on the r ight  page.   So i t ’s 2.1.   Wel l  the whole of  2,  

essent ia l ly deals wi th the rest ructur ing of  the payment and 

2.1 is the,  is the cr i t ical  provision.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Holden?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   At  c lause 2.1 reads:  

“That  wi th the effect iveness of  th is addendum, 10 

CRRCHK, that  is  CRRC Hong Kong, wi l l  no longer 

wi thhold any amount f rom the amounts that  are due 

and payable to Regiments and to Tequesta against  

the above agreements.   The amounts due to 

Regiments and Tequesta wi l l  be paid by CRRCHK 

without  any offset ,  deduct ion or adjustment against  

invoices suppl ied by Regiments and Tequesta,  except  

that  one,  the contract  for the maintenance project  

under the business development serv ices agreement 

number SA2015-2450 between CSRZELC and 20 

Regiments dated 10t h June 2015 is signed between 

Transnet and CRRCZELC 60 business days af ter 

received LOA as long as CRRC don’ t  cause any 

delays.   And two,  E-maintenance for at  least  95 

project  or 100 project  have been affect ive and 
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executed before October 2018, under the 

maintenance project  as long as CRRC don’ t  delay 

any process wi th the abovement ioned two condi t ions 

are not  achieved,  CRRCHK wi l l  be ent i t led to  

wi thdrawal of  15 percent  of  al l  paid amounts under 

100 project  agreement and 359 project  agreement,  by 

the same amount due and payable under 359 project  

agreement.   Signed between CSR Hong Kong and 

Tequesta,  dated the 18t h of  May 2015.”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then clause 2.2.  10 

MR HOLDEN:   I t  reads:  

“That  wi thin 10 working days af ter CRRCZELC 

receives the let ter of  award for  the maintenance 

project  CRRCHK wi l l  re lease to Regiments the 

previous accumulated amount  of  US dol lars, 

15 144 510,00 dol lars being the 15 percent  of  the 

amount of  held t i l l  date on 3r d  August  2016 as per 

detai ls below.”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And,  and then what is detai led 

below?  What is that  table refer to? 20 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   I t  indicates a ser ies of  

invoice numbers on the lef t -hand s ide.   And provides for the 

invoice dates which run between the 12t h of  January 2015 

and the 26t h of  December 2015.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink you need to go down a page 
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or two,  because the table cont inues much longer.    

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s for Regiments.   And the fol lowing one 

is for Tequesta.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry,  I  apologise.   You are 

absolutely r ight .    

MR HOLDEN:   So this is,  sorry I  should make i t  ent i rely 

clear Chai r  that  the table I  am referr ing to here is in  relat ion 

to invoices that  have be submit ted by Regiments Asia.   And 

the fol lowing table which we wi l l  get  to is the f i rst  invoices 

submit ted by Tequesta.   As I  was saying the f inal  invoice 10 

here is  indicates that  i t  is invoice 127,  on the 26t h of  

December 2015.  I t  provides for the amount that  had been 

invoiced by Regiments.    

The amount that  had been paid by CRRC and the 

amount that  had been withheld by CRRC as surety against  

any part icular,  potent ia l  future prejudice to the contract .   But  

the,  probably the most  key amount is that  the – at  the bot tom 

r ight -hand corner provides a total  amount wi thheld by CRRC 

Hong Kong up unt i l  that  date.   And that  f igure is g iven as 

$5 181 354,65.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then the next  table? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   We have a very simi lar table which 

begins wi th the invoice CSR001 with the date of  20t h of  July  

2015.   Which then runs to invoice number 24,  the date there 

is provided as the 2n d of  August  2015.    
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Again we have a repeat of  the invoice amount that 

had been submit ted by Tequesta to  CRRC.  The amount that  

had actual ly  been paid to them.  And then the amount that  

wi thheld and again the most  important  f igure appears rather 

blurr i ly at  the bot tom of  page 424.   And that  reads a total  

amount wi thheld is $9 963 156,23.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you go to page 425 and 

425.1 to ident i fy the signator ies?   

MR HOLDEN:   I  do not  appear to have a 425.1.   I t  might  be 

in bundle B.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  may,  I  may have made an error 

there.   Let ’s  look at  425.   I  wi l l  check my source document to 

see i f  there is a 425,  i f  there should be a 425.1.   

MR HOLDEN:   I  th ink there probably is,  because the,  the 

only signatory appearing at  425 is Zhu.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja ,  you have  –  we l l  425 is ,  i s  i t  one 

s ignature  there .   And then the  one  where  wh ich  wou ld  have 

been your  425.1  i s  the ,  i s  the  ou ts ide  page w i th ,  w i th  the  

names o f  the  par t ies .   So there  must  be  some page  

miss ing .   Or  pages … 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r,  I  don’ t  want us to delay now.  

But  we wi l l  search for the signator ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The signatory page.    

CHAIRPERSON:   That ’s  f ine .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r,  can I  ask i f  your 426 … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The 426 is a document that  ought  

to have a replacement agreement  in i t .   Can I  ask what your 

426 cover page says? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t ’s  go t ,  i t ’s  handwr i t ten  a t  the  top ,  

Agreement  number  0661 b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That ’s the correct  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ Ind is t inc t ] .   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  just  check wi th Mr Holden i f  10 

he has the correct  document in f ront  or he has a dupl icate of  

the previous document? 

MR HOLDEN:   I  th ink I  have a dupl icate.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  o ffer you this replacement?  

And this is our last  agreement.   Can you tel l  the Chair  Mr 

Holden what th is agreement is on page 426? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly,  th is  is an addendum to an 

agreement signed between CRRC Zhuzhou Locomot ives and 

Regiments Asia Limited.   And i t ’s dated August  2016.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can I  ask you to go to 2.2 on 20 

page 429?  And te l l  the Chai r  what,  what that  deals wi th? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly,  at  c lause 2.2.  i t  states:  

“That  wi thin 10 working days af ter CRRCZELC 

receives the let ter of  award for  the maintenance 

project ,  CRRCZELC wi l l  re lease to Regiments the 
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previous accumulated amount of  $4 357 543,94 being 

15 percent  of  the amount wi thheld t i l l  date on 3r d 

August  2016 as per the detai ls below.”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then the table? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   We have again a further  table 

which is the ind icates at  the far  lef t  column an invoice 

number.   And then a ser ies of  dates,  the f i rst  date is given 

as the 11t h of  February 2015.  And the f inal  date I  am afraid 

is very di ff icul t  to decipher.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   A re  these the  best  cop ies  you have  10 

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I ’m afraid they are Chai r.   This is a 

– whoever leaked these documents d idn’ t ,  d idn ’ t  use a 

photocopier or … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  they did … 

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .  

MR HOLDEN:   I  am reluctant  to hesi tate to  guess that  that  

date,  I  suppose that  the key issue is that  the total  amount of  

… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  one?  Le t  me –  wh ich  one?   Which  

da te  do  you have ,  a re  look ing  a t  by  the  s tand? 

MR HOLDEN:   The f inal  ent ry which I  th ink is invoice 125.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  the  las t?  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s the last  date.   And the amount wi thheld 
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is . . .   ( indist inct)  legible.  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ Ind is t inc t ]  2018,  l ine?  Bu t  i t  i s  

dangerous to  … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink the most  important  f igure is 

the total .    

MR HOLDEN:   Chai r,  the total  is then repl icated as 

$4 357 543,94.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  we go to the signatory 

page on 430.1?   10 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r,  at  that  page we have the 

signature,  the ind ividual  s igning on behal f  of  Regiment Asia 

Limited,  is Sal im Essa.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Does i t  ind ica te  where  whoever  s igned,  

where  i t  was s igned?  I  saw tha t  the  prev ious one I  th ink  

was s igned in  Sandton.   The one o f  the  ones tha t  we jus t  

looked a t  was s igned in  Sandton.    

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .  There is one that  is s igned in  

Chen Chen(?) and the one that ’s s igned in Sandton.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR HOLDEN:   Th is one does not  seem to provide a p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So we have seen a ser ies of  

contracts and the ones that  we focused on are the ones 

between the Chinese Rai l  Companies and Tequesta and 
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Regiments Asia.   I  want  us now to go back and we’ve,  we’ve 

touched on some earl ier cont racts wi th the Chinese Rai l  

Companies and JJT and CGT.   

I  want  us now to go back to  that  document wi th the 

workings emai l  which indicated how much had been paid to 

JJT and CGT and how much was st i l l  due to be paid.   That ’s 

on page 419 of  bundle 6A.  Can I  ask you to  go to  419?  And 

I  want us to focus on the dates here.    

And you’ve taken the Chair  through these dates.   The 

or ig inal  emai l  is 6  January 2015.  I t ’s f rom Bunsal  Rupesh(?) 10 

who you ident i f ied as a Wor ld Window individual .   Zhang Min 

Yu.  Can you expla in who Zhang Min Yu is?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   Zhang Min Yu is  a very 

senior execut ive at  Chinese South Rai l .    

CHAIRPERSON:   A ve ry  sen ior?  

MR HOLDEN:   Execut ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then Zhang Min Yu forwarded 

i t  to Businessman, who we bel ieve to be Sal im Essa on 7 

January 2015.   And then there was a delay of  more than two 20 

months before i t  got  forwarded again to  Asha Tjala(?) on the 

22n d of  March.   Want us to – can you broadly descr ibe to the 

Chair  what was happening in the Gupta enterpr ise world  

window relat ionship over that  per iod,  f i rst  quarter 2015?  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   What we see is a,  we have hints 



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 209 of 249 
 

f rom the Gupta leaks that  they are increasing tensions 

between the World Window Group and the Gupta enterpr ise.   

And that ’s indicated in certain documents,  including that  by 

May 2015 for example the company Outclass which is a 

subsidiary of  Worlds Window Group,  is  ent ry,  is cancel l ing al l  

of  i ts var ious agency agreements and i ts co-product ion 

agreements wi th a l l  of  the Gupta enterpr ise companies.    

There was an interv iew that  was conducted wi th an 

al leged member of  the Worlds Window Group by Abu 

Bongani(?) who indicated that  there was some sort  of  fa l l ing 10 

out  between the Worlds Window Group and the Gupta 

enterpr ise related to the disposi t ion of  funds,  related to coal  

mines that  the Wor lds Window Group had invested in that  

were,  were benef ic ia l ly owned by the Gupta enterpr ise.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And,  and the f i rst  agreement that  

we see between the Chinese Rai lway Companies and 

Tequesta or Regiments Asia that  provides for monies that 

were previously to go to JJT or  CGT now to come to 

Tequesta or Regiments Asia is I ’m correct  the annexure F.   

Page 358 which is the 15 – sorry the 18 May 2015 20 

agreement between Tequesta and CSR, that  records the 707 

mi l l ion that ’s al ready been paid to JJT and has that  provision 

that  i f  that  Tequesta must  essent ia l ly make sure that  that  

money wi l l  be deducted f rom what ’s  due to Tequesta and that  

Tequesta must  take of  JJT.    
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MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .   A l though I  must  correct  Mr 

Chaskalson.   That  the ear l iest  agreement I  have involving 

Tequesta is the 20t h of  May 2014.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes,  but  not  – that  does not  deal  

wi th taking over.  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  taking over r ights to payment  

that  previously had vested in JJP or  CGT.  

MR HOLDEN:   Yes that ’s correct .   I  apologise,  I  

misunderstood the quest ion.   But  that ’s correct .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  want  now to look a bi t  more 

closely at  Mr Zhang Min Yu and what he was doing in the 

f i rst  quarter of  2015.   Can I  ask you to go to bundle 6B 

annexure XX at  page 1110?   

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  1110.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That ’s correct  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   That ’s  A .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   B.   Bundle B.   6B.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Wel l  i t ’s  been a  l ong day,  so  bu t  I  

see tha t  the  f i rs t  page is  869?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes,  but  i t  should go,  i t  should go 

unt i l  – 1110 should be qui te close to the end.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh 1110?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   1110.    

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  d idn ’ t  hear  the  zero .   So  I  was  
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wonder ing  how 111 cou ld  be  on th is  bund le .   Okay.   1110.   

Ja ,  I  have got  i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you ident i fy that  document for  

the Chair?  Or can you say where that  document  comes 

f rom? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   This is a document that  

emanates f rom the Gupta leaks archives.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And what  is i t?  

MR HOLDEN:   What we have here Chai r  is an emai l  that ’s  

sent  f rom Asha Chawla to Sal im Essa forwarding a 10 

reservat ion,  conf i rmat ion f rom the Oberoi  in Dubai .   The 

reservat ion conf i rmat ion is for Mr Zhang Min Yu.  The body of  

the emai l  ind icates that  the guest  name is Mr Zhang Min Yu 

and the arr ival  date is Fr iday,  the 27t h of  February 2015.   

And the departure date is Sunday,  the 1s t  of  March 2015.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  then ask you to turn to page 

112 and to ident i fy that  document to the Chai r?  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   We have a document that  

also emanates f rom the Gupta leaks archive.   I t  is sent  f rom 

the … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  the  top  one or  the  bo t tom emai l?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   1112.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r.   1112.   That ’s correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  ja .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t ’s a st r ing that  in fact  s tarts on 

the previous,  prev ious page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  for now I  ask Mr Holden just  to 

ident i fy the part ies to the end of  the st r ing which is at  the 

top of  page 112.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   1112,  not  112.  

MR HOLDEN:   So we have the ind iv idual  f rom whom i t ’s sent  

is Saniel  at  HRT Services.   And i t ’s sent  to Asha Chawla.   10 

And the subject  is ,  . . .   ( indist inct)  now 17t h of  March 2015.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the date,  sorry.   Ja,  you have 

just  given the date to which i t  re lates.   Can you tel l  the Chai r  

what the st r ing is deal ing wi th?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   This is a st r ing that  re lates 

to the booking of  a pr ivate ai r  charter for a company of  

individuals who would be t ravel l ing to l ike now.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  you go to the foot  of  page 

1113 we see the passengers who are going to be f ly ing on 

this chartered plane in another  emai l  for Asha Chawla to  20 

Sunial  Gow, at  suniala i rcharterservices.com.  Also on 16 

March 2015.  Can you ident i fy those passengers for the 

Chair? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   We have f i rst  passenger is Mr 

Rajesh Gupta or Tony Gupta.   We have Mr Sal im Essa.   We 
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have Mr Zhang Min Yu.   We have Mr Digaan Yuah. We have 

Mr Wang Jincheng(?).   And f inal ly Mr Mokesh(?).    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And so we know about the f i rst  

three.   Do you know who Mr Digaan Yuan is?   

MR HOLDEN:   Yes.   He is a execut ive also of  CSR.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Mr Wang Jincheng?   

MR HOLDEN:   He is also an execut ive of  CSR.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And do you know who Mr Mokesh 

may be?  I  th ink the record won’ t  be able to  see your faces.   

So I  th ink that  . . .   ( indist inct ) .  10 

MR HOLDEN:   Yes.   I ’m wondering i f  I  should know.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   [ Indist inct ]  you had no reason to 

bel ieve that  you should know.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr  Chaska lson you reca l l  tha t  yes ,  

in  years  gone by  in  the  Mag is t ra te ’s  cou r t  o r  maybe in  the  

H igh  Cour t ’s  the  in te rpre ter  wou ld  a lways somet imes 

desc r ibe  whatever  the  w i tness is  do ing ,  to  say we l l  the  

face  looks l i ke  he ’s  shocked.   So you might  have to  

desc r ibe .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The face looks l ike he does not  20 

know who this . . .   ( indist inct ) .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Our last  issue in relat ion to – our 

last  emai l  in rela t ion to Mr Zhang Min Yu is at  page 1115.   

Can you ident i fy that  emai l  to the Chair? 
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MR HOLDEN:   Certainly  Chai r.   A t  that  page we have an 

emai l  again emanat ing f rom the Gupta leaks.   I t ’s f rom 

Jacquel ine Van Der Merwe at  Oak Bay.   I t ’s sent  on 

Thursday,  the 8t h of  October 2015 to Naziem Hower(?),  cc’d  

to Asha Chawla and Wana Karagvan(?) and the subject  reads 

SATY Stats at  s ix o’c lock,  on 8 October 2015.  

And SATY is the acronym for South Afr ican of  the 

Year.   Indicat ing this is a stat is t ics related to potent ia l  

at tendees at  a South Af r ican of  the Year event  that  was 

going to be hosted by Oak Bay and the Gupta enterpr ise.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  you down a page to 1116,  

can you ident i fy that  document for the Chai r? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   What we have here is an 

extract  f rom the excel  spread sheet  that  had been at tached 

to the emai l  f rom Jacquel ine Van der Merwe, that  I  have just  

descr ibed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And you’ve highl ighted one entry.  

Can you tel l  the Chair  what that  entry is? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   I t  is very smal l  on the 

document,  I  apologise.   I t  is at  row 173,  i t ’s highl ighted.   And 20 

the invi tee is indicated as Zhang Min Yu.   And i t  provides an 

emai l  address in the thi rd to  last  column which is 

zhangminyu542qq.com.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Mr Holden.   Whi le we’ re 

on this topic,  can I  ask you to go to  page 1117 and i f  I  recal l  
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correct ly,  Mr Zhang Min Yu stay at  the Oberoi  were 27 

February to 1 March 2015.  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you tel l  the Chai r  what you 

see on page 1117? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   This is another  emai l  

emanat ing f rom the Gupta leaks.   We have an emai l  f rom one 

Sarah Ben Hoian(?) at  the Oberoi ,  Oberoi  Hotels to Asha 

Chawla.   And the substance of  the emai l  is to conf i rm a 

booking for Mr Tony Gupta,  Mr Rajesh Gupta and wi th an 10 

arr ival  date of  the 24t h of  February and a departure date of  

the 26t h of  February 2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you go down to page 

11120.  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   This is a emai l  that  is sent  again 

as part  of  the Gupta leaks.   In th is case i t  is f rom Asha 

Chawla to Sujay Grova(?) who we ident i f ied in our  Est ina 

re lated test imony as the Ind ian nat ional  who is employed by 

the Gupta enterpr ise,  to manage their  Dubai  logist ics and 

accountant ,  accounts.    20 

And that  provides the substance of  the,  of  the emai l  

is to conf i rm the booking at  the Oberoi  Dubai  f rom Ms Ashi  

Kasing(?) wi th an arr ival  date of  the 24t h of  February 2015 

and a departure date of  Thursday the 26t h of  February 2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then down to 1122?   
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MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   Again this is another emai l  

emanat ing f rom the Gupta leaks.   I t  is a reservat ion,  i t  is 

sent  f rom a reservat ion address for  the Oberoi  Hotels to 

Asha Chawla.   And the subject  is reservat ion conf i rmat ion at  

the Oberoi  Dubai  for  Anash Singh.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the dates?  That  reservat ion? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   The date of  that  reservat ion 

appears on the fol lowing page 1123 and the reservat ion is 

for  Mr Anash S ingh,  arr ival  date Tuesday the 24t h of  

February 2015.  And departure date the 26t h of  February 10 

2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you then go down to page 113 

… 

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.   So –  can we in fe r  tha t  the 

same ment ioned a t  1122 is  the  same S ingh ment ioned a t  

1123?  Namely  Mr  Anash S ingh?   Or  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink we probably can,  but  we do 

know who the reservat ion was for  Chai r,  because that ’s at  

1123.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   No,  no ,  when I  was look ing  a t  20 

1122,  tha t  second l ine ,  a f te r  the  g reet ings f i r s t  l i ne .   I  saw 

tha t  they sa id  Mr  S ingh w i thout  g iv ing  the  name,  bu t  o r  

there  i s  another  S ingh.   Ash ika  S ingh,  la te r  in  the  … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   [ Ind ist inct ]  the paragraph above 

the reference to Ashika Singh ident i f ies Mr Anash S ingh.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Anash S ingh.   Okay,  now ja  I  d idn ’ t  see 

tha t .   Okay.   So th is  i s  February  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now so we have Anash Singh,  

Ashika Singh and Tony Gupta at  the Oberoi  f rom I  th ink the 

24t h to the 26t h of  February and we have Zhang Min Yu at  the 

Oberoi  f rom the 27t h of  February to  the 1s t  of  March.   Can I  

ask you to go to 1125 and this is a document sourced by the 

Commission Chai r.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t ’s Mr Anash Singh’s immigrat ion 

records f rom the Department of  Home Affai rs.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And what th is document ref lects is  

that  Mr Anash Singh lef t  OR Tambo on an Emirates f l ight  766 

on the 23r d of  February 2015 and returned on Emirates f l ight  

767 on the 1s t  of  March 2015.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We have been through the 20 

regist rat ion documents of  Tequesta and Regiments Asia.   I  

th ink we’ l l  come back to abbeyl ie  and stevenmsl ie  a l i t t le  

later.   Can I  ask you now to turn to bundle 6B, page 995.1.   

995.1?  And Chai r,  th is is a document that  that  Commission 

obtained f rom HSBC and i t  at taches t ransact ions – i t ’s an 
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aff idavi t  f rom an HSBC … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one second.   D id  you say  995.1? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That ’s correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bundle 6B. 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  don ’ t  th ink  I  have.   I ’ ve  go t  995.   Le t  me  

jus t  see.   Ja ,  no  I  don ’ t  have 995.1 .   I  have got  995.   And 

then the  next  one  is  996.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  I  must  apologise for that .  

Can I  offer you up a copy of  995 … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   995.1 .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  the whole 995.1 to  point  34 

bundle because … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  needs to … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So you  can jus t  repeat .   Jus t  

rep lace the  o ld  pages,  the  o the r  pages.  

UNKNOWN MALE:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  comes in between 995 and 996.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay.   Wel l  I  th ink  995 is  one 20 

s ide  or  995 and 996 are  on  the  same page,  on  the  same 

document .   Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We’ l l  have to clean up your,  your 

f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Later Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  in  the  meant ime I  th ink  we can make  

do w i th  –  ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So Chai r  at  995.1 you wi l l  see an 

aff idavi t  furnished by Thomas Fletcher  Shenf ie ld(?) who is 

the Count ry Head of  Financial  Threat  Li t igat ion for HSBC 

Bank BLC Johannesburg branch,  which is HSBC South 

Afr ica.   And he has furnished this aff idavi t  to  provide 

t ransact ion records for four ent i t ies that  the Commission has 

been looking at .    10 

Freedom Trading Limited,  Morn ing Star Internat ional  

Trade Limited,  Regiments Asia and Tequesta Group.   And 

the,  these are t ransact ion records that  went through the 

South Afr ican off ice of  HSBC when they conducted their  own 

invest igat ion.   I t  conf i rms their  authent ic i ty as HSBC records 

of  the t ransact ion.   And the t ransact ions for Regiments Asia 

are annexure 3 to  that  aff idavi t ,  which is at  – sorry.   Which 

start  at  page 995.11.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And those for Tequesta are 20 

annexure 4 to the aff idavi t  that  start  at  995.16.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now Mr Holden we have made 

these records avai lable to you.   And you,  you’ve analysed 

them and, and drawn some conclusions f rom them. Can you,  
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can I  ask you to go to page 263 of  bundle 6A which is back 

in your report?   

CHAIRPERSON:   What ’s  the  page on 6A? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   At  263 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   263.   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we, sorry Chai r.   HS – 

included in  those HSBC records are also records for JJ 

Trading that  HSBC has.   And for Century General  Trading 

that  HSBC has.   I  must  emphasise then in relat ion to JJ 

Trading and Century Genera l  Trading,  what HSBC has is a 10 

smal l  window, smal l  sect ion of  the total  banking records,  

because they ran several  accounts at  banks,  other than 

HSBC. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Of  course  the  wr i t ing ,  the  

words are  ve ry  smal l  on  those.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  maybe Mr  Ho lden has been  ab le  to  

make a  p lan  ins tead.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  wonder do  you have the or ig inal  

spread sheets or the spread sheets that  were made 20 

avai lab le.  That  might  … 

MR HOLDEN:   Yes Chai r,  up on the screen now.  Check your  

screen is operat ional .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR HOLDEN:   This is  the one of  the spread sheets as 
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provided for product ions relat ing to  Regiments Asia.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we can f i rst  go to your,  your sort  

of  overal l  b ig picture f indings at ,  at  paragraph 264.    

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   What I  ind icate at  264 is that  

a total  amount of  $187 054 355,77 was paid to Tequesta 

Group and Regiments Asia.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And as  US do l l a rs .   What?   I s  tha t  US 

do l la rs?    

MR HOLDEN:   US dol lars,  correct .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ja ,  and Reg iments .    

MR HOLDEN:   Was paid to Tequesta Group and Regiments 

Asia by China South Rai l ,  China North Rai l ,  A l l ien(?)  

Locomot ives and Rol l ing Stock Company,  a subsidiary of  

China North Rai l  and CRRC.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink we must just  come back to 

that  total  f igure,  because I ’m not  sure i t ’s accurate.   But  we 

wi l l  come back to i t .   265 Is,  is the – when you break i t  down.  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   An analys is of  annexure NN which 

is the HSBC documents.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry NN is your  ext ract  f rom the 

HSBC documents,  not  the or ig inal  HSBC? 

MR HOLDEN:   Correct ,  correct  Mr  Chai r.   I t  indicates that  

Tequesta Group L imited was paid a total  of  $61 394 694,50 

by China North Rai l ,  CRRC and CSR of  which 
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$15 234 248,00 was paid by China North Rai l .   

$2 704 159,00 was paid by CRRC and $43 456 242,00 was 

paid by China South Rai l .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And paragraph 266?   

MR HOLDEN:   Analysis of  the annexure shows that  

Regiments Asia HSBC account  in Hong Kong was paid 

$83 781 589,22 by China North Rai l  CRRC, China South Rai l  

and Dal ian(?) of  which $8 622 906,00 was paid by China 

North Rai l .   $40 757 788,75 was paid by CRRC.  

$45 750 600,47 was paid by China South Rai l .   And 10 

$80 119 990,00 was paid by Dal ian a subsid iary of  China 

North Rai l .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And,  and then your totals to  

Regiments Asia and to Tequesta by each of  those Chinese 

locomot ive companies.    

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   At  264 we, we might  consider  

jo int ly Regiments Asia and Tequesta wi th us paid a tota l  of  

$23 857 154,00 by China North Rai l .   $70 461 947,75 by 

CRRC.  $89 206 842,47 by CSR.  And $80 120 982,50 by 

Dal ian.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask you to go back to 

paragraph 264,  because I  th ink that  f igure of  187 mi l l ion 

includes also payments that  the HSBC records show to JJ 

Trading and CG Trading.   Because i t ’s greater than the sum 

of  the sum of  the Regiments Asia and Tequesta payments.  
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MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .   And I  th ink the correct  amount  

is indicated at  the bot tom of  the table at  f i le,  at  page 266.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  before we get  to that ,  those 

tables,  can you just  ident i fy those tables to  the Chai r.  Table 

3 on page 264.    

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   What  we have here is the,  I  

extracted i t  f rom the var ious HSBC bank statements,  the 

payments that  were made to Tequesta Group and Regiments 

Asia at  HSBC Hong Kong.  In the f i rst  part  of  the table I  

indicate payments that  are made by CSR, CNR and CRRC to 10 

Tequesta Group.  The f i rst  payment  is indicated at  the 7t h of  

August  2015.    

And the f inal  payment on the 1s t  o f  June 2016.  And 

the second part  o f  the table indicates al l  payments that  are 

made to Regiment Asia by Dal ian,  CSR, CNR and CRRC.  

The f i rst  payment  indicates that  on the 8t h of  December 2014 

and the f inal  payment indicated as the 1s t  of  September 

2016.   And then the f inal  part  of  the table breaks down total  

amounts paid to Tequesta and Regiments Group by each of  

those individual  contractors.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then the aggregate amount 

paid to Regiments Asia and to Tequesta Group in the Hong 

Kong HSBC accounts you have a 145 dol lar,  

$145 177 086,91.  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct  Chai r.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   At  prevai l ing exchange rates what 

would,  what would that  be? 

MR HOLDEN:   Th is is a level  of  mental  ar i thmet ic I  was not  

expect ing to perform.  But  i t  would probably be roughly 1,6 

bi l l ion rand.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   In fact  would be qui te a lot  more 

than 1,6 b i l l ion rand at  today’s.   Sorry at  today’s exchange 

rate.  

MR HOLDEN:   Today’s,  I  thought you meant in 20 … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh,  oh,  sorry.   Okay.   We should 10 

probably do the same exercise that  we promised the Chair  in  

re lat ion to rand exchange rates and rand equivalents on 

each of  those payments,  which we wi l l  do.   Then can I  ask 

you to go to annexure I I .    

Which is at  page bundle – sorry,  just  see.   Bundle 6B, 

page 885.1 to 885.25?  And again I  th ink we might  need you 

to go to the source spread sheet  to magni fy i t  on screen.   

Can you ident i fy th is document at  annexure I I?  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.  This is a document that  was 

compi led by the invest igat ive generous group Ama 20 

Bongani(?).   The substance of  th is work which is qui te  

br i l l iant  is to ident i fy and t rack the amounts received and 

paid to CJT and JJT and to Regiment Asia and to Tequesta 

against  the ant ic ipated mi lestone payments in relat ion to 

kickbacks that  were paid by the var ious Chinese State 
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Money Manufactur ing Companies.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you descr ibe to the Chai r  

how, how this document – I  mean the or ig inal  document is a 

spread sheet ,  but  can you descr ibe to the Chai r  how each 

one of  the page, what each one of  the pages does?   

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   We have at  page 1,  I ’ l l  load i t  up 

on the screen so i t ’s s l ight ly easier  to see.   This is a set  of  

calculat ions in re lat ion to the 95 Locos contract .   And the 

substance of  th is page is to t rack here – let  me t ry zoom in 

quickly.   On the lef t  here payments that  are made on certain  10 

dates.    

And then to t rack the ant ic ipated kickbacks due on 

each payment and then to t race those kickback payments 

actual ly being made to var ious accounts.   You can see the 

arrows then point .   I t ’s qui te  a compl icated spread sheet ,  but  

the substance of  which is  to  indicate that  the payments that  

we do know that  were made to Regiments Asia,  or to  

Tequesta or to JJT or CJT match exact ly what we would 

expect  to see in terms of  the kickback mi lestone payments 

as descr ibed in the underl ined contract  or agreements.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So,  so just  to take – maybe i f  we 

could go to – because let ’s i l lustrate one with reference to 

the HSBC accounts.   And maybe we can use – so i f  you can 

maybe go to 885.5 which is the tab that  relates to  the 232 

Locos.   So i f  you cl ick on your  232 Locos tab there,  okay 
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each one of  these sheets relates to a di fferent  underly ing 

contract  between Transnet and the Chinese Rai l  

Manufacturers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So at  page 885.5 we have the 232 

Locos which was one,  which was a diesel  cont ract  wi th China 

North Rai l .   That ,  is that  correct? 

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct .   I t ’s subsequent ly replaced by 

CRRC.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Subsequent ly rep laced by CRRC 10 

as both China North and China South were.   And Mr Holden 

let ’s take these columns one by one.   So the start ing column 

is the date? 

MR HOLDEN:   Correct  Chai r.   So we have the date of  a  

payment that ’s been made.  The column B indicates the party 

that ’s paying.  Column C ind icates the party that ’s receiving.  

So this  case we can see that  on the 28t h of  March Transnet  

paid to CNR, rela ted to then column B g ives the part icu lar 

deal ,  the f i rst  two which is the 232 Locomot ive cont ract .    

And then i t  indicates here at  column E that  a  total  of  20 

R994 700 475,00 had been paid by Transnet  to CNR and 

CRRC.  At  column F we have a summary of  the contractual  

terms between Regiments Asia and CNR related to th is 

contract .   And i t  ant ic ipated that  there would be upfront  on 

the f i rst  payment  mi lestone a two percent  excess fee that  
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would be paid in relat ion to th is contract .    

The Honourable Bongani  have then calculated the 

rand kickback due.   And i t ’s a bi t  d i f f icul t  to – I  can’ t  zoom in 

on the formula number,  but  the formula is effect ive ly takes 

the column E f igure and works out  what two percent  of  the 

tota l  amount Transnet  has paid.   And under that  calculat ion 

the rand value of  the kickback that  would be due for the 

success fee would be R198 940 093,00.   Then that  get  

cont inue Chai r,  Chair  … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do,  do proceed.  Yes.    10 

MR HOLDEN:   And what we have that  proceeds thereaf ter is 

i t ’s tota l  of  f ive payments that  are made on consecut ive days 

between the 8 t h of  December 2014 and the 12t h of  December 

2014.   And these are payments that  are made f rom Dal ian 

Locomot ive which is a subsidiary of  CNR to Regiments Asia,  

in relat ion to the 232 deal .    

And i f  we scrol l  here to the r ight ,  we have a record,  

because Abu Bongani  also had access to a leak of  the HSBC 

banking documentat ion.   They provide the tota l  dol lar  

amount that ’s paid on each date.   And as we can see the f ive 20 

amounts here which were paid on two consecut ive days.    

The f i rst  was 3,5 – $3 599 998,00.   The second 

amount was $3 574 998,00.   The thi rd amount is 

$3 716 998,00.   The fourth amount is $3 649 998,00.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  stop you there and Chair  can 
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I  ask you to go to  bundle 6B at  page 995.11?  995.11 Where 

we . . .   ( indist inct) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   599.11.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   995.11.  

CHAIRPERSON:   995.11.   Yes I ’m  there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And these are the Regiments Asia,  

HSBC records.   And the four amounts that  Mr Holden has 

just  c i ted f rom that  spread sheet ,  you wi l l  f ind Chai r  on the 

fourth,  f i f th,  s ixth and eighth ent ry on that  page.   So i f  you 

go across,  the f i rst  column says t ransact ion ident i ty.   The 10 

second says source t ransact ion type code.    

Or ig inal  currencies,  US dol lars al l  the way through.   

The post ing date and the value date.   Let ’s look at  the value 

dates,  you go four  down, there is 2014/12/08 and the amount 

is 3599998, which corresponds almost  exact ly to what Ama 

Bongani  had.  Then 35974998, 3716998,  and 3649998. Which 

are those four … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Payments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Payments.   

MR HOLDEN:   And that  there is actual ly,  i f  I  may add a f i f th  20 

payment as wel l .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   3577998.  

MR HOLDEN:   That ’s correct  and as you can see on the 

spread sheet  th is is the HSBC t ransact ion sheet .   I t  appears 

there.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we go back to the Abu Bongani  

document,  annexure I I .    

MR HOLDEN:   So what we have here then is the total  

calculat ion of  the amounts paid by CNR to Regiments Asia.   

I t ’s $18 119 990,00.   And the calcu lat ion is then per formed 

by Abu Bongani  here which indicates the … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry Mr Holden,  when you say 

here can you ident i fy the column? 

MR HOLDEN:   Oh apologies.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Apologies.  

MR HOLDEN:   At  column B, row 8.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And because the pr inted copies 

don’ t  have column headings,  they have column headings but  

not  column let ters.   Can you just  read the,  the what looks 

l ike the heading to the column in,  in that  red band? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   I t  says ZAR or South Af r ican Rand 

paid at  SARB rate on Transnet pay date.   So that  is the 

South Afr ican rand paid to the South Afr ican Reserve Bank 

rate on a Transnet pay date.   And you can see there is a l ine 20 

that ,  a red l ine,  I  wi l l  show you the or ig in of  that ,  but  i t  

indicates at  row 8,  column B, R192 323 762,00 which i f  I  

scro l l  back to the or ig inal  calcu lat ion of  the ant ic ipated 

kickback is roughly equal ,  very s imi lar in amounts to the 

rand kickback that  they ant ic ipated wi l l  be paid in relat ion to 
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the success fee.    

So according to th is calculat ion by Abu Bongani  I  

th ink we can pret ty safely assume that  the f ive payments 

that  are made by Dal ian on these consecut ive days relates 

speci f ical ly to the ant ic ipated success fee on this contract .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And then I ’m not  look ing  here  

because I  can ’ t  read anyth ing .   Bu t  so .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  we wi l l  get ,  we wi l l  get  b igger  

and bet ter.   Then they have to be A2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because there is so much detai l .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  what  the spread sheet  does,  is 

each one of  these pages relates to a di fferent  one,  contract ,  

the 100 locomot ives cont ract .   The 95 locomot ives contract .   

The 232 locomot ives contract .   The maintenance contract  

and so on.   And i t  t racks what you would expect  the kickback 

to be what you see at  HSBC.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And they broadly match up in al l  20 

cases.   I t ’s an ext raordinary piece of  work by the looks of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  looks  l i ke  Ama Bongan i  go t  i t  r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The – le t ’s have a l i t t le bi t  of  l ight  
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re l ief .   Let ’s see who before we get  into the laundering of  

these funds,  let ’s see … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe be fore  we p roceed Mr  

Chaska lson,  le t ’s  ta lk  about  ou r  p lan  fo r  the  even ing .   What  

i s  your  s i tua t ion?   Your  assessment?    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  my guess is 45 minutes to … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  we l l .   I  th ink ,  I  th ink  then tha t  

shou ld  be  f ine .   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I ,  can I  ask you to go back to 

porch a t  page 267,  Bund le  6A a t  page 267,  and there  you  

have ident i f ied  a  ser ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry  Mr  Chaska lson i t  may be tha t  

a t  some s tage somebody must  do  an  exerc ise  to  go  back to  

where  we used th is  Bund le  6  and i f  we are  now on ly  go ing  

to  have A and B  we won ’ t  have the  or ig ina l  Bund le  6  and in  

the  t ranscr ip t  ind ica te  where  i t  is  supposed to  be  A and 

where  i t ’s  supposed to  be  B .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  we are  go ing  to  have maybe fo r  

conven ience the  or ig ina l  6  wh ich  is  combined then tha t  

exerc ise  won ’ t  be  necessary  and then s t i l l  have 6A and 6B 

because then i t  wou ld  mean tha t  where  the  t ranscr ip t  reads  

6A whoever  has the  f i les  can go to  6A where  i t  says  6B 
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they  can go to  6B,  where  i t  s imp ly  says 6  w i thout  say ing  A 

or  B  then there  w i l l  be  a  f i le  wr i t ten  6 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes Cha i r  I  w i l l  have to  speak to  

the  Secre tary  to  see i f  an  or ig ina l  6  s t i l l  ex i s ts ,  because I  

th ink  what  they have done is  the  have cann iba l i sed –  bu t  

one way or  another  we w i l l  –  e i the r  you w i l l  ge t  an  or ig ina l  

6  p lus  your  cu r ren t  6A and B  or  we w i l l  have to  do  tha t  

exerc ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC;    At  page 267 o f  Bund le  6A you 10 

record   a  range o f  ind iv idua ls  who were  pa id  ou t  o f  the 

Tequesta  and Reg iments  As ia  accounts .   Can you jus t  

qu ick l y  g ive  –  take  the  Cha i r  th rough those payments .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  we have a  to ta l ,  the  f i rs t  payment  

i s  to  Sa l im Essa who rece ived a  payment  o f  99  985  do l la rs  

and th i r teen on the  26 t h  o f  October  2015 and tha t  was pa id  

in to  an  account  he ld  a t  Hab ib  Bank in  Duba i .   The second  

ent ry  i s  fo r  Bar tho lomew Diaz  Domingo who was pa id  

665 257 do l la rs  and e igh ty  seven in  e igh t  payments  

be tween the  24 t h  o f  December  2014 and the  9 t h  o f  February  20 

2015 in to  an  account  he ld  a t  Banco PPISA in  Por to  

Por tuga l .   A t  C we have Anton io  Pa lango Sangosango who  

was pa id  665 243  and one cent  in  e igh t  payments  be tween 

the  23 r d  o f  December  2014 and the  9 t h  o f  February  2015,  

aga in  in to  an  account  he ld  a t  Banco PPISA in  Por to  
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Por tuga l .  A t  B  we have a  payment  made to  Prach i  Desa i  

who was pa id  21  214 do l la rs  on  the  22 n d  o f  Apr i l  2016.  A t  E 

we have Fa ize l  Rash ied  who was 29 992 do l la rs  and e igh ty  

n ine  on  the  2 n d  o f  November  2016 .   We have Marc  Y Yung 

who was pa id  70  000 do l la rs  on  the  24 t h  o f  January  2015 

and then Chen Shwang who was pa id  99  985 do l l a rs  and  

four teen on the  16 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Those ind iv idua ls  what  were  you  

ab le  to  f ind  about  them f rom pub l ic  records?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  I  th ink  Sa l im Essa is  re la t i ve ly,  10 

h is  ident i t y  i s  re la t i ve ly  we l l  es tab l i shed.   For  Bar tho lomew 

Diaz  Domingo he is  a  Ango lan  Ent repreneur  and owner  o f  a  

Ango lan  company by  the  name o f  Guppo Bar tho lomew 

Diaz .   The pub l i c  records  fo r  Anton ia  Sangosango wh ich  I  

desc r ibe  a t  parag raph 276 was appo in ted  to  the  pos i t ion  o f  

D i rec tor  o f  Admin is t ra t ion  and Budget  in  the  Ango lan  

Min is t r y  o f  Fore ign  A f fa i rs  in  a t  leas t  2011 a l though I  d id  

ind ica te  h is  pe rsona l  L inkedIn  page ind ica tes  tha t  he  he ld  

th is  pos i t ion  f rom a t  leas t  1998 and I  ind ica te  here  in  any  

event  the  payments  made to  Sangosango took p lace wh i le  20 

he  he ld  pub l i c  o f f i ce  and I  make a  gent le  suggest ion  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  maybe might  need to  a le r t  the  appropr ia te  

au thor i t ies  in  Ango la  so  they may conduct  the i r  own  

invest iga t ions in to  the  prob i ty  o f  the  payments .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     P rach i  Desa i .  
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MR HOLDEN:    P rach i  Desa i  i s  a  Bo l l ywood ac t ress  who 

per fo rmed a t  the  wedd ing  o f  A J  Gupta ’s  son,  Kamal  

S inga la  in  Anta l ya ,  Turkey on  the  23 r d  and 24 t h  o f  Apr i l  

2016.   As  po in ted  out  above she was pa id  21  214 do l la rs  

on  the  22 n d  o f  Apr i l  2016,  on  the  same day the  organ isers  

o f  the  wedd ing  Cata lys t  Enter ta inment  Pr iva te  L im i ted  were  

pa id  64  394 do l la rs  and we can re fer  to  the  annexure  wh ich  

desc r ibes tha t  event .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We found a  so r t  o f  g lossy  mag,  

an  Ind ian  g lossy  mag on l ine ,  Cha i r  i f  you  go to  6B page 10 

1094.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1094?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    6B  1094?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    1094 and Mr  Ho lden can you 

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  1094 is?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have got  i t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r  1094 is  a  copy o f  a  

magaz ine  wh ich  i s  ca l led  Exce l  wh ich  appears  to  be  shor t  

fo r  Exper ien t ia l  Ce lebra t ions,  the  copy,  the  issue  number  20 

or  the  issue date  i s  be tween Ju ly  and December  2016 an  

the  tag l ine  fo r  the  magaz ine  is  “An Ins igh t  in to  the  

Bus iness o f  Soc ia l  Evens. ”   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you go  to  the  

contents  page on  1095 the re ’s  an  en t ry  fo r  what  we  f ind  a t  
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page 8  o f  the  magaz ine .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  i t  ind ica tes  under  the  head ing  

Wedd ing P lann ing  a t  page 8 ,  Happen ing  and then the  t i t le  

o f  the  ar t i c le  i s  Turk ish  De l igh t  the  Mul t ip lanner  Managed  

Anta lya  wedd ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go to  page 1096 we 

see th is  a r t i c le  about  Turk i sh  De l igh t ,  can you read the  

f i rs t  two paragraphs and the  f i rs t  l i ne  o f  the  th i rd .     

MR HOLDEN:    So  the  head ing  is  “Turk ish  De l igh t ” :  

“We br ing  you g l impses o f  the  much ta lked about  10 

Mul t ip lanner  managed Anta l ya  wedd ing  wh ich  took  

p lace a t  Mardan  Pa lace Anta lya  Turkey in  Apr i l  

2016.   On Apr i l  23  600 guests  f rom South  A f r i ca ,  

UK,  Ind ia  and Duba i  f lew in to  Anta lya  Turkey to  

a t tend the  wedd ing  ce lebra t ions o f  b i l l i ona i re  

bus inessman and  po l i t i c ian  A jay  Gupta ’s  son Kamal  

Gupta  and De lh i  based bus inessman A J  Ja in ’s  

daughte r  Pa lak  Ja in .   One o f  the  b iggest  wedd ings 

to  have taken p lace th is  year  the  much ta lked abou t  

Mul t ip lanner  managed Anta lya  wedd ing  took p lace 20 

a t  Mardan Pa lace in  Anta lya .  Enter ta inment  was  

hand led  by  Cata l ys t  wh i le  ca te r ing  was taken care  

o f  by  the  Seasons Group. ”   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay i f  we can s top  there ,  can  

you jus t  ident i f y  what  we found in  re la t ion  to  Cata lys t  in  
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the  HSBC payments?  

MR HOLDEN:    We ident i f ied  a  payment  o f  jus t  over  –  I  w i l l  

ge t  the  prec ise  amount  f rom the  bund le  aga in ,  a t  

parag raph 277 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we s t i l l  on  the  same bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No Cha i r  th is  w i l l  be  6A 277,  bu t  

i f  you  jus t  keep tha t  bund le  open because we a re  go ing  to  

go  to  the  next  page in  a  m inute .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  277 on  the  o ther  one.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Page 268,  paragraph 277.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  i t  page 268.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  a l r igh t ,  yes  I  have got  i t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Here  I  ind ica te  tha t  on  the  same day tha t  

Prach i  Desa i  was pa id  an  amoun t  o f  64  394 do l la rs  was 

pa id  to  Cata lys t  Enter ta inment  Pr i va te  L im i ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  what  was tha t  da te?  

MR HOLDEN:    I t  was the  22 n d  o f  Apr i l  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go back to  page 1096  

6B what  was the  da te  tha t  the  wedd ing  s ta r ted?  20 

MR HOLDEN:    The 23 r d  o f  Apr i l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    R igh t ,  le t ’s  see what  Prach i  

Desa i  d id  a t  the  wedd ing .   Can I  ask  you to  –  I ’ ve  los t  my  

re ference,  do  you  have the  re fe rence to  Prach i  Desa i?  

MR HOLDEN:    I  th ink  i t  i s  1098,  le t  me doub le-check.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  o ther  bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    6B  Cha i r  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    Sor ry,  i t  i s  1097 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes we looked a t  some paragraph 1096  

then there  is  1097.  

MR HOLDEN:   Correc t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    And then i t  says  on  the  le f t  hand  s ide  o f  

the  page i t  says  the  exot ic  beachf ron t  engagement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:   And as you can see the  second paragraph I  

w i l l  read i t  in to  the  record ,  i t  reads :  

“Energet ic  per fo rmance by  ac t resses Sona l  

Chauhan and Prach i  Desa i  and s inger  R icha 

Sharma were  en joyed tho rough ly  by  the  guests . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you remind the  Cha i r  

what  Prach i  Desa i  was pa id  ou t  o f  tha t  HSBC account?    

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in  Prach i  Desa i  was pa id  21  214  20 

do l la rs  on  the  22n d  o f  Apr i l  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   Now i f  we move 

away f rom payments  to  ind iv idua ls  to  see where  most  o f  

th is  money was d is t r ibu ted  a t  page 269 o f  you r  bund le  6A 

in  your  repor t  you p roduced a  tab le  o f  compan ies  tha t  
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rece ived amounts  in  excess o f  a  m i l l ion  do l la rs  f rom tha t  – 

f rom the  Reg iments  and Tequesta  HSBC accounts .   Can I  

ask  you jus t  to  take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le ,  page 269.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  s i r  we have tab le  4 ,  rec ip ien ts  o f  

over  one mi l l ion  do l la rs  f rom Reg iments  and Tequesta  

Ho ld ing ,  the  la rgest  rec ip ien ts  o f  funds was a  company by  

the  name o f  A lmalucky L im i ted  wh ich  rece ived a  to ta l  o f  54  

payments  be tween the  12 t h  o f  August  2015 and the  10 t h  o f  

October  2015 and the  amount  i s  15 .312mi l l ion  Do l la rs .   

The second ent ry  there  is  fo r  Success S tan L im i ted  wh ich  10 

was pa id  a  to ta l  o f  13  539 115,30 do l la rs  across  44  

payments  be tween the  19 t h  o f  May 2015 and the  15 t h  o f  

January  2016.   The th i rd  en t ry  i s  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Garment  

wh ich  was pa id  i n  38  payments  11  244 776,63 do l la rs  and  

those payments  a re  made between  the  18 t h  o f  August  2015 

and the  15 t h  o f  January  2016.   The fo l low ing ent ry  i s  fo r  

Shunsh i  L im i ted  wh ich  was pa id  7  198 747,16 do l la rs ,  

across  22  payments  be tween the  13 t h  o f  December  2015  

and the  13 t h  o f  January  2016.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  in  the  in te res ts  o f  20 

speed ing  up maybe jus t  descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  th is  

tab le  i s  do ing  genera l l y  because i t  rea l l y  speaks fo r  i t se l f .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  what  th is  tab le  ind ica tes  Cha i r  i s  

the  –  l i s ted  f rom the  la rges rec ip ien ts  to  the  smal les t  

rec ip ien ts  o f  amounts  to ta l l ing  over  a  m i l l ion  do l l a rs  f rom 
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Tequesta  and Reg iments  HS accounts ,  the  number  o f  

payments  they rece ived and the  da tes  they rece ived those  

amounts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then you produced another  tab le  

under  6 .4 .3  wh ich  you re fe r  to  a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 270,  

parag raph 282.   That  tab le  –  sor ry  tha t  tab le  i s  i nc luded on  

Annexure  NN but  i t  re la tes  to  an  en t i t y  ca l led  Morn ing  S tar  

In te rnat iona l ,  can you te l l  the  Cha i r  who Morn ing  S tar t  

In te rnat iona l  a re?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in  Cha i r.   Morn ing  S tar  In te rnat iona l  10 

was a  company  tha t  was a lso  cont ro l led  by  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise ,  they  are  most  we l l -known because they  

rece ived payments  f rom Homex P ty  L im i ted ,  the  HSBC 

records ind ica te  tha t  they were  pa id  in  ten  payments ,  they  

were  a l l  made be tween the  22n d  and 29 t h  o f  May 2015 f rom 

Homex’s  Mercant i le  Bank fac i l i t y  in  South  A f r i ca  and in  

to ta l  Morn ing  S tar  was pa id  393 965 do l la rs .   We know tha t  

Morn ing  S ta r  and   Homex were  i nvo l ved in  a l legat ions o f  

impropr ie t y  in  re la t ion  to  cont rac ts  tha t  were  a l so  awarded  

by  Transnet .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  parag raph 284  you l i s t  a  

range o f  compan ies  tha t  rece ived payments  f rom a l l  o f  

Reg iments ,  Tequesta  and Morn ing  S tar  In te rnat iona l ,  can  

you ident i f y  them?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  the  f i rs t  company is  A lmalucky  
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L im i ted ,  the  second company is  Success S tand L im i ted ,  

th i rd  company is  Mer id ian  Warr io r  GL,  the  four th  company  

is  F ly  Br idge In te rnat iona l  DNCC and the  f i f th  company is  

S i l i r t i s  Company L im i ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  what  do  you –  what  

conc lus ions do  you draw f rom the  fac t  tha t  there  are  

compan ies  rece iv ing  payments  f rom Reg iments  As ia ,  

Tequesta  and Morn ing  S tar?    

MR HOLDEN:    I  be l ieve  tha t  these th ree  compan ies  were  

a l l  mak ing  use o f  the  same money  launder ing  organ isa t ion ,  10 

and money launder ing  rou tes  w i th  wh ich  the  funds  pa id  in  

re la t ion  to  k i ckbacks cou ld  d iss ipa ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  286 to  ge t  ahead o f  ou rse l ves 

a  l i t t le  b i t  you ta lk  about  payments  f rom the  Tequesta  

Group L im i ted  accounts  a t  Hab ib  Bank in  Duba i ,  can you 

jus t  take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  pa ragraph? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  I  ind ica te  here  tha t  fo l low ing  

Tequesta  Group ’s  dec i s ion  to  no  longer  use the  HSBC 

accounts  they made use o f  accounts  a t  Hab ib  Bank and I  

read as  I  s ta te  he re  -  Bank s ta tements  made pub l i c  by  Ami l  20 

Bongan i  have revea led  tha t  Tequesta  Group  L im i ted 

opera ted  a  US Do l la r  denominated bank account  a t  Hab ib  

Bank in  Duba i  w i th  account  number  2012-7771698603.   T 

h is  account  was  used to  rece ive  th ree  payments  f rom 

CRRC between the  22n d  o f  October  and 29 t h  o f  October  
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2016 va lued a t  19  886 383 do l la rs  and fo r ty  one,  and what  

i s  no tab le  here  is  tha t  th is  account  was a l so  used to  make  

two payments  to  F l y  Br idge In te rnat iona l  one o f  198 876.33 

Do l la rs  wh ich  is  equ iva len t  to  755  000 Durham on the  28 t h  

o f  August  2016 and an amount  o f  735 000 Durham which  is  

equ iva len t  to  200  238 do l la rs  and th i r t y  f i ve ,  a lso  pa id  on  

the  29 t h  o f  August  2016 a lso  to  F ly  Br idge In te rnat iona l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  6B, 

page 977,  and can you ident i f y  tha t  document  fo r  the  

Cha i r?  10 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r,  what  we have he re  is  the 

documents  tha t  was . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  by  Ami l  Bongan i  i t  i s  a  

s ta tement  o f  account  in  re la t ion  to  an  account  he ld  a t  

Hab ib  Bank L im i ted  and the  owner  o r  opera tor  o f  the 

account  i s  ident i f ied  in  the  top  le f t  corne r  as  Tequesta  

Group L im i ted  and i t  p rov ides the  address fo r  Tequesta  

Group L im i ted  as  F la t  A ,  16P,  Ef f i l i a ,  wh ich  i f  we cross-

re ference back to  the  Hong Kong company reg i s t ra t ion  

documents  i s  the  reg is te red address fo r  Tequesta  Group in  

Hong Kong,  and  i t  p rov ides a  s ta tement  o f  account  in  20 

re la t ion  to  the  account  number  20127771698603.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can I  ask  you to  go  back to  

page 272 o f  Bund le  A .   There  you ta lk  about  a  Sunnys ide  

Impor t  and Expor t  CC repor t  by  the  Reserve  Bank,  f i rs t  can 

I  ask  you to  ident i f y  tha t  repor t  by  go ing  to  –  sor ry,  we a re  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 242 of 249 
 

jumping between  bund les ,  i t  i s   now go ing  to  be  Bund le  B 

page 1051.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  the  page aga in  Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    6B 1051.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1051,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you ident i f y  tha t  

document  to  the  Cha i r?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  th is  i s  a  memorandum 

dra f ted  by  Mr  K  Na idoo who is  the  Deputy  Governor  o f  the  

South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank,  f rom the  Surve i l lance 10 

Depar tment ,  the  da te  o f  the  repor t  i s  o r  the  memorandum 

of  au thor i t y  i s  the  10 t h  o f  March 2016 and i t  i s  a  p roposed  

fo r fe i tu re  –  the  memorandum is  a  proposed fo r fe i tu re  o f   

money to  the  S ta te  in  te rms o f  the  prov is ions o f  Regu la t ion  

22B o f  the  Exchange Cont ro l  Regu la t ions,  Sunnys ide  

Impor t  and Expor t  C lose Corpora t ion  and i t  p rov ides a  

reg i s t ra t ion  number  fo r  Sunnys ide  Impor t  and Expor t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And –  so  th is  dea l t  w i th  

Exchange Cont ro l  Vio la t ions  by  Sunnys ide  and I  ask  you to  

tu rn  to  page 1060 o f  the  same bund le  and can you  ident i f y  20 

tha t  document  fo r  the  Cha i r?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  l i s t  o f  t ransact ions  

tha t  were  recorded by  the  South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank in  

re la t ion  to  Sunnys ide  Impor t  and Expor t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And those are  ac ross  border  



07 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 319 
 

Page 243 of 249 
 

t ransact ions?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  these a re  payments  f rom 

Sunnys ide  Expor t  ou t  o f  the  count ry.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  tu rn  to  

page 1093 and th is  i s  a  document  tha t  you have genera ted ,  

can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  i t  i s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  what  I  have done he re  i s  ident i f y  

a l l  o f  those compan ies  to  wh ich  Sunnys ide  Impor t  and  

Expor t  made payments  tha t  a lso  appear  on  the  bank 

s ta tements  or  the  t ransact ion  records  fo r  Reg iments  As ia  10 

and Tequesta  L im i ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And have you counted them,  do  

you know how many the re  are?  

MR HOLDEN:    There  are  23  compan ies  he re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  in fe rence do you d raw 

f rom the  fac t  tha t  there  a re  23  compan ies  who Sunnys ide  

Impor t  &  Expor t  d id  t ransact ions,  d id  c ross-bo rder  

t ransact ions w i th  f rom South  A f r i ca  who a l so  were  pa id  

money by  Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r  I  be l ieve  tha t  th is  i s  ev idence o f  the 20 

ex i s tence o f  a  complex  pro fess iona l  money launder ing  

organ isa t ion  tha t  served to  launder  funds both  f rom South  

A f r i ca  and a lso  served to  launder  funds fo r  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  in  re la t ion  to  Reg iments  As ia  and the  Tequesta  

Group.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You have repeated ly  re fe r red  to  

what  i s  go ing  on  in  those Tequesta  and Reg imen ts  As ia  

accounts  i s  money launder ing ,  can  I  ask  you to  go  to  page  

281 o f  Bund le  6A where  you ident i f y  what  you desc r ibe  as  

obv ious s igns o f  money launder ing  tak ing  p lace th rough  

these accounts  and can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough those  

s igns,  those ind i ca t ions o f  money launder ing?  

MR HOLDEN:    A t  parag raph 300 I  s ta te  the  rece ip t  and  

d iss ipa t ion  o f  funds f rom the  accounts  happened in  a  

h igh l y  susp ic ious  manner  in  par t i cu la r  the  funds pa id  in  by  10 

CSR,  CNR,  Da l l i an  and CRRC were  pa id  ou t  o f  the  HSPC 

accounts  a lmost  immedia te ly  a f te r  they had been rece ived.   

In  add i t ion  the  amounts  pa id  ou t  by  Reg iments  As ia  and 

Tequesta  had a l l  ha l lmarks  o f  smur f ing ,  in  wh ich  la rge  

payment  amounts  are   sp l i t  in to  a  se r ies  o f  smal le r  

payments  made cont iguous w i th  each o ther.   Th i s  i s  to  

avo id  the  movement  o f  s ing le  la rge  sums tha t  may incu r  

compl iance checks or  mandatory  repor t ing  requ i rements .   I  

then p rov ide  an  example  a t  pa rag raph 302 wh ich  p rov ides 

ind ica t ive  examples  o f  th is  and the  f i rs t  example  be tween  20 

the  31 s t  o f  December  2014 and the  25 t h  o f  March 2015  

Reg iments  As ia  t ransfer red  2  984 050 Do l la rs  to  a  company  

ca l led  the  L igh t  Forever  L im i ted  in  e leven t rans fers  bu t  

most  no t iceab ly  be tween the  10 t h  o f  March 2015 and the  

24 t h  o f  March 2015 Reg iments  As ia  made ten  t ransfe rs  on  a  
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nea r ly  da i l y  bas is ,  the  t ransfers  were  most ly  in  round  

f igures  and then I  p rov ide  a  tab le  here ,  thereaf te r  Tab le  7 ,  

wh ich  ind ica tes  the  payment  amounts  tha t  were  made f rom 

Reg iments  As ia  to  L igh t  Forever  and as  the  Cha i r  w i l l  see  

here  we have a  ser ies  o f  payments  tha t  a re  made between  

the  10 t h  o f  March and the  25 t h  o f  March or  w i th in  ve ry  c lose  

prox im i ty  a l l  in  round amounts  and/or  w i th  a l l  ha l lmarks  o f  

smur f ing  and  money launder ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

admin is t ra t i ve ly  to  t ransfe rs  a l l  o f  those amounts  in  one go  

ra the r  than across a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  t ransact ions 10 

incu r r ing  t ransact ion  fees.  

 In  the  second example  wh ich  I  ind ica te  a t  pa ragraph  

303 between the  18 t h  o f  Augus t  2015 and the  6 t h  o f  

November  2015 Tequesta  Group t ransfer red  9  087  002,92 

to  A lmalucky L im i ted  in  34  d i f fe ren t  payments ,  a l though  

rea l i s t i ca l l y  I  must  add tha t  th is  was ac tua l l y  33  payments ,  

as  one payment  made o f  two do l la rs  and n ine ty  th ree  

cents .   The payments  aga in  took p lace on a  regu lar  bas is  

o f ten  on ly  a  day  or  two apar t  and were  roundabouts  in  a  

pa t te rn  tha t  wou ld  be  pre t ty  ind i ca t ive  o f  smur f i ng  and 20 

money launder ing ,  aga in  I  p rov ide  a  tab le  o f  those 

payments  beg inn ing  a t  the  18 t h  o f  August  2015 and 

conc lud ing  on  the  6 t h  o f  November  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then f ina l l y  your  conc lud ing  

remarks  a t  page 284 paragraph 304 in  re la t ion  to  the  Hong 
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Kong accounts  o f  Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group.   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  I  say  a t  304 I  say  based on the  

above d iscuss ion  the  fo l low ing fac ts  can be conf i rmed,  a t  

parag raph A ;  Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group were  

pa id  145 177 086,91 by  CSR,  CNR,  Da l l ian  and CRC 

seeming ly  a f te r  i t  was dec ided to  ge t  th is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

w indow network  to  launder  k ickback payments .    A t  B;  

Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group were  incorpo ra ted  in  

Hong Kong shor t l y  be fore  rece iv ing  payments  f rom CSR,  

CNR,  Da l l ian  and CRC.  The Gupta  Enterpr i se  Assoc ia te  10 

Sa l im Essa was the  so le  d i rec to r  o f  bo th  Reg iments  As ia  

and Tequesta  Group unt i l  2016 a f te r  wh ich  he  was rep laced  

Aash ika  S ingh,  another  Gupta  Enterp r ise  assoc ia te .   The 

amounts  pa id  in  Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group were  

immedia te ly  d iss ipa ted  out  o f  these accounts .   The 

payments  made out  o f  Tequesta  and Reg iments  accounts  

were  made to ,  one,  a  smal l  wedge o f  ind iv idua ls ,  two a  

la rge  number  o f  Ch inese reg is te red tex t i le ,  c lo th ing ,  

bedd ing  or  consumer  goods manufac tu rers ,  many o f  whom 

are  shown by pub l i c  cus toms data  to  have been sh ipments  20 

to  South  A f r i ca  or  a l te rna t ive ly  to  have a t  leas t  repor ted  

such sh ipments  t o  customs autho r i t y  in  Ch ina .   Three,  a  

la rge  number  o f  Hong Kong reg i s te red she l f  compan ies  a l l  

tak ing  the  same corpora te  fo rm and none o f  wh ich  have 

any notab le  on l ine  pro f i le .   A t  F ;  payments  to  Morn ing  S tar  
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In te rna t iona l  a re  a lso  re f lec ted  a t  Annexure  NN as a re  

payments  ou t .  

 These records s  how tha t  on l y  f i ve  compan ies  

rece ived payments  f rom a l l  o f  Morn ing  S tar  In te rnat iona l ,  

Tequesta  Group  and Reg iments  As ia  namely  A lmalucky  

L im i ted ,  Success  S tand L im i ted ,  Mer id ian  War r io r  GL,  F ly  

Br idge In te rnat iona l  DMCC.  S i l i t is  Co L im i ted .   A t  305,  

based on the  above fac ts  I  be l ieve  i t  i s  reasonab le  to  in fe r  

tha t :  

[a ]  The payments  made to  Tequesta  Group and  10 

Reg iments  As ia  CSR,  CNR,  Da l l ian ,  CRRC were  i n  a l l  o r  

par t  ac tua l l y  made fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  Gupta  Ente rpr ise ;  

[b ]  Tequesta  Group and Reg iments  As ia  were  crea ted 

spec i f i ca l l y  as  veh ic les  to  rece ive  laundered funds pa id  to  

the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  by  CSR,  CNR,  Da l l ian  and CIRC and  

rece ive  and launder  funds f rom Homix .  

[ c ]  The Gupta  Enterpr ise  th rough Tequesta  Group and  

Reg iments  As ia  pa id  funds to  a t  leas t  ident i f iab le  

launder ing  ne tworks  wh ich  may or  may not  have been  

l inked,  namely  the  Hong Kong She l l  Company network  and  20 

the  Ch inese South  A f r i can Consumer  Goods Expor t  Impor t  

Network .  

[d ]   Morn ing  S ta r  In te rnat iona l ,  Tequesta  Group and  

Reg iments  As ia  a l l  par t i c ipa ted  in  the  same money 

launder ing  ne twork  as  shown by  payments  made  by  a l l  
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th ree  to  the  same f ive  en t i t ies .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thanks  Mr  Ho lden.   I  rea l i se  we 

haven ’ t  taken you ,  some o f  those conc lus ions are  based on  

mater ia l  in  you r  repor t  wh ich  we haven ’ t  ac tua l l y  addressed 

in  these hear ings bu t  I  th ink  we have done qu i te  we l l  fo r  

ton igh t .    I  am no t  go ing  to  ask  you to  go  back.  

 Cha i r  tha t  conc ludes Mr  Ho lden ’s  ev idence on the  

k ick  backs pa id  in to  Hong Kong  fo r  the  Transnet  

Locomot ives  cont rac t .   Tomorrow we wi l l  be  dea l ing  w i th  

the  k i ckbacks pa id  to  CDT and JJT and the  Wor ld ’s  Window 10 

Network  a t  an  ea r l ie r  s tage.    I  unders tand tha t  the  Eskom 

ev idence tomor row may in  fac t  f in ish  ear l ie r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    . . . than ant ic ipa ted  so  wou ld  you  

l i ke  us  to  be  on  s tandby f rom two o ’c lock?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  be  on  s tandby fo r  

ear l ie r  than today  but  I  am not  sure  how long,  I  th ink  i f  you  

speak to  Mr  Se leka he might  g ive  an  ind i ca t ion  whe ther  two  

o ’c lock  wou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    He was suggest ing  tha t  two 20 

o ’c lock  wou ld  be  a  sens ib le  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then tha t  wou ld  be  in  o rder  ja ,  tha t  

wou ld  be  in  o rder.  

 Okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ve ry  much and thank  you to  

everybody fo r  work ing  la te ,  so  we sha l l  s t i l l  be  here  

tomorrow hopefu l l y  no t  un t i l  th is  t ime but  i f  i t  has  to  be  i t  

has  to  be ,  bu t  thank you very  much Mr  Ho lden,  thank you  

Mr  Chaska lson and your  team,  thank you to  the  s ta f f .   We 

are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  the  day.  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 8  DECEMBER 2020  
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